
CITY OF UHLAND 
Notice and Agenda of Uhland City Council Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, November 4, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 15 North Old Spanish Trail, Uhland, Texas 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Uhland, Texas will hold 
a meeting via Zoom Conference. Members of the public may attend the meeting 

remotely by web or telephone. Meeting login details may be found below. 

On March 16, 2020, and until further notice or until the state disaster 
declaration expires, the Governor of the State of Texas has suspended certain 

sections of the Texas Open Meetings Act. Therefore, this meeting is hereby 
posted and will be held in accordance with those sections of the Texas Open 

Meetings Act in effect as of the date of the posting of this agenda. 

Members of the public may join the Zoom Meeting by one of the following methods: 

By web: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2508443928?pwd=Q2dyWVFYMnpjUStCaWdxYzRTN0pHQT09 
Meeting ID: 250 844 3928 
Passcode: 313687 
+ 13462487799,,2508443928#,,,,,, 0#,,313687# US (Houston) 
+12532158782,,2508443928#,,,, ,,0#,,313687# US (Tacoma) 

By phone: 
Dial by your location 

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+ 1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

Meeting ID: 250 844 3928 
Passcode: 313687 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kxMkqexG 

November 4, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 1 of 5 



A. CALL TO ORDER 
1. Roll Call 
2. Declaration of Quorum 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Due to the remote nature of this meeting all public comment speakers must submit public 
comments to the City Secretary at citysecretary@uhlandtx.us by providing their name, 
and contact information they wish to be made public, as well as the name and date of the 
meeting and each topic they wish to speak about no later than one (1) hour PRIOR to the 
start of the scheduled meeting . All speakers will be allowed to speak for three (3) minutes 
on each topic for which they properly submitted. 

Public comments on agenda items will be taken at the time each topic is called. 

At this time, public comments will be taken from the audience on any topic NOT listed on 
the agenda. No discussion or formal action will be taken at this meeting on topics 
not on the agenda. Inquiries about matters not listed on the agenda should be directed 
to City Staff following the meeting . 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Harvest Creek - Zoning Change from Agricultural to POD (Residential) for 
the following described property: 
TITLE SURVEY OF 34.083 ACRES OF LAND, SITUATED IN THE ALBERT PACE 
SURVEY NUMBER 55, ABSTRACT NUMBER 367, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A 
PORTION OF A CALLED 48.725 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO DIANE 
GARONZIK IN VOLUME 2583, PAGE 504, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, CALDWELL 
COUNTY, TEXAS (COMPLETE DESCRIPTIONS ARE AVAILABLE AT CITY HALL). 

2 . Water Line Project, 7218489 - Texas Community Development Block Grant 
(TxCDBG) Program Grant from the Texas Department of Agriculture for a 
Water Improvements Project 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
The following routine , clerical , and administerial items require no public hearing and are 
anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion by the City Council. It is intended 
that these items will be acted upon with a single motion as a collective, singular item. A 
City Council Member may request separate deliberation for a specific item or items at 
which time that item or items will be removed from the consent agenda for discussion as 
a regular agenda item. Prior to a vote, the City Council may add to the consent agenda 
an item or items listed elsewhere on the regular agenda. 

1. October 7, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

2. Financials of September 2020 

November 4, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 2 of 5 



E. CITY STAFF REPORTS 
Staff reports include briefings on pending matters from City officials or City staff. 

1. Coming Up: 
December - Calling 2021 General Election (Mayor, Alderpe rsons Place 4 
and Place 5) 

F. DISCUSSION ONLY ITEMS 
Items listed under this heading are for discussion purposes ONLY. No formal action will 
be taken at this meeting on the items discussed under this heading . 

None. 

G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS 
Items listed under this heading are for discussion and possible action. 

1. Appointment of Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Board Member 
(2020-2022 Term - Place 3) 

2. Terms of Office for Economic Development Corporation (EDC)- 2020-2021 
Board of Directors 

3. Harvest Creek - Zoning Change 
a. Final Report 
b. Zoning Change from Agricultu ral to Planned Development District 

(POD) (Residential) 

4. Harvest Creek Planned Development District (POD) Preliminary Plat 

5. Millcreek - Conditional Approval of Phase 3 Final Plat 

6. El Camino Ranch RV Resort Planned Development District (POD) 
Ordinance No. 140 - First Amendment - Ordinance Approving First 
Amendment to El Camino Ranch RV Resort Planned Development District 
(POD) 

7. Rocky Road Ranch Subdivision - Ordinance for Voluntary Annexation 
(24.901 Acre Tract out of the Lewis L. Joseph Survey, Abstract No. 164, 
Caldwell County) 

8. Rocky Road Ranch Subdivision - Development Agreement - Planned 
Development District (POD) Ordinance (24.901 Acre Tract out of the Lewis 
L. Joseph Su rvey, Abstract No. 164, Caldwell County) 

9. Review Responses and Provide Staff Direction - Request for Qualifications 
fo r Professional Consulting Services to Prepare a Public Improvement 
District (PIO) Feasibility Report 

November 4, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 3 of 5 



10. Contract Legal Services Agreement

11. Consultant City Planning Professional Services Agreement

12. Revised lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement between Caldwell County and
City of Uhland for Subdivision Regulations within the Extraterritorial
Jurisdiction (ET J) of the City of Uhland (1445 Agreement)

13. Resolution Accepting Caldwell County Tax Assessor's 2020 Certified Tax
Roll Totaling $28,604.42

14. Resolution Requesting Texas Department of Transportation (TxDot) Install

a Continuous Turn Lane on SH 21 Starting at Cotton Gin Road and
Continuing until Connected to the Current Turn Lane at High Road

15. City of Uhland City Limits and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ET J) Map

16. City of Uhland Zoning Map

17. Review Response and Provide Staff Direction - Request for Proposal for
Depository and Banking Services, Authorize Execution of Required
Documentation and Approve Funds Transfer Resolution

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION

The City Council may retire to executive session any time between the meeting's opening
and adjournment for the purposes of 1) consultation with legal counsel pursuant to
Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, 2) deliberation regarding real property
pursuant to Chapter 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, 3) deliberation about Gifts

and Donations pursuant to Chapter 551.073 of the Texas Government Code, 4) discussion
of personnel matters pursuant to Chapter 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, 5)
deliberation regarding the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices pursuant to Chapter 551.076 of the Texas Government Code,
6) deliberation regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Chapter
551.087 of the Texas Government Code. Action, if any, on topics discussed will be
taken in open session.

I. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Announcements include items of community interest, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or
salutary recognitions of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders on
upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social,
ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is
scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public's health and safety which have arisen after the posting of
the agenda. No action will be taken, or in-depth discussion will occur on any
announcement.

November 4, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 4 of 5 



J. ATTENDANCE BY OTHER ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIALS

It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions and/or committees may
attend the meeting in numbers that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards,
commissions and/or committees. Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent
required by law, is also noticed as a meeting of the other boards, commissions and/or
committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance. The members of the
boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions on the same items
listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such in
attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that
board, commission and/or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act.

K. ADJOURNMENT

Approved: Vicki Hunter, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Notice and Agenda of Meeting of the 
Uhland City Council was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, on the following date and time indicated, and 
remained so posted continuously for 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Uhland will provide reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending City Council meetings. Braille is not available. To better 
serve you, requests should be received 48 hours prior to the meetings. Please contact 
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary, at 512-398-7399 or email citvsecretary@uhlandtx.us. 

November 4, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 5 of 5 

Posted: 
Traci R. McGinley, Ce_ s. retary 



CITY OF UHLAND 
15 North Old Spanish Trail 

Uhland, TX  78640 
512-398-7399 

city@uhlandtx.us 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS, THAT:  The City of Uhland, Texas, is conducting 
proceedings for a zoning change from Agricultural to PDD (Residential) for the following described property,  

 
TITLE SURVEY OF 34.083 ACRES OF LAND, SITUATED IN THE ALBERT PACE SURVEY NUMBER 55, ABSTRACT 
NUMBER 367, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 48.725 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED 
TO DIANE GARONZIK IN VOLUME 2583, PAGE 504, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, CALDWELL COUNTY, TEXAS 
(COMPLETE DESCRIPTIONS ARE AVAILABLE AT CITY HALL). 

 
For all persons interested in the above proposed zoning change, at said time and method noted below all such 
persons shall have the right to appear and be heard.  These are planned as virtual meetings and members of the 
public may join the meetings by one of the methods noted below.  Should the COVID-19 disaster be repealed 
between the date of this notice and the date of the public hearings, the location will be at Uhland City Hall, 15 N. Old 
Spanish Trail, Uhland TX 78640.  Please check the agenda to confirm the location. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION HEARING will be held at 6:00 p.m. on October 21, 2020. 
 
CITY COUNCIL HEARING will be held at 6:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020. 
 

By web: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2508443928?pwd=Q2dyWVFYMnpjUStCaWdxYzRTN0pHQT09 

Meeting ID: 250 844 3928 
Passcode: 313687 
One tap mobile 
+13462487799,,2508443928#,,,,,,0#,,313687# US (Houston) 
+12532158782,,2508443928#,,,,,,0#,,313687# US (Tacoma) 
 
By phone: 
Dial by your location 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 250 844 3928 
Passcode: 313687 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kxMkqexG 

mailto:city@uhlandtx.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2508443928?pwd=Q2dyWVFYMnpjUStCaWdxYzRTN0pHQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kxMkqexG


 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 1 of 7 

CITY OF UHLAND 
Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, October 21, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 15 North Old Spanish Trail, Uhland, Texas 

 
 

The City of Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting was held via Zoom 
Conference.  Commissioners Rueben Mancias, Joanne Jarrett, Chris Warndahl, Lacee 
Duke and Mary LaPoint; as well as members of the public, attended the meeting remotely 
by web or telephone. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER.  The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m. 

 
Roll Call:  Commissioners Rueben Mancias, Joanne Jarrett, Chris Warndahl and 
Lacee Duke were present (Commissioner Mary LaPoint arrived at 6:07 p.m.). 
 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Karen Gallaher, Legal Counsel Amy Aker, 
City Secretary Traci R. McGinley, City Engineers Hugo Elizondo, Jr., P.E. and 
Chris Elizondo, E.I.T., Cuatro Consultants, LTD. 
 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. Harvest Creek – Zoning Change 
 

Chair Jarrett opened the public hearing. 
 
Scott Miller, Ranch Road Development, reminded the Commission that they 
previously reviewed this Planned Development District (PDD). 
 
Commissioner LaPoint arrived. 
 
No one else requested to speak regarding this item therefore Chair Jarrett 
closed the public hearing. 
 



 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 2 of 7 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. September 16, 2020 Regular Planning and Zoning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 
 

Moved by Commissioner Duke, seconded by Commissioner Warndahl to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Commissioners Mancias, Jarrett, Warndahl, Duke and 
LaPoint. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
E. CITY STAFF REPORTS 

 
None.   
 

F. DISCUSSION ONLY ITEMS 
 
None. 
 

G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS 
 
1. Harvest Creek 

a. Zoning Change – Final Report 
 

Legal Counsel Aker advised the Commission on what would typically be 
included in a Final Report.   
 
City Administrator Gallaher stated that the Preliminary Plat should have also 
been on this Agenda.  Legal Counsel Aker explained that if it was not on the 
Agenda it could not be discussed.  She asked when the Preliminary Plat 
application was received by the City.  She apologized to Scott Miller and 
stated that she has no control of the schedule of when things come and go 
in the City and had no idea to make sure that was on there.  City 
Administrator Gallaher responded that the Preliminary Plat Application was 
received August 21, 2020.  Legal Counsel Aker confirmed that Scott Miller 
had requested a one-month deferral.  Legal Counsel Aker added that this 
would have been the date that it would have come forward but the Planning 
and Zoning Commission cannot discuss it since it is not on the agenda, it 
gets moved forward by default and will go to City Council at the next 
meeting. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Jarrett, seconded by Commissioner Duke to 
present the Final Report Recommending Approval of the Zoning Change to 
Council.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Commissioners Mancias, Jarrett, Warndahl, Duke and 
LaPoint. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 



 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 3 of 7 

 
2. Mill Creek 

a. Phase 3 Final Plat 
 

Scott Miller, Ranch Road Development, stated that it was the third and final 
phase of Mill Creek and in compliance with the approved preliminary plat. 
 
City Engineer Hugo Elizondo, Jr. stated the Final Plat was reviewed, 
comments were issued and the developer is in the process of addressing 
those comments.  
 
Legal Counsel Aker explained that the Commission could either 
recommend denial or a conditional approval provided that they meet the 
requirements of the engineer’s comments. 
 
In response to City Administrator Gallaher, Scott Miller stated that he 
believed this would be completed prior to the City Council Meeting.  
 
Legal Counsel Aker stated that the City Engineer could make a 
recommendation as to whether this should move forward.  Typically, a 
conditional approval is pending engineering comments, the developer has 
to resubmit to the Commission to get that condition removed before it can 
go forward to City Council.   
 
City Engineer Hugo Elizondo, Jr. stated that he was not aware that County 
Line SUD had provided comments, but did not have a problem 
recommending that it move forward on the condition that they comply with 
the engineering technical comments. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Jarrett, seconded by Commissioner Duke to move 
the application forward to City Council with conditional approval that the 
engineering technical comments are met.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 

Aye: Commissioners Mancias, Jarrett, Warndahl, Duke and 
LaPoint. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
3. El Camino Ranch RV Resort 
 a. Planned Development District (PDD) – First Amendment 

 
Thomas Rhodes, on behalf of property owners, informed the Commission 
that this Planned Development District (PDD) was originally approved last 
year and contained a one-acre commercial corner but no specific use was 
identified.  They have someone interested in purchasing three acres to 
develop a gas station / convenient store. The first part of the amendment is 
to increase the commercial acreage from one to three acres.  The second 
part of the amendment is specific regulations relating to the convenient 



 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 4 of 7 

store use and exterior appearance.  The owners have agreed to 
enhancements suggested by City staff and Legal Counsel.  He and Legal 
Counsel Aker will work through the outstanding comment received from the 
City Engineer regarding roadway improvements. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker explained that she supports the City Engineer’s 
recommendation that the owner complete a traffic impact analysis (TIA) for 
the convenience store and that it includes the Gristmill Road and SH 21 
intersection.  Any improvements recommended by the TIA shall be 
completed in lieu of additional roadway impact fees for the convenient store.  
If no improvements are recommended the owner shall pay Twenty 
Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) to the City as additional roadway impact 
fees for the convenient store.  If road improvements are recommended 
there shall be no issuance of any permits, certificates, or completion of 
certificates of occupancy for the convenient store until road improvements 
are substantially complete as determined by the City Engineer except in the 
event the owner posts a bond or other fiscal surety acceptable to the City in 
an amount determined adequate by the City Engineer for the road 
improvements.  Legal Counsel Aker noted that this revised version was only 
sent to Thomas Rhodes today. 
 
Commissioner Warndahl expressed concern about the impact to traffic and 
requested to see the analysis when competed.  Legal Counsel Aker 
explained that any recommendations that come out of the TIA would have 
to be performed by the owner. 
 
Commissioner LaPoint asked if they could use it for something other than a 
gas station and convenient store if the three acres were approved.  Legal 
Counsel Aker confirmed that the zoning permits other uses.  
 
Commissioner Duke asked for clarification of the location of the property, 
raised concern about overpopulating the area with gas stations and asked 
if it was possible that this be a grocery store.  Thomas Rhodes explained 
that if the amendment is not approved it will not be a gas station, but cannot 
guarantee what would be built at the location, it would be market driven.  
Legal Counsel Aker added that the agreement specifies uses. 
 
In response to Chair Jarrett, Legal Counsel Aker confirmed that a plat or 
plan would come before the Commission. 
 
Moved by Commissioner LaPoint, seconded by Commissioner Jarrett to 
approve the amendment.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Commissioners Mancias, Jarrett, Warndahl, Duke and 
LaPoint. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 



 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 5 of 7 

4. Rocky Road Ranch 
 a. Development Agreement - Planned Development District (PDD) 
 

Legal Counsel Aker explained that this project has been before the 
Commission but not the development agreement.  She noted that the 
developer has agreed to make the roads private; however, she had safety 
concerns because they do not want to provide sidewalks or a cul-de-sac at 
the end of the road large enough for a bus to turn around.  She noted that 
technically sidewalks are not required because of when the agreement was 
initiated.  Legal Counsel Aker continued, stating that in Section 7 there is 
always a misunderstanding on road impact fees and park fees.  All 
developments have a twenty percent (20%) set-aside for open space or the 
developer can pay a lump sum.  This developer does not want to pay the 
lump sum for the additional twenty percent (20%).  She added that she 
could recommend waiving the fee if they agree to pay Two Thousand Four 
Hundred Dollars ($2,400.00) per lot for each of the small lots, that does not 
include the larger residential lots. 
 
Commissioner Warndahl asked if there were fire safety concerns if there is 
no cul-de-sac.  City Engineer Hugo Elizondo, Jr. explained that there was a 
cul-de-sac at the end of the road that satisfies the school district and fire 
requirements. 
 
Commissioner Mancias left the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Patrick Tighe, owner, provided a brief overview of the project, explaining 
that they wish to develop 22 lots on this 15-acre subdivision and sidewalks 
were not required when this project was submitted.  These are stick built 
homes with the flexibility to allow 8 lots be developed as duplexes or 
fourplexes.  He added that there is roughly a two-acre pond with trees, a 
trail and benches that would be developed into a park. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker stated that the Commission could recommend 
approval, make comments, or make recommendations on the items that 
she brought up (which she will take forward to the City Council regardless) 
but Commission can make a recommendation on these items as well. 
 
Commissioner LaPoint expressed concern about it being multi-family, the 
drive-in and all the other permitted uses and how they could negatively 
impact the property values.  Patrick Tighe explained that the PDD is 
versatile, but agreed to tighten the definitions and remove the drive-in.  He 
explained that they want flexibility in housing options, he noted that there is 
a development in Austin called Community First Village, they are smaller 
stick-built houses with multiple living concepts, that is the kind of ideas they 
had in mind.  We are not trying to make this a renter community but wish to 
have options. 
 



 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 6 of 7 

Legal Counsel Aker explained that the intent of a PDD is to be broad enough 
so it doesn’t limit the developer but provides certain concessions to allow 
them to use the land for specific purposes. 
 
Commissioner LaPoint asked for clarification because she thought Legal 
Counsel Aker just said that we don’t want to tell them what they can and 
cannot do but isn’t the Commission supposed to make sure the land uses 
and growth benefits all residents and say no if something is not of a benefit. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker explained that they are currently not in the City limits 
but wishes to be part of the City, the agreement limits the uses but is broad 
enough to allow the owner flexibility.  She added that the owner can develop 
the land as they desire if they were to stay in the County.  Patrick Tighe, 
stated that they would be fine staying in the County. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker stated that the agreement will go forward to the Council 
regardless of whether the Commission recommends approval, 
recommends denial or takes no action. 
 
Chair Jarrett stated that a preliminary plat would still come before the 
Commission for approval. 
 
City Administrator Gallaher asked the City Engineer to explain the different 
types of residential development.  City Engineer Hugo Elizondo, Jr., 
explained that urban development is typically curb and gutter and in rural 
development the frontage is so wide that the cost of adding sidewalks 
behind the ditch is not feasible.   Legal Counsel Aker added that if the City 
Engineer is not in favor of sidewalks in the development, she would not 
press that issue. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Warndahl, seconded by Commissioner Duke to 
recommend approval of the Development Agreement with Legal Counsel 
Aker’s concerns.  The motion failed due to the following vote: 

Aye: Commissioners Warndahl and Duke. 
Nay: Commissioners Jarrett and LaPoint. 
Abstain: None. 

 
Commissioners Jarrett and LaPoint explained that they voted no due to the 
drive-in.  Patrick Tighe reiterated that he agreed to remove the drive-in 
theater. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Warndahl, seconded by Commissioner Duke to 
recommend approval of the Development Agreement with Legal Counsel 
Aker’s concerns.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Commissioners Mancias, Jarrett, Warndahl, Duke and 
LaPoint. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 



 

 
October 21, 2020 Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – Page 7 of 7 

 
H. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 None. 
 
I.  ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
None. 
 

J. ATTENDANCE BY OTHER ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIALS 
 

None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 
 



 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 
The City of Uhland received a Texas Community Development Block Grant (TxCDBG) Program 
grant from the Texas Department of Agriculture for a Water Improvements Project. A public 
hearing has been called for 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, November 4th, 2020 at the City Hall, 15 
N. Old Spanish Trail, Uhland, TX to review the program performance of the activities completed 
under this grant which will include an explanation of the actual use of the Texas Community 
Development Block Grant Program funds and invite comments. 

La Ciudad de Uhland recibió una subvención del Programa de Subvenciones en Bloque para el 
Desarrollo Comunitario de Texas (TxCDBG) del Departamento de Agricultura de Texas para un 
Proyecto de Mejoras al Agua. Se ha convocado una audiencia pública para las 6:00 p.m. el 
miércoles 4 de noviembre de 2020 en el Ayuntamiento, 15 N. Old Spanish Trail, Uhland, TX 
para revisar el desempeño del programa de las actividades completadas bajo esta subvención, 
que incluirá una explicación del uso real de la Subvención Global para el Desarrollo Comunitario 
de Texas Programe fondos e invite comentarios. 
 
 
For further information or assistance contact Karen Gallaher at (512) 398-7399.  Para obtener 
más información o asistencia, póngase en contacto con Karen Gallaher at (512) 398-7399. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E-MAIL CONTACT DEADLINE PRINT 

paper@haysfreepress.com     Wed  Friday 
 
 
 
NOTES: 
Publish on       October 30, 2020   ---  

 
1) This notice must be published at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled hearing. 
2) Publish only once in classified ad page in the public notice section of newspaper. (**not the legal section**) 
3) Copy of the published notice---newspaper tear sheet is needed for grant files. 
4) Publisher’s Affidavit is needed for this notice. 
 
Contact Cindy at Langford Community Management Services (LCMS) at 512/452-0432 if further information is needed. 
 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 1 of 11 

CITY OF UHLAND 
Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, October 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 15 North Old Spanish Trail, Uhland, Texas 

 
 

The City Council Meeting was held via Zoom Conference. Mayor Hunter and 
Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman and Schrock were present in City 
Hall. Councilmember Garonzik; as well as members of the public, attended the meeting 
remotely by web or telephone. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER.  Mayor Hunter called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

 
Roll Call.  Mayor Vicki Hunter, Councilmembers Jessica Hodge, Brian Heideman, 
Daniel Heideman, Naomi Schrock and Mark Garonzik were present. 
 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Karen Gallaher, Legal Counsel Amy Aker, 
City Secretary Traci R. McGinley and Byron Sanderfer of LNV, LLC, City Engineers. 
 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chris Betz, County Line Special Utility District Board President, provided public 
comment as attached. 
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. September 2, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
2. September 16, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
3. Financials of August 2020 
 
Moved by Councilmember D. Heideman to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded 
by Councilmember Garonzik.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, Schrock and 
Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2 of 11 

 
E. CITY STAFF REPORTS 

 
1. Harvest Creek Zoning Change Public Hearing before Planning and 

Zoning Commission October 21, 2020 and Council November 4, 2020 
2. Status Updates: 
 a. RFP / RFQs 
  i. Banking Services 
  ii. Public Improvement District (PID) Feasibility Report 

Consultant 
 b. City Job Posting(s) – Office Administrative Assistant 
3. Coming Up: 

November – Calling 2021 Election; Zoning Ordinance and Site 
Development Ordinance Updates 
 

F.  DISCUSSION ONLY ITEMS 
 
1. Development Agreements – General Discussion Seeking Council Input 

and Expectations  
 

Legal Counsel Aker asked Council if they would prefer to adopt and utilize a 
new Development Ordinance instead of having individual Development 
Agreements.  She noted that agreements have been presented to staff 
where developers are not wanting to abide by regulations. 
 
Councilmember B. Heideman stated that the first several agreements were 
done because the Subdivision Ordinance was old and antiquated at the time.  
He added that he would be fine not doing development agreements if the 
new ordinance has everything that is needed. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker added that the purpose of having Development 
Agreements is to provide additional benefits for the City. 

 
G.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS 

 
Uhland Economic Development Corporation (EDC) 
 
1. Appointment of Economic Development Corporation Board Members 

(2020-2022 Term – Paces 1, 2 & 3) 
 

Legal Counsel Aker noted that only two applications had been received to 
date and suggested that Place 3 remain vacant at this time. 
 
Moved by Councilmember D. Heideman to appoint Barbara Ilse (Place 1), 
Kelly Anderson (Place 2) and that Place 3 remain vacant at this time, 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3 of 11 

seconded by Councilmember Schrock.  The motion carried by the following 
vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, Schrock 
and Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
2. FY 2020-2021 Budget 

 
In response to questions raised by Council about the Main Street 
Revitalization Study and budget.  EDC Consultant Victor Garza explained 
that it was one of the items suggested to be done in the Economic 
Development Strategic Plan (next on the agenda). 
 
Council had questions regarding EDC funding and the amounts contained in 
the budget.  City Administrator Karen Gallaher explained how EDC obtains 
its funding and confirmed that sales tax data did support the amount 
budgeted for income.  After additional questions from Council regarding the 
financials, it was confirmed that an audit was needed but not budgeted.  EDC 
was advised that audits were required and discussion was held regarding 
adjusting the budget line-items to include an audit.  
 
Moved by Councilmember B. Heideman to approve the Economic 
Development Corporation (EDC) budget as amended, with the Main Street 
Revitalization Study being reduced to $45,000.00 and an Audit line item be 
created in the amount of $5,000.00, seconded by Councilmember Hodge.  
The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, Schrock 
and Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
3. Strategic Plan  

 
EDC Consultant Victor Garza explained that a number of consultants had 
worked on the Economic Development Strategic Plan and subsequent 
changes but it was just recently adopted by the EDC.  He added that the 
Plan will help guide the EDC. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the purpose of the Strategic Plan as well as 
development and anticipated growth of the area. 
 
Due to numerous questions regarding the information contained in the 
Strategic Plan and how it would be utilized, EDC President Marian Loep 
suggested EDC have a joint workshop with Council to discuss the Plan. 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4 of 11 

Moved by Councilmember Schrock to table the EDC Strategic Plan, 
seconded by Councilmember B. Heideman.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, Schrock 
and Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
Uhland Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) 
 
None.  
 
City of Uhland 
 
1. Plum Creek Utility Company, LLC – Request for Building Permit Fee 

Variance 
 

Legal Counsel Aker advised Council that she did not see any benefit to the 
City in waiving the fee at this time.  City Administrator Gallaher noted that 
the permit fee was an extremely large sum and added that she did not 
believe a utility should be required to pay the 2% permit fee. 
 
In response to Councilmember Hodge, Allison Nieto of Southwest Engineers 
for Plum Creek Utility, explained that if the fee was not waived the cost would 
essentially get passed through to the consumers. 
 
Councilmember Hodge asked the cost to connect to the system.  Allison 
Nieto, Southwest Engineers, responded that it was currently $6,250 (Plum 
Creek Utility is $5,000 and County Line SUD’s impact fee is $1,250). 
 
Councilmember Hodge asked how many customers would be affected if the 
fee was not waived.  Daniel Heideman responded that they are reaching 
approximately 200 customers, but not everyone in the community can 
connect to the system (for instance he cannot).  Allison Nieto, Southwest 
Engineers, added that no existing homes have been tied into the system to 
date, but they have committed to servicing over 1,000 residences that are in 
the process of being developed and the goal is to connect existing residents 
as well.  The system benefits the community in general because the 
wastewater is what is bringing the development into the community.   
 
Brian Heideman asked how this may affect the City when it has been over 
two years since the groundbreaking and the fact that a permit was not 
previously required.  Daniel Heideman confirmed that he was in attendance 
at a meeting where they were informed that no fees or permits were needed. 
 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5 of 11 

City Administrator Gallaher explained that this fee was for the current plant 
expansion only, due to the amount she had suggested a Franchise 
Agreement, the City would get a franchise fee and maintain the ability to 
review the plans. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker reminded both Heideman’s that a conflict exists and they 
would need to recuse themselves. 
 
Councilmember Schrock asked who would benefit if there was a franchise 
agreement.  Legal Counsel Aker explained that when an entity purchases 
permits, all members are burdened by that fee, but only citizens using 
wastewater would pay for a franchise agreement.   
 
Legal Counsel Aker noted that permits are required, regardless of whether 
they were submitted or required in the past and as soon as she learned about 
the project they were advised that a permit would be needed. 
 
Mayor Hunter added that as a business they should understand that permits 
are required and that there may be fees as well. 
 
Brian Heideman stated that permits were not required for phase 1 and phase 
2 of the project. 
 
Steven Greenberg, Managing General Partner of Plum Creek Utility 
Company, stated that they were originally advised that as a utility no permits 
or fees were required and continued to believe that was the case, this is one 
continuous project.  If they are required to pay this permit fee it adds to the 
cost of the project, but will be spread out over a long period of time and a 
large number of customers.  He stated that there is a concern that they 
received the bill after the fact.   
 
Legal Counsel Aker explained that it is no different than dealing with Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), permits are needed for each 
phase. 
 
Councilmember Hodge stated that she had a concern waiving the fee and 
these types of fees are anticipated by people when moving into a new 
development.   
 
Legal Counsel Aker noted that the Fee Schedule was adopted in May and 
the project was filed in June.   
 
Allison Nieto, Southwest Engineers for Plum Creek Utility, stated that they 
were advised that the building would require a permit, but were never 
informed that the project itself would need a permit.  She added that having 
to pay this type of fee is a concern, but they would not have a problem 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6 of 11 

reimbursing the City for costs.  She added that if the fee is not waived it will 
have to be paid again and again as they expect to expand the plant each 
year, there is already another expansion planned next year. 
 
City Administrator Gallaher suggested a smaller permit fee for utilities. 
 
Brian Heideman stated he did not like charging fees just for the City to make 
money, but that the City should at least re-coop it’s costs.  Legal Counsel 
Aker explained that fee schedules themselves charge extra in order to fund 
the City’s growth. 
 
Daniel Heideman asked if the City had inspected the project.  City 
Administrator Gallaher responded that the permit system will not allow the 
permitting process to move forward without payment.  Daniel Heideman 
added that the City better hurry before the project is complete. 
 
Councilmember Garonzik stated that he understood both sides of the 
situation. 
 
Steve Greenberg, Managing General Partner of Plum Creek Utility 
Company, stated that there was never a discussion that there would be a 
permit fee and did not feel that it is right after the fact, but would be fine with 
a fee moving forward.  He explained that when the project started four years 
ago it was for one developer, the City is the one that approached Plum Creek 
Utility and asked them to do this for the community.  Plum Creek is legally 
bound to provide the service and will go along with whatever the City 
decides. 
 
In response to questions from Chris Betz about notification of the fees, Legal 
Counsel Aker explained that she was not obligated to provide notice to 
anyone regarding the fees.  The fees were set by ordinance and can only be 
waived by Council approval.  
 
Steven Greenberg, Plum Creek Utility, stated that there was never an 
agreement to waive fees because there were no fees at that time. 
 
Councilmember Schrock suggested that Plum Creek Utility pay the City’s 
actual costs and that the City should consider charging utilities only ½ 
percent for fees. 
 
In response to City Administrator Gallaher’s question as to whether County 
Line SUD had inspected the project, Daniel Heideman stated that he did not 
understand why so many entities inspected the project.   
 
Legal Counsel Aker added that no construction should have been started 
prior to a permit being issued. 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7 of 11 

 
Moved by Councilmember Garonzik to waive the permit fees, due to a lack 
of second the motion failed. 

 
Moved by Councilmember Schrock to waive the fees with the exception of 
the inspection fees for this particular project, seconded by Councilmember 
Garonzik.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Schrock and Garonzik. 
Nay: Councilmember Hodge. 
Abstain: Councilmembers B. Heideman and D. Heideman. 
 

2. Resolution Adopting the Amended / Updated Citizen Participation Plan 
Policy for the GLO Community Development Block Grant Programs 

 
Moved by Councilmember Hodge to approve Resolution No. 10072020 to 
Adopt the Amended / Updated Citizen Participation Plan Policy for the GLO 
Community Development Block Grant Programs, seconded by 
Councilmember B. Heideman.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, Schrock 
and Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
3. SH 21 Corridor Committee – Curtis Wells, Naomi Schrock, Chris Betz 

and Karen Gallaher 
 
Moved by Councilmember B. Heideman to appoint Curtis Wells, Naomi 
Schrock, Chris Betz and Karen Gallaher as the City’s representatives to the 
TxDot SH 21 Corridor Committee, seconded by Councilmember 
D. Heideman.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, Schrock 
and Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
Councilmember D. Heideman stated that the SH 21 corridor will affect the 
downtown area.  Administrator Gallaher expressed concern about the 
possible impact to the sales tax as well.   
 

4. Professional Services Agreements 
 

City Administrator Gallaher requested that this item be taken to Executive 
Session. 

 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8 of 11 

5. Administration Fee Agreement – Uhland Economic Development 
Corporation (EDC) 

 
City Administrator Gallaher explained that she requested this item come 
before Council because staff has been handling the Agenda and other 
documentation and EDC no longer has the administrative line-item in the 
budget to offset the City costs. 
 
Councilmember B. Heideman asked why the EDC Board could not do this 
for themselves.  Legal Counsel Aker explained that the Board would typically 
handle these duties but it has not and it has been falling on City staff. 
 
Councilmember D. Heideman stated that the City could continue to handle 
these duties, but EDC should continue to pay for the services. 
 
City Administrator Gallaher stated that she serves on the Board and City 
staff handles a lot of the responsibilities. 
 
Discussion was held regarding responsibilities of the different board 
positions. 
 
Erica Heideman, EDC Board Member, requested that prior to incurring any 
costs the EDC be provided the opportunity to address this at their next 
meeting.   
 
Councilmember Garonzik agreed and stated that he believed there were 
people on the Board that would handle their responsibilities and duties. 
 
Councilmember B. Heideman suggested EDC Board Members keep that in 
mind when recruiting board members and selecting officers. 
 
Legal Counsel Aker recommended that new board members come to the 
City to ensure they obtain needed information regarding EDC and their 
responsibilities. 
 
No action was needed or taken on this matter. 
 

6. Amendment to 1445 Interlocal Agreement with Caldwell County 
 
Legal Counsel Aker stated that the City would be receiving a letter from 
Caldwell County regarding an amendment to the 1445 Agreement. 
 
No action was made or requested on this matter. 

 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 9 of 11 

7. Personnel: 
 
a. Personnel Policies – Amend Article 6. Pay Increases, 

Promotions, Demotions and Resignations 
 
 Discussion was held regarding Merit and Cost of Living Adjustments 

(COLA).  Legal Counsel Aker reviewed the amounts provided by 
comparable organizations. 

 
 Longevity Awards were discussed in detail, Council was in favor of 

recognizing employees for longevity but it was suggested that the 
amounts be cut in half. 

 
Moved by Councilmember Schrock to adopt amended Article 6 of the 
City Personnel Policies with Section 6.05 Longevity Award amounts 
being reduced by one-half, seconded by Councilmember 
B. Heideman.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman, 
Schrock and Garonzik. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: None. 

 
b. City Administrator Job Evaluation 

 
Legal Counsel Aker explained that Council was provided with copies 
of reference letters and a summary of the combined evaluations.  She 
added that based on the Personnel Policies the City Administrator is 
entitled to receive a two percent (2%) merit increase. 
 
Council chose not to review the overall evaluation in detail with the 
City Administrator.   
 

c. Budgeted Funds – Payroll:  Merit and Cost of Living Adjustment 
(COLA) Increases 
 
Due to adoption of amended Article 6 of the City Personnel Policies 
this item was no longer necessary. 

 
H. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

1. Professional Services Agreements 
 

Mayor Hunter noted that she was not able to stay and attend the Executive 
Session. 
 



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10 of 11 

Councilmember Garonzik was not present at City Hall and therefore would 
not attend the Executive Session. 
 
At 9:47 p.m. Mayor Hunter announced that Council would temporarily 
adjourn to Executive Session regarding Professional Services Agreements. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schrock reconvened the meeting in open session at 
10:14 p.m. and noted that no action had been taken in Executive Session. 

 
G.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS (continued) 

 
City of Uhland 
 
6. Professional Services Agreements 

 
Moved by Councilmember Hodge to provide notice to terminate the 
Professional Services Agreement of LNV, LLC, and for staff to issue an RFP 
for Engineering Services, seconded by Councilmember B. Heideman.  The 
motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Councilmembers Hodge, B. Heideman, D. Heideman and 
Schrock. 

Nay: None. 
Abstain: Councilmember Garonzik (Due to the fact that he did not 

attend the Executive Session). 
 

I.  ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
None. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 
  



October 7, 2020 Uhland Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11 of 11 

Public Comment Submitted 
 
 

 

 



����������

���

��	
��������������������������� !���"#$� %&�'"(��!�) !� %��*+,�+-�-�.)�/0�121341/0�.)'/.4567��7��6����8�����������567��7��6��9
8�:�������;	6;<�
�7���=6>�?��6�	��	;��>�7	���>��	6;�	��>���	6��;6�@	���7�A�6�����	��>�;6B�;	CDEFF�(� �GHG	�	6?6�	�96=�����=�9����76 IJ�KI��CLJ��67M>�����B�
?6�	>�7�6�;6��NJ�O P�JQK��QC�IH6B�>�	>������	�6;�7;6��	>�7�6�;6��NQQO �LRK�JLC�RG	�	6?6�	�6����=�9����76 ILJKR�ICR���7�6�;6��	;��>�7	���>��>����R�I������ QK��ICQJ56=�>	6;�9����76��>����R�I������ I��K��LC�J��6�;6��	;��>�7	���>��	6;��R�I������ �C����7�6�;6��	;��>�7	���>��	6;��R�I������ P��KL�QC��56=�>	6;�9����76��>������������� �R�KJ��CIIS"����T��67M>�����B�
?6�	>�7�6�;6��NJ�OH<UV UWXV 5VY�Z[C X<WVV <:[�ZU�N�GHO�R�������� U;��>6; P��K���C���R�������� \����X�
?6�	 J�IJ X<U]:<5̂ �U5<YY_��X5[H̀ P�K��JCJ��R�������� \����X�
?6�	 J�I� Va�GU5VVU��[:X<ZW P�K�L�C���R�������� \����X�
?6�	 J�I� UVb<G�H_GX[G<c�GWGUV:G PQ��C���R�������� \����X�
?6�	 J�I� c<ZdY[5H��[::�Z_UW�:̀ PIK���C���R�������� \����X�
?6�	 J�II cZe�VZd_ZVV5_Zd PRK�Q�C�Q�R�������� �;6��	���;��X�
?6�	 PJRCRR�R�������� VfB6�>6 :6;7���	�G6;g�76> P��C���R��I����� VfB6�>6 HH <?
�<M6;> P�KQ��C���R��I����� VfB6�>6 HH <?
�<M6;> PQKI��C���R��I����� X�
;������67M HH :�		�6h�]��=6 P�K��IC���R��I����� X�
;������67M HH �̂;6��GC�d�����6; P�KIQJCI��R��I����� X�
;������67M HH d�;
�HC�d�����6; P���C���R��I����� X�
;������67M HH d�;
�HC�d�����6; P�KJ��C���R��I����� X�
;������67M HH U;�7��5C�:7d���6
 P�K���C���R��I����� VfB6�>6 i<GUV��[ZZV�U_[Z PLKQ��CL��R�������� �;6��	���;��X�
?6�	 PJK���CL��R��R����� �;6��	���;��X�
?6�	 PILCR��R��R����� �;6��	���;��X�
?6�	 PQRCI��R�������� U�f�X�
?6�	 _5G P�KR�LCJ��R�������� VfB6�>6 :6;7���	�G6;g�76> P�QRC�L�R�������� VfB6�>6 _5G P�KR�LCJ��R�������� VfB6�>6 �]c<ZH�V�[Z[:_��HVeVc̀ PRKQJLCJ��R�������� VfB6�>6 �����LQ GXV�U5�:�\�G_ZVGG P�I�C���R��L����� X�
;������67M HH d�;
�HC�d�����6; P�KL��C���R��L����� X�
;������67M HH d�;
�HC�d�����6; P�C���R��L����� X�
;������67M HH :�		�6h�]��=6 P�K��JCI��R��L����� X�
;������67M HH �̂;6��GC�d�����6; P�KIQJCI��R��L����� X�
;������67M HH U;�7��5C�:7d���6
 P�K���C���R��L����� VfB6�>6 U:c�:�cU_GU<UV�_ZUV5d[̀ P�K�RJC���R��L����� VfB6�>6 �[�ZUW�c_ZV�G�H PI�CII�R�������� VfB6�>6 \c�V\[ZZVU�VcV�U5_� PJ��CI��R�������� VfB6�>6 UVb<G��[:XU5[ccV5�[Y�̀ P�K�I�C���R��I����� U�f�X�
?6�	 _5G P�KR�LCL��R��I����� �;6��	���;��X�
?6�	 PJC�Q�R��I����� VfB6�>6 _5G P�KR�LCL��R��J����� VfB6�>6 YcZ\ P���C���R�������� VfB6�>6 \_a�H[��_Z�C P��C���R��R����� VfB6�>6 �]c<ZH�V�[Z[:_��HVeVc̀ P�IK��IC�J



����������

���

���	
��	������ ���� ������� ����� ��������������������� ��� !" �#$����%����&%��'�$( ���
)��������������� �*+!", * ���
�������-.+/ �-"0."�+!1�-.2 *�3* 10."�3/ +* 1��		���� ���� ������� ����� ���������������)����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ��	������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���) ���&���4��%#��������� ��)��	���������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� 	��������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� �
���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ��	�� ��� ��������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. +32	��)� ���&� �+5 �
����	����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ��)� ��� �
����	����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �������� 64�#���� �
���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���) ���&���4��%#��������� �		������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ����)����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. +32	��		 ���&� �+5 	�	������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. +32	��)� ���&� �+5 �	�������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	�� 64�#���� �
����	����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	)� 64�#���� �
��	������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	�� 64�#���� �
���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	�� 64�#���� �
���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �������� 64�#���� �
��)�	����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����		) 64�#���� �
��	������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	)� 64�#���� �
)��������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	�� 64�#���� �
�)�������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �����	�� 64�#���� �������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ����� ���%#������'�$����( ���������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ���� ���%#������'�$����( ��
����������������  �-"0. #����%������������&�$�( �)	������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. 85�� *80.�!-9 ��#����� �
���������������� :-;*!+/ :� �
��)������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���	 ���&���4��%#��������� ���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ���������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ��� �-11�4;* < �
���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. +32	�	�� ���&� �+5 	���������������  �-"0. ��=���%������$$�� ��
����)����������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ���� �6����%# ���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� �)	�������	����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ��	�	�����	����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ������)	 64�#���� �
�		�������	����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ������)) 64�#���� �
��)�	�����	����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. +32	���� ���&� �+5 �����	����	����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ������)� 64�#���� �
�		�������)����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �������� 64�#���� �
�)��������)����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���	 ���&���4��%#��������� �)��������)����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ������)� 64�#���� �
����	�����)����� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ������)� 64�#���� �
����	����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ���� ���&���4��%#��������� ���������������� :-;*!+/ :� �
��)�)����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. +32�	���� ���&� �+5 �
	��������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ��)� ���&���4��%#��������� ����)����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ��)� ���&���4��%#��������� ���������������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. �������� 64�#���� �
���������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ����� >�#4���*-� *.0 " �
�)�������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ���� ?;!7+!.�?+@ *+ ���������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ���� ?;!7+!.�?+@ *+ �
	��������������� � 3 07 ��+58 !. ���� ��%������&�?���'����6 ����	����������� �+/ "�� 3 0�. ��	� ���&���4��%#��������� ������



����������

���

��	
�����	
������
�
	�����

���� ���� ������� ����� �������������	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& ���� ���'��(��)*��������� �������	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& ���	 ���'��(��)*��������� ����	��	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& ���� ���'��(��)*��������� �������	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& �#+������ ���'�!%�, �������	��	����� �!#!$-!���,.!/& ���� ���)*��������0�1����2 ��
�������	��	����� �!#!$-!���,.!/& ���� 34"+��+45/&4/ �
�������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ����	��� 6(�*���� �
�������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ����	��� 6(�*���� �
�������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ���� ) !�5�)5!!7
�'/#� �
�������	�������� �!%4"$& �'����1�)6*�������'���2 ���	��	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& ���� ���'��(��)*��������� �
�������4&� 899:;:<=>?�@=A<BC>;:<=�/# !�5!D�#+!#7"��/D�%�,.!/&"��"�4E��	������������ ���� ������� ����� �������������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ��	� ��((�'����0������ �������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ��	� ��((�'����0������ �������4&� �/# !�5!D�D!%4"$&"��/D�4&+!5�#5!D$&"��"�4E��	������������ ���� ������� ����� �������������	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& ����	��� 6(�*���� �
�������	�������� �� !"��!#!$%& �#+����	 ���'�!%�, �������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ���� ���'��(��)*��������� �������	��	����� �� !"��!#!$%& ��	� ��((�'����0������ �
�	�����4&� �/# !�5!D�#+!#7"��/D�%�,.!/&"��E&!5��	������������ ���� ������� ����� ���������������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� �5�#$�����#F$/ !, �
���������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� ��&&+!G�*4DH! �
���������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� 6�5!/����F�  �+!5 �
�����	���������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� �5�#$�����#F$/ !, �
���������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� 6�5!/����F�  �+!5 �
�����	���������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� F�5,����F�  �+!5 �
���������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� F�5,����F�  �+!5 ���������������� �5�/"E!5 ��
���������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� F�5,����F�  �+!5 �
���������������� ��,54  �)+!#7 �� F�5,����F�  �+!5 �������������� �I%!/"! �!5#+�/&��!5-$#!" ��������������� �I%!/"! �� �.,��7!5" �
���������������� �I%!/"! �� �.,��7!5" �
���������������� �I%!/"! �� �.,��7!5" ���������������� �5�/"E!5 ��
���������������� �I%!/"! J�����)����)�'�� �
���������������� �I%!/"! J�����)����)�'�� �
����	����������� �5�/"E!5 ��
���������������� ��I���,.!/& '�� �
����	����������� �5�/"E!5 ��
���������������� ($  ���,.!/& ���� )K�&54�)4/"K &�/&"
�1��� �
���������������� ($  ���,.!/& ���� ��1��� �	�������������� ($  ���,.!/& ���� )��'��1������)���)'1��2 ���������������� ($  ���,.!/& ���� 1�0���F'����'�F �
�	�������������� ($  ���,.!/& ���� ��L������')'��1�1��F��2 �
���������������� �I%!/"! ��� �����



����������

���

��	�
��	���

��� ���� ������� ����� ��������������������� ���� !� �"�# ��������������� ���� !�  �$$"%���$&�$�����'%�( ��)
)����*����	����� ���� !�  �$$"%���$&�$�����'%�( ��
����������	����� ���� !� ���)�� ��+,-. /���+01,�! �)���������	����� $+�21/�$.+2��.34� / ��
�)�������������� ���� !�  �$$"%���$&�$�����'%�( ��
���������������� ���� !� ���$�����#��%���� ��)�������������� �.3+566�$-�,7  &.+� ����8.66.-�+ ��
��)�)����������� �.3+566�$-�,7  �.//-�9�:52;� ��
����	����������� �.3+566�$-�,7  �+.,1�����,81 6�3 ��
���������������� �.3+566�$-�,7  8.+3���8.66.-�+ ��
��	�	)���������� �.3+566�$-�,7  8.+3���8.66.-�+ �����������*����� ���� !� $������"%����� �)��������*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ))*� ��� �����*�����*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ))*� ��� �����������*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ))*� ��� ����������������� ���� !� ��<������%$%��"�"��8��( �*
����)����������� ���� !� ��<���$������""������( ��
����	*���������� ���� !� #"��#�������"�$��%$ �����))���������� �.���.34� / %�� ��
���������������� $+�21/�$.+2��.34� / ���������������� ���� !� ��	���	� #%=��$�%�$� ���������������� ���� !� $������"%����� �)�����5/.6� ,6�.+�2�2��5!1/!�. 2�5/-�+�,+�21/!�.>/�+��	�)��������� ���� ������� ����� ��������������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �������� &#�:���� )
���������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �������� &#�:���� )
���������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ����	��� &#�:���� )
��)�*����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �������� &#�:���� )
�**������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ����	��* &#�:���� )
)�)�*����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ����	��� &#�:���� )
��*������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �)�� ���%���#��$:��������� �*��*����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ����	��� &#�:���� )
���������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �)	� ���%���#��$:��������� *��������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �)	� ���%���#��$:��������� ��	�)����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �)	� ���%���#��$:��������� )	)������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �)	� ���%���#��$:��������� ����)����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ .,-*���� ���%���.3 �
�����*���������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���� ���%���#��$:��������� )**�	)����*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ����	��	 &#�:���� ��������*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ .,-*���� ���%���.3 �
��)��*���������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���� ��� )��������������� ��,�10���.34� / ��*� $:��"%������& ���������������� ��,�10���.34� / ����* ���$:������'�"����( �
���������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ))*� ��� �	*�������	����� ��5!1/ ��<���$������""�� )	
)���������	����� ��5!1/ :����$������������%�"�( �
��*�)�����	����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���* ���%���#��$:��������� ����	)����	����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ����	�	� &#�:���� �
)	�������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���� ���%���#��$:��������� ���������)����� ��,�10���.34� / �����) ?�"�����'�"��������( ����������)����� �.6�!���,�1�/ �$:*�)�� ���%���.3 ����)����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���� ���%���#��$:��������� ����)����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���) ���%���#��$:��������� )�)�)����������� �.6�!���,�1�/ �$:*���) ���%���.3 **������������� ��,�10���.34� / �))� $5@ /3�"1 �����,1.6��/161/3�1!( ���������������� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���� ���%���#��$:��������� )���������*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ))�� ���%���.3 ��)�������*����� �.6�!���,�1�/ ���* ���%���#��$:��������� ������



����������

���

�������	�

��� ��� ������	 ����� ��������������������� �������� �!"# ���
 ��� $����	�%����$����� �������� �!"# �
�� ��&�'�(�)*�������� 
�
	������������ �������� �!"# �
�� ��&�'�(�)*�������� �$�	�
���������� �������� �!"# �)*��%�� ��&��"�+ �����	%����������� �������� �!"# �
�� ��&�'�(�)*�������� 
�%	$����������� �������� �!"# �)*����
 ��&��"�+ 
%�	�
���������� ��",�!# *����)�����������&�-�. �	������������ �������� �!"# �
�% ��&�'�(�)*�������� ���	�$���������� �������� �!"# �
�$ ��&�'�(�)*�������� %��	�
����%����� ��",�!# /!0��),1123! �#!,3����&3 	 ��	�$����%����� �������� �!"# � 4����� ��&��"�+ ���	$�����%����� �������� �!"# ����$��% 5(�*���� �����	
�����%����� �������� �!"# ����$��$ 5(�*���� ��%
�	
�����%����� �������� �!"# �
�� ��&�'�(�)*�������� 
��	�
����%����� �������� �!"# ����$��� 5(�*���� 
����	
�,#��



����������

���

����

	
������������������������ !��"# $%&&�'�$() "*��+��*�,�-./�.0�0�1+2342565%75341+)31789:��:
�9���;����������89:��:
�9�<�;=���
	�>�9>?��:���@9AB��9���>��A�:�
��A���9>��
A���9�>9�C�
�:�D�9�
���
A>9E�>��F'GG�"! �HIH���9B9��<9@
��
�@<����:9 JKL��J���	�9:MA���E��B9��A:�9�>9�N�O ����I9E�A
�A������9>:>9�
�A:�9�>9�N�O ����H���9B9��9��
�@<����:9 JKL�P����89@
A�9><����:9�A�����Q������ JKL�P����R $�*�SI9E�A
�A������9>:>9�
�A:�9�>9�N�OI?TU TVWU 8UXYZ� W?VUU ?=Z�YTN�HIO���Q������ I9E�A
� X[Y\ ����T����



����������

���

����	
�	����������	������	������ !�"��	#!!� ��$	%&�"��	'��"�(	�)*+�*����,'�-.�/0/#1/-.	,'%-,1234
�4��3�	
�5	����������234
�4��3�	6�5	7����	��8�389��	4��:3;	<��3	�
	�8��;�4��
�;	���38	��;	���3	�83�=�	��4�>�3�	��	��;	83?
8�@A BB��C �DED���3<3��	63:�����:	6����43 ���@���34F;	���	?��<3��;	4�3�83�	G�H �@��E3?
;��;	���	
�38	483���;	4�3�83�	G�H �@��D���3<3��	3����:	6����43 ���@��23:�;�38	6����43	�;	
�	�I�J������ ���@��



����������

���

�����

	
���������������������� !"#$�%�&''()�#*+ %"(�,��"�-�./��/0�0�1,$23$454&64231,+216789��9
�8���:����������789��9
�8�;�:<���
	�=�8=>��9���?8@A��8���=��@�9�
��@���8=��
@���8�=8�B�
�9�C�8�
���
@=8D�=��E)FF�%G �HIH���8A8��;8?
��
�?;����98 ������	�89J@���D��A8��@9�8�=8�K�L �����I8D�@
�@������8=9=8�
�@9�8�=8�K�L ����H���8A8��8��
�?;����98 ��M���78?
@�8=;����98�@���N�O������ ��M���� #�"�P	�89J@���D��A8��@9�8�=8�K�LI>QR QSTR 7RUVW� T>SRR ><W�VQK�HIL�N�O������ RXD8�@8 UY7HQZW	[\>7QV>QYWV>] �����Q����



����������

���

������	�

�������	��

������������������������� �!"�#$%&'(�)�*%+,�-&,%&'��./0�/1�1� -!23!454��423� -)2 �678��8��7����9�����������678��8��7��:�9�;�������<7<=���8���>7?�@��7���<��?�8���?���7<���?���7��<7�A���8�B�7�������?�<7C�<	�DEEF*G �HIH�7@7��:7>�����>�:����87 ��J����	J���78K?�����C��@7�?�8�7�<7��L�M �	��I7C�?�?�������7<�8<7��?�8�7�<7��L�M ������	�
H�7@7��7����>�:����87 ��J���J	��67>�?7<�:����87��?�����N�������� ��J���J	����7�<7��<��?�8���?���7<��N�������� �	����8�7�<7��<��?�8���?���7<��N�������� �������	��67>�?7<�:����87��?�������������� 
�J���J	��O�PF%QRI7C�?�?�������7<�8<7��?�8�7�<7��L�MI=ST SUVT 6TW�XY	 V=UTT =;Y�XS�L�HIM�N�������� S<��?�7< ������	���N��N����� S<��?�7< ������	���N�������� I7C�?� S7ZHS=6 ��	�
S����,,%P%+&FQ�4&[+*EFP%+&��8�7�<7���7C�?�?�������7<�8<7��?���7<��N��������I=ST SUVT 6TW�XY	 V=UTT =;Y�XS�L�HIM���������� S<��?�7< ������	������������ S<��?�7< ������	������J����� S<��?�7< ������	������������ S<��?�7< ������	��S���



���������	
���������������������������������������

�  �!�
��������� ��"#"

$%$&'&(()$(*+,,-./�&00-/012.3�&445+./067777�*8/9�5:�;<=2.>�*<-438.? @A6B6CDECF67776�;<=2.>�G5.-9�G2,3-/�&445+./ FABHI7E6H6777H�;<=2.>�*5.0/,+4/85.�&445+./ 677E776777@�;<=2.>�J-K8/�*2,>�&445+./ 67IECH6777F�$-L($&M�*<-438.? @HIB6CIEDC&445+./0�M-4-8N2K=-6H777�&445+./0�M-4-8N2K=-�O&PMQ 6HFBRR7EC6%/<-,�*+,,-./�&00-/06HC76�$-L20�*5ST/,5==-,�M-0-,N-0 FIDE6FU8L->�&00-/06D776�G24<8.-,9�V�)W+8TS-./ H6B@C7E77'X&1X'X$X)(�&YJ�)Z;X$['82K8=8/8-0*+,,-./�'82K8=8/8-0&445+./0�\292K=-H7777�&445+./0�\292K=-�O&P\Q CBC6REH6*,->8/�*2,>0H7C76�&P\�]�U+-=S2.�G20/-,42,> FB6@7EFA%/<-,�*+,,-./�'82K8=8/8-0H7D77�&P\�]�̂8SS9�G4*=8./543 @HB@CFEFIHHC77�(2=-0�$2L�\292K=- 6B77DERR)W+8/9@7777�M-/28.->�)2,.8.?0 6CDBRD6EH6@7776�%T-.8.?�12=2.4-�)W+8/9 66ABIC6ECRY-/�X.45S- CAHBRC@EIF



���������	
��������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#

$%$&'()*�+,+, %-$�+,./�0�()*�+,+,�12$34 5�%6�78-%9)7:;<=>?,,.,�&3�@AB<C>=�0�-ABDE>BB�-<F:GH +IJ??,K.,?,,..�&3�@AB<C>=�0�LAHM�-<F:GH NOIKPN O,J/P?K/P ,K+/�5?,,N,�(AB>M�$AQ�R>S>:F> TNJOPTKI+ +PPJ?N.K++ .PK+?�5?,.,,�UFVBDV:W�*>C=VG�7:;<=> N?J,NIK.? TIIJOITKNT +OKNI�5?,.,+�%((6�R>MVD>:GVAB +J?I,K,,?,.,T�(VW:�*>C=VGM NONK,,?,.,?�$CA:MX<CGAGV<:�6>>�0�-Y) +N,K,,?,.,N�$CA:MX<CGAGV<:�6>>M�0�9VBB;C>>Z +J?NIK,, ?.JON+K,, .K+N�5?,.,I�$CA:MX<CGAGV<:�6>>�0�[U�L<=>M ++J.,?K,, ..?J+,?K,, ..K+O�5?,.,O�6FGFC>�R<ADEAH�6F:DM .TJN,PK,,?,.N,�(F\DVSVMV<:�7:;<=> TNJNPTKT, ./PJN+,K/N .PK.?�5?,.NN�UVBBA\B>�)QX>:M>�7:;<=> +TJ/I+K?O OOJ/?OKPN .+K++�5?,+,,�(<BVD�]AMG>�(>CSV;>M .+J?POKNN .I?J.P+KPO IKTO�5?,+,.�6CA:;̂VM>�6>>M TPJIO,K+N?,+,+�(<BVD�]AMG>�(>CSV;>M�0�R>MG<CAGV<:_'AG>�6>> .JIINK,,?,T,,�-<==F:VGH�->:G>C�R>:GAB ?JP,,K,,?,T+,�3<:AGV<:M IN,K,,?,TN,�6VB=�6CV>:DBH�6>> N,,K,,?,TNN�'<GG>CH�6>> .OKNI?,N,,�&D=V:VMGCAGV<:�6>>�7:;<=> /J,N/KP, +TJ//TK/. ?KI+�5?,NN,�9>C;̂A:G�*C<;>MMV:W�6>>�7:;<=> .,K,, ?J,O?KTO ,K,.�5?,/,,�7:G>C>MG�7:;<=> NTK,O O,/K/N ,K,T�5-<MG�<̀�Y<<DM�(<BDN,,N,�(AB>M�$AQ�7:;<=>�0�(GAG>�(>CSV;>�6>>M O.?K// NJOO,KN, ,KTI�5N,,N.�)3-�(AB>M�$AQ�7:;<=>�$CA:M̀>CM ..JO..K/T /?J.OIK,I NK/O�5N,.NN�UVBBA\B>�)QX>:M>M OJ+NNK/O OIJ+,OKN. TKO,�5YR%((�*R%67$)QX>:M>MI,,,,�-AXVGAB�)QX>:DVGFC>M I?J,+.KP,I,,N,�-<==F:VGH�%FGC>A;̂ .JOIIKO+I,,N.�-<=XFG>C�)QX>:M>�a�R>XAVC N,IKOT ..JNI.K.+ ,K+I�5I,,NT�-<:GV:FV:W�)DF;AGV<:_$CAV:V:W .JT?OKN,I,,NN�-<:GCA;G�'A\<C .TJP,,K,, P,JTO.KI/ OK,?�5I,,NO�3F>M�'V;>:M>M�a�(F\M;CVXGV<:M .TIK?, .J.O.K/, ,K,O�5I,,N/�)=XB<H>>�9<CAB> I?K,I I,,KO? ,K,T�5I,,I,�6>>M�0�&;;<F:GV:W .IJ,,,K,,



���������	
��������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ���!"

#$#%&'()�*+*+ $,#�*+-.�/�'()�*+*+�01#23 4�$5�67,$8(9++9:�5;;<�/�=>>??;;@ABC D.:EF+ GHII.EDD +E:+�49++9D�5;;<�/�,>B<JKLABC -+H*:IE.:9++G-�5;;<�/�&;CMK FHI*DE++ D:HGGDE++ *EF9�49++G*�5;;<�/�8;;LABC< -DE.. -99E+I +E+-�49++GD�5;;<�/�)N>O;<<A>BMK -HDI.E*+ FHG*DEIF +EI-�49++GI�5;;<�/�)N>@;NLP�#MQ�,>KK;RLA>B 9FDED+9++G.�5;;<�/�SM<L;�,>KK;RLA>B GH9--EG* -+DH:I-E9F :EII�49++I-�'TMKK�(UJA@T;BL�V�#>>K<�W�X*HD++ DFGE:I9++IG�5J;K ::*E*+ FH:G.EI. +E-G�49++.+�67'�/�&AMYAKALP :H+G*E+99++.-�67'�/�(T@K>P;;�=;B;OAL�6B<JNMBR; *H+.FEID :*H*-FE9* -E+G�49++.*�67'�/�S>N?;N<�,>T@;B<MLA>B 9H+IIE++G++*+�=MB?�,ZMNC;< -:FE.G D9*E*9 +E+G�4G++:+�8;NRZMBL�';N[AR;�5;;< -G.E+G GHFG:E-- +E+.�4G++D9�8MN?;LABC�/�S;Y<AL; *HD.:E*DG++9D�)><LMC; *HGDFEG+G++G+�\;BL�/�]MBAL>NAMK�(UJA@T;BL -HG+-ED+G++GD�\V8�0)JYKAR�S>N?<H�\>M̂<H�=JAK̂ABC<3 *.E-F -9H.GGE9G +E+-�4G++.+�)MPN>KK�/�(Q@;B<;<G++.-�)MPN>KK�/�'MKMNA;< +E++G++.*�)MPN>KK�/�'MKMNA;<�/�,ALP�%̂TABA<LNML>N DHG-+EF9 IFHIGDE-- *E.-�4G++.:�)MPN>KK�/�'MKMNA;<�/�,ALP�';RN;LMNP -9H+I+EG.G++.F�)MPN>KK�/�'MKMNA;<�/�,ALP�,K;N? FH*:+EF+ -IH.I9EI: *E-9�4G++.D�)MPN>KK�/�'MKMNA;<�/�)JYKAR�S>N?<�&;M̂ FH+I+E:I D:HG.-E+. *E+I�4G++.9�)MPN>KK�/�'MKMNA;<�/�)JYKAR�S>N?< *H9.GEG+ :FH.I*E+D -E:I�4G+*++�)MPN>KK�/�#MQ;< -H*GIE.9 -DH.99EGF +E9D�4G+*-+�)MPN>KK�/�';N[AR;�5;;< -*:E9D -HF-.EI. +E+9�4G+**+�_BAO>NT< *.DE.9G+:++�'J@@KA;<�/�$OOAR; *H*-*EFF GH-:9E:+ -E-:�4G+:+-�'J@@KA;<�/�]MBAL>NAMK D-DE99G+:+*�'J@@KA;<�/�8MABL;BMBR; D9-E+:G+F++�#;K;@Z>B;�V�6BL;NB;L *:DEII :H--GEF. +E-*�4G+FD+�#NM[;K�/�8AK;MC;�\;ATYJN<;T;BL< *H-I*EI*G+D++�_LAKALA;< F.:E9I DHDG+E-. +E*D�47(#�$)(\%#67̀ �67,$8($LZ;N�6BR>T;I++.+�6BR>T;�/�$LZ;N 0.-EI-3 0GIE-.3 0+E+D�43



���������	
��������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"!

#$#%&'()�*+*+ $,#�*+-.�/�'()�*+*+�01#23 4�$5�67,$8(9+-++�:;<=>�6=?@AB *-CD*C-E+F$>GB;�(HIB=JBJ9+-+-�:;<=>�(HIB=JB *-KDLMLE*97(#�$#N(O�67,$8(7(#�67,$8(



���������	
�����������������������������������������

�  �!�
���"�"��� ��#$#

%&'()(*+,%+(-) ./(0&()1�23,'(+* 3&4�/50%)& 6/+/,3�,-%&7%8�('2%4+�633* 2/.0(4�7-,9* */.&(:(*(-) 7%*+3�'%)%13'3)+ +-+%0(;<=>?@AABB�%&�:CD=E?>�F�5CGH�4=I;JG KLMNOK PKLMNOK@AAKA�*CD?H�+CQ�,?R?;I? BBSTBMNMO BBSTKANUM BBSTBMNMO PVKSLOVNMU@ABAA�.IWDXW;Y�2?E>WJ�(;<=>? ANAA K@SAKMNB@ PK@SAKMNB@@ABAK�+EC;HZ=EJCJW=;�6??H�F�'WDD<E??[ US@KMNAA PUS@KMNAA@ABAM�+EC;HZ=EJCJW=;�6??�F�9.�5=>?H UUSBA@NAA PUUSBA@NAA@ABKA�*I\XWRWHW=;�(;<=>? VKSKOVNVA PVKSKOVNVA@ABKK�.WDDC\D?�3QZ?;H?�(;<=>? UVSTMUN@L PUVSTMUN@L@AUAA�*=DWX�7CHJ?�*?ERW<?H BUS@OLNKK PBUS@OLNKK@AKAA�%X>W;WHJECJW=;�6??�(;<=>? TSAKTNOA PTSAKTNOA@AKKA�'?E<]C;J�2E=<?HHW;Y�6??�(;<=>? BANAA PBANAA@ATAA�(;J?E?HJ�(;<=>? KVNAL PKVNAL4=HJ�=̂�1==XH�*=DXKAAKA�*CD?H�+CQ�(;<=>?�F�*JCJ?�*?ERW<?�6??H UVONVV UVONVV UVONVV PLB@NTTKAAKB�3&4�*CD?H�+CQ�(;<=>?�+EC;Ĥ?EH BBSLBBNTV PBBSLBBNTVKABKK�.WDDC\D?�3QZ?;H?H BSBOVNMM MSALUNVB PLSUKKNTL1,-**�2,-6(+3QZ?;H?HMAAKB�4=>ZIJ?E�3QZ?;H?�_�,?ZCWE KAMNLV PKAMNLVMAAKK�4=;JEC<J�0C\=E BVSOAANAA PBVSOAANAAMAAKL�&I?H�0W<?;H?H�_�*I\H<EWZJW=;H BVMN@A PBVMN@AMAAKT�3>ZD=G??�'=ECD? M@NAM PM@NAMMAAMV�6??H�F�.==[[??ZW;Y KTVN@A PKTVN@AMAALB�6??H�F�0?YCD @SOUKNAA P@SOUKNAAMAALU�6??H�F�'??JW;YH BKNTT PBKNTTMAALK�6??H�F�2E=̂?HHW=;CD BSK@ONMB @ANKT PBSKOTNUAMAALT�6??H�F�7CHJ?�4=DD?<JW=; LSMBBNLU PLSMBBNLUMAAOL�6I?D VVUNUA PVVUNUAMAATB�()*�F�3>ZD=G??�.?;?̂WJ�(;HIEC;<? KTMNTL BS@TLNOO PUSAT@NOKLAAUA�.C;[�4]CEY?H V@NTL BAANAA PBV@NTLLAAVA�'?E<]C;J�*?ERW<?�6??H BLTNAL PBLTNALLAALK�,_'�̀2I\DW<�7=E[HS�,=CXHS�.IWDXW;YHa V@NML K̀NKVa PUTNB@LAATA�2CGE=DD�F�3QZ?;H?H PANAALAATB�2CGE=DD�F�*CDCEW?H PANAALAATU�2CGE=DD�F�*CDCEW?H�F�4WJG�%X>W;WHJECJ=E KSLBAN@M PKSLBAN@MLAAT@�2CGE=DD�F�*CDCEW?H�F�4WJG�4D?E[ @SUVAN@A P@SUVAN@ALAATK�2CGE=DD�F�*CDCEW?H�F�2I\DW<�7=E[H�0?CX @SAOANVO P@SAOANVOLAATM�2CGE=DD�F�*CDCEW?H�F�2I\DW<�7=E[H USMTLNLA PUSMTLNLALAUAA�2CGE=DD�F�+CQ?H LMAN@M KBONKA PBSULONTMLAUBA�2CGE=DD�F�*?ERW<?�6??H MBNOU MBNOV PBUVNMKLAVAA�*IZZDW?H�F�-̂ Ŵ<? USUBUN@@ PUSUBUN@@LA@AA�+?D?Z]=;?�_�(;J?E;?J UVKNOO PUVKNOOLAKAA�/JWDWJW?H U@LNKM U@MNBU P@TVNMO)3+�-23,%+()1�()4-'3-J]?E�(;<=>?OAATA�(;<=>?�F�-J]?E BANAV B̀ABNO@a P�̀TBNOBa)3+�-+53,�()4-'3)3+�()4-'3



���������	
����������������������������������������������� !"�#���$��%����� � 

����&�
���'�'��� ��!()

*+,-.-/01*0-2. 34-5+-.6�781,-0/ 92,,4.-0:�98.081 8+9�4;5*.+ <40418�12*+=*:�-,7*90�<88/->?@ABCDDED�*+�FGH@IBA�J�9GHKLBHH�9@M>NO PQRSSTUDCDDEE�*+�FGH@IBA�J�;GOV�9@M>NO RRQRWWTXRCDDYD�/GHBV�0GZ�1B[B>MB SWQEXYTUC SWQDSSTYWCDEDD�3M\HK\>]�7BIA\N�->?@AB DTDD RWCQDWSTEE PQWSCTCPCDEDP�2//<�1BV\KB>N\GH PQCWDTDDCDEDR�/\]>�7BIA\NV CPYTDD EYDTDDCDEDC�0IG>V̂@INGN\@>�<BB�J�968CDEDY�0IG>V̂@INGN\@>�<BBV�J�,\HH?IBB_ CEQXYPTDDCDEDW�0IG>V̂@INGN\@>�<BB�J�̀3�;@ABV EDCQRUDTDDCDEDX�<MNMIB�1@GKLGO�<M>KV ERQYDUTDDCDEYD�/MaK\[\V\@>�->?@AB DTDDCDEYY�3\HHGaHB�8ẐB>VB�->?@AB EQYRYTSS PQESDTDDCDPDD�/@H\K�=GVNB�/BI[\?BVCDPDE�<IG>?b\VB�<BBV RUQWXDTPYCDPDP�/@H\K�=GVNB�/BI[\?BV�J�1BVN@IGN\@>c5GNB�<BBCDRDD�9@AAM>\NO�9B>NBI�1B>NGH CQUDDTDDCDRPD�+@>GN\@>V WYDTDDCDRYD�<\HA�<I\B>KHO�<BB YDDTDDCDRYY�5@NNBIO�<BB EXTYWCDYDD�*KA\>\VNIGN\@>�<BB�->?@AB PRQSSRTSECDYYD�,BI?bG>N�7I@?BVV\>]�<BB�->?@AB CQDXCTRXCDSDD�->NBIBVN�->?@AB XDSTSY9@VN�@d�6@@KV�/@HKYDDYD�/GHBV�0GZ�->?@AB�J�/NGNB�/BI[\?B�<BBV EQSPRTYE EQSPRTYDYDDYE�8+9�/GHBV�0GZ�->?@AB�0IG>VdBIV SCQEXWTDWYDEYY�3\HHGaHB�8ẐB>VBV PQWPRTWW PQESDTDD612//�712<-08ẐB>VBVWDDDD�9Ĝ\NGH�8ẐB>K\NMIBVWDDYD�9@AAM>\NO�2MNIBG?b EQXWWTXPWDDYE�9@Â MNBI�8ẐB>VB�e�1B̂G\I SQDCCTWC SEETCXWDDYR�9@>N\>M\>]�8KM?GN\@>c0IG\>\>] EQRCXTYDWDDYY�9@>NIG?N�5Ga@I UDQRXETWSWDDYX�+MBV�5\?B>VBV�e�/MaV?I\̂N\@>V EQDXETSD EDDTDDWDDYS�8Â H@OBB�,@IGHB YRWTEEWDDWD�<BBV�J�*??@M>N\>] EWQDDDTDDWDDWR�<BBV�J�3@@__BB̂\>] XQUUSTYYWDDWY�<BBV�J�9@>VMHN\>] PQCSUTXYWDDXE�<BBV�J�5B]GH YRQXXYTDDWDDXP�<BBV�J�,BBN\>]V EWWTDUWDDXY�<BBV�J�7I@dBVV\@>GH CQPUPTRDWDDXU�<BBV�J�7I@̂BINO�0GZ�9@HHB?N\@> WCYTYDWDDXS�<BBV�J�=GVNB�9@HHB?N\@>WDDUE�/AGHH�8fM\̂AB>N�e�0@@HV�g�hPQYDDWDDUX�<MBHWDDSD�-./�J�5\Ga\H\NO RQDXPTDWWDDSE�-./�J�8Â H@OBB�3B>Bd\N�->VMIG>?B EEQSEPTWCWDDSP�-./�J�=@I_BIV�9@Â B>VGN\@> RQDCCTDDXDDPD�3G>_�9bGI]BV RUWTWC YTDDXDDRD�,BI?bG>N�/BI[\?B�<BBV XQCXRTEEXDDYW�,GI_BN\>]�J�=BaV\NB PQYSRTPY



���������	
����������������������������������������������� !"�#���$��%����� � 

����&�
���'�'��� ���()

*+,-.-/01*0-2. 34-5+-.6�781,-0/ 92,,4.-0:�98.081 8+9�4;5*.+ <40418�12*+=*:�-,7*90�<88/>??@A�7BCDEFG >HIJA?>??>?�1GKD�L�MEKNDBONEP�8QRNSTGKD UV>?UJA?>??>A�1W,�X7RYPNZ�=BO[CV�1BE\CV�3RNP\NKFC] ÎĴ? _̀>JH@>??H?�7EaOBPP�L�8bSGKCGC>??HU�7EaOBPP�L�/EPEONGC>??H̀�7EaOBPP�L�/EPEONGC�L�9NDa�*\TNKNCDOEDBO ÎV̂>AJUU>??H_�7EaOBPP�L�/EPEONGC�L�9NDa�/GZOGDEOa U@V?̂?J>H>??HI�7EaOBPP�L�/EPEONGC�L�9NDa�9PGO[ ÛVĤ@Ĵ_>??HA�7EaOBPP�L�/EPEONGC�L�7RYPNZ�=BO[C�5GE\>??H@�7EaOBPP�L�/EPEONGC�L�7RYPNZ�=BO[C>?̀??�7EaOBPP�L�0EbGC HVI_̂J>̂>?̀U?�7EaOBPP�L�/GOcNZG�<GGC >?HJĤ>?̀ ?̀�4KNdBOTC>?_??�/RSSPNGC�L�2ddNZG @VA?@J>_ >?J?U>?_?U�/RSSPNGC�L�MEKNDBONEP I_JIA @̀̀J̀@>?_?̀�/RSSPNGC�L�,ENKDGKEKZG U>̂JI>>?I??�0GPGSeBKG�W�-KDGOKGD V̀̂I@J?A>?IA?�0OEcGP�L�,NPGEFG�1GNTYROCGTGKDC V̀Û J̀̀̂>?A??�4DNPNDNGC V̀?̂HJUA H??J__.80�2781*0-.6�-.92,82DeGO�-KZBTG?̂?H?�-KZBTG�L�2DeGO U@>JII?̂U??�6OEKD�-KZBTG2DeGO�8bSGKCGC?̂U?U�6OEKD�8bSGKCG U?VI@HJ@̀.80�20;81�-.92,8.80�-.92,8



���������	
����������������������������������������������� !"�#���$��%����� � 

����&�
���'�'��� ��()*

+,-,./0�0/-1�23345, 678045�92.:; ;7814<4;42- =>�518+�+./-=; 9/;=,�?/-/+,?,-= =2=/04@ABCDEFFGF�/1�<HIBJDC�K�5HILMDII�5BN@OP QERFEFSTF UQVREEFSGFEFFGG�/1�<HIBJDC�K�WHPX�5BN@OP TYRVGZSQ[ UYFR\ZES\ZEFF[F�;HIDX�=H]�.D̂D@ND \VRGY[SZQ FSFF UQZZRE[GSQQEFGFF�8N_IL_@̀�6DJC_O�4@ABCD UTVVRYVTS[TEFGFQ�2;;3�.DX_LD@O_HI UQREVFSFFEFGFT�;_̀@�6DJC_OX U[Y[SFFEFGFE�=JH@XaBJOHO_B@�3DD�K�5+, Q[FSFF UQ[FSFFEFGF[�=JH@XaBJOHO_B@�3DDX�K�?_IIAJDDb UEGRY[QSFFEFGFV�=JH@XaBJOHO_B@�3DD�K�:8�WBCDX \RZQESFF UGGERQFESFFEFGFY�3NONJD�.BHLMHP�3N@LX UGTR[FZSFFEFG[F�;NcL_̂_X_B@�4@ABCD G\ZR[QFS\[ UG\ZR[QFS\[EFG[[�8_IIHcID�,]aD@XD�4@ABCD YERQQGSZV UYYR\EYSZ[EFQFF�;BI_L�9HXOD�;DĴ_ADX GRFZFSVZ GVTRGFQSG\ UGVERGZQSZYEFQFG�3JH@Ad_XD�3DDX FSFF UTZRVYFSQ[EFQFQ�;BI_L�9HXOD�;DĴ_ADX�K�.DXOBJHO_B@e0HOD�3DD GRVV[SFF UGRVV[SFFEFTFF�5BCCN@_OP�5D@ODJ�.D@OHI UERZFFSFFEFTQF�1B@HO_B@X UV[FSFFEFT[F�3_IC�3J_D@LIP�3DD U[FFSFFEFT[[�0BOODJP�3DD UGYS[VEF[FF�/LC_@_XOJHO_B@�3DD�4@ABCD UQTR\\TS\GEF[[F�?DJAdH@O�6JBADXX_@̀�3DD�4@ABCD UERFYESTYEF\FF�4@ODJDXO�4@ABCD UYF\S\[5BXO�Bf�+BBLX�;BIL[FF[F�;HIDX�=H]�4@ABCD�K�;OHOD�;DĴ_AD�3DDX GR\QTSE\ U[RYYFS[F[FF[G�,15�;HIDX�=H]�4@ABCD�=JH@XfDJX U\ERGYVSFV[FG[[�8_IIHcID�,]aD@XDX YGRT\TSZ[ FSFF UYVRQFYS[G+.2;;�6.234=,]aD@XDXVFFFF�5Ha_OHI�,]aD@L_ONJDX VERFQGSZF UVERFQGSZFVFF[F�5BCCN@_OP�2NOJDHAd UGRYVVSYQVFF[G�5BCaNODJ�,]aD@XD�g�.DaH_J GRVF[SFG UGGR[VGSGQVFF[T�5B@O_@N_@̀�,LNAHO_B@e=JH_@_@̀ UGRTEYS[FVFF[[�5B@OJHAO�0HcBJ UZFRTYGSV\VFF[Y�1NDX�0_AD@XDX�g�;NcXAJ_aO_B@X UGRGYGS\FVFF[\�,CaIBPDD�?BJHID VESVT UVFFSYEVFFVF�3DDX�K�/AABN@O_@̀ UGVRFFFSFFVFFVT�3DDX�K�8BBbbDDa_@̀ UYRZZ\S[[VFFV[�3DDX�K�5B@XNIO_@̀ YRYEFSGZ UGFRQTZS\TVFFYG�3DDX�K�0D̀HI U[TRYY[SFFVFFYQ�3DDX�K�?DDO_@̀X UGVVSFZVFFY[�3DDX�K�6JBfDXX_B@HI EETS[E UERYQ[SZEVFFYZ�3DDX�K�6JBaDJOP�=H]�5BIIDAO_B@ UVE[S[FVFFY\�3DDX�K�9HXOD�5BIIDAO_B@ GF[RTZGSVE UGF[RTZGSVEVFFZG�;CHII�,hN_aCD@O�g�=BBIX�i�UQR[FF [EYSTZ U[EYSTZVFFZY�3NDI ERTY\SZ\ UERTY\SZ\VFF\F�4-;�K�0_Hc_I_OP UTRFYQSFVVFF\G�4-;�K�,CaIBPDD�8D@Df_O�4@XNJH@AD QFRTFGS\Z UTQRQGESVQVFF\Q�4-;�K�9BJbDJX�5BCaD@XHO_B@ TRFEESFF UVRFZZSFFYFFQF�8H@b�5dHJ̀DX GYFSVQ U[VQSQVYFFTF�?DJAdH@O�;DĴ_AD�3DDX UYREYTSGGYFF[V�?HJbDO_@̀�K�9DcX_OD UQR[\TSQ[



���������	
����������������������������������������������� !"�#���$��%����� � 

����&�
���'�'��� ��()(

*+,+-./�/.,0�12234+ 567/34�81-9: :6703;3:31, <=�407*�*-.,<: 8.:<+�>.,.*+>+,< <1<./?@@AB�5CDEFGH IJKA@LM@ NMJ?BOL?@?@@?@�-HPE�Q�RFPSECTSFU�+VWSXYHPE NIJ?@ILB@?@@?B�-Z>�[5W\US]�8CT̂DJ�-CF_DJ�7WSU_SPGD̀ IBJa?ALOM IJIbbLOK NIAJK??LA??@@K@�5FcTCUU�Q�+dXHPDHD N@L@@?@@KI�5FcTCUU�Q�:FUFTSHD N@L@@?@@KM�5FcTCUU�Q�:FUFTSHD�Q�4SEc�._YSPSDETFECT NbOJb?BLII?@@Ka�5FcTCUU�Q�:FUFTSHD�Q�4SEc�:H]THEFTc NIAJ@b@L?K?@@KO�5FcTCUU�Q�:FUFTSHD�Q�4SEc�4UHT̂ NIbJKbALba?@@KB�5FcTCUU�Q�:FUFTSHD�Q�5W\US]�8CT̂D�/HF_ BaJ?KIL@K NBaJ?KIL@K?@@KA�5FcTCUU�Q�:FUFTSHD�Q�5W\US]�8CT̂D aOJKbML@B NaOJKbML@B?@M@@�5FcTCUU�Q�<FdHD AJBM?LKA NIBJKAAL?O?@MI@�5FcTCUU�Q�:HTeS]H�2HHD ?@KLKI NIJOIKLbK?@MM@�6PSfCTYD MKBLKA NMKBLKA?@a@@�:WXXUSHD�Q�1ffS]H b?LBA O?ML@@ N?JIaALa@?@a@I�:WXXUSHD�Q�RFPSECTSFU M@KLKB NBIBLAA?@a@M�:WXXUSHD�Q�>FSPEHPFP]H abMLBA NBAIL@a?@O@@�<HUHXgCPH�Z�3PEHTPHE M?ILOO NaJII?LOK?@OB@�<TFeHU�Q�>SUHFGH�-HSY\WTDHYHPED NMJIbMLbM?@B@@�6ESUSESHD MJBb@L?I NBJB?@LIK,+<�15+-.<3,*�3,41>+1EgHT�3P]CYHb@@K@�3P]CYH�Q�1EgHT [MOBLAà N�[?bLIK̀b@I@@�*TFPE�3P]CYH BIJaOML@@ IBJIaOLAK IObJ??OLaB NMIBJMBIL@O1EgHT�+dXHPDHDb@I@I�*TFPE�+dXHPDH aaJM@?Lb? IBJbBbLOO IBOJIO@LaB NMIaJA?ALMb,+<�1<h+-�3,41>+,+<�3,41>+



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"!#

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'56666�+789�:;�0<=>?@�+<ABC7?D4AD7??7?D�4>=>?BA EFGHI55JKE6L3653M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMGL 1/) OAPQ78�7?B:QA F6J6R�EFGHIR5JKK6L3653M6M6 &P>?N;AP B<ABC7?D�8:�&AS*8>P TMRH666J66UEM5HIR5JKK6L3653M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMI6 1/) OAPQ78�7?B:QA 5H5RFJGR�EMMHL6GJRE6L3653M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMR6 0*&,�AO>9 V>N8A�7?B:QA 5HEKLJGE�EMFHMLGJ5G6L36M3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKM 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA EGGJL6�EMFHGGEJ6G6L36M3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKE 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA M5LJIR�EMFHKKMJK56L36M3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKF 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA E6KJRR�EMRH5L5JEG6L36M3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMR5 Y4�X-1'* &P>?NO:P8>87:?�;AA 5HMMKJ66�EMGHF5LJEG6L36M3M6M6 47==�/>9QA?8�T+<ABCU FRER &'Z%*�$,*/-*%2�*.*&'1* O:P8�>�O:889�>8�+:QQ[?789�+A?8AP TG66J66UEMRHK5LJEG6L36M3M6M6 47==�/>9QA?8�T+<ABCU FRE5 '\�*&(''&�+-1/%). O:8�<:=A�;7==AP T5H5I6J66UEMFHGFLJEG6L36M3M6M6 47==�/>9QA?8�T+<ABCU FREM 2%)]̂ -($�+-110),&.�1%)%]'1')&�*'(_,+'* ]P>?8�;[?@N TEHRK5J66UEM5H6GKJEG6L36M3M6M6 'SOA?NA 1APB<>?8�*AP̀7BAN QAPB<>?8�>BB:[?8�;:P�Q9�OAPQ78 T56J66UEM5H6RKJEG6L36M3M6M6 47==�/>9QA?8�T+<ABCU FREE 2)_�')],)''(,)] TLH6G5J6GUE55HLLIJE66L36M3M6M6 +PA@78�+>P@�/>9QA?8 X:QA�$AO:8 X:QA�$AO:8�++�O>9QA?8 TFLJLLUE55HLFIJE56L36M3M6M6 47==�/>9QA?8�T+<ABCU FREF /%&X1%(Y�&(%̂ ,̂+�/(-$0+& 8P>;;7B�N7D?N T5HRMFJF6UE56HFMMJL56L36E3M6M6 'SOA?NA $$ %Q9�%CAPN =AD>= TGHEMRJ66UE6FH6LIJL56L36E3M6M6 'SOA?NA $$ %Q9�%CAPN =AD>= T5HG66J66UE6MHFLIJL56L36E3M6M6 'SOA?NA a%*&'�+-))'+&,-) %[D[N8��*AO8AQbAP�M6M6�+:QQAPB7>=�>BB:[?8N�>?@�PAN7@A?87>=�PAB9B=A TIHG55JIMUMLFHKKGJ5L6L36E3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ &P>B7�(J�1B]7?=A9 />9�/AP7:@c�6K3M63M6M6W6L36M3M6M6 T5HKR5J6RUMLEH6ERJ5F6L36E3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ ]>P9�$J�]>==><AP />9�/AP7:@c�6K3M63M6M6W6L36M3M6M6 TMR6J66UMLMHIKRJ5F6L36E3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ Y>PA?�*J�]>==><AP />9�/AP7:@c�6K3M63M6M6W6L36M3M6M6 TMHEGFJE6UML6HFM6JKF6L36E3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ 1>88<AV�X:@DA />9�/AP7:@c�6K3M63M6M6W6L36M3M6M6 T5H5REJR6UMKLHMGIJEF6L36E3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ ]>P9�$J�]>==><AP />9�/AP7:@c�6K3M63M6M6W6L36M3M6M6 T5HFRMJ5MUMKIHK5RJMM6L36F3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKR 0*&,�AO>9 V>N8A�7?B:QA GEGJEE�MKKHFR5JRR6L36K3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKG 0*&,�AO>9 V>N8A�7?B:QA MGMJK5�MKKHI5FJEG6L36K3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMK5 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA FE6JFE�MKLH5FFJIL6L36K3M6M6 +PA@78�+>P@�/>9QA?8 [̂A=Q>?�̂=AA8�/P:DP>Q�1>N8AP�+>P@ [̂A=Q>?�1+�+PA@78�B>P@�O>9QA?8 TFH6RMJIKUMKRH6LMJ656L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIG Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ781/)�MR6�2A?> EHKRLJG6�MKKHLR5JG56L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIK Y4�X-1'* _:7@A@�W�*4�/APQ78 6J66�MKKHLR5JG56L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMII Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78�1/)�MRK�a7=Q> EHRMGJ66�MLMHFIIJG56L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIR Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ781/)�5MM�a7=Q> FHMFGJK6�MLGHIMFJF56L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIM Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 FH66IJG6�E66HIEMJ656L36L3M6M6 +PA@78�+>P@�/>9QA?8 [̂A=Q>?�̂[A=�+PA@78�+>P@�O>9QA?8 TEIJLKUE66HGLFJ6E6L36L3M6M6 +PA@78�+>P@�/>9QA?8 &(%+&-(�*0//2. &P>B8:P�*[OO=9�+PA@78�+>P@�O>9QA?8 TGLJERUE66HGMFJGK6L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIF Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ781/)��MGG�2A?>�=>?A FHEL6J66�E6RH65FJGK6L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIE Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 FHE6KJK6�E6LHEMEJFK6L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMK6 Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78�1/)�M6M�2A?>�2>?A EHIR6J66�E5EH6IEJFK6L36L3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMIL Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78�M6F�a7=<AQ�a>9 EHRIMJF6�E5GHGFRJKK6L3563M6M6 d:[P?>=�'?8P9 d' (ÀAPNA�,(*�&>S�/>9QA?8�W�@[O=7B>8A�A?8P9 5HLMIJF5�E5KHRIEJML6L3563M6M6 />9QA?8 565FF (%)+X�(-%$�$'_'2-/1')& LFEJMR�E5LHR5GJRF6L3563M6M6 'SOA?NA 1APB<>?8�*AP̀7BAN QAPB<>?8�>BB:[?8�;:P�Q9�OAPQ78 T5GLJ6IUE5LHEFIJFI6L3563M6M6 $AO:N78 X%.*�+-0)&.�%//(%*,%2�$,*&(,+& >@̀:P=AQ�7?B:QA RIGJKR�E5LHLMFJEM6L3563M6M6 'SOA?NA ,(* T5HLMIJF5UE5IHLLGJL56L3563M6M6 &>S�/>9QA?8 ,(* &>S�/>9QA?8�;:P�/AP7:@c�6L36M3M6M6W6L36F3M6M6 T5HLMIJF5UE5GH6GLJR66L3563M6M6 />9QA?8 5MRF (%)+X�(-%$�$'_'2-/1')& 55H65MJRR�EMIH6KMJ6R6L3563M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EML5 $(�X-(&-) $P�X:P8:?�*4�/APQ78�1/)��++ KHLR5JE6�EEGH6EEJER6L3553M6M6 'SOA?NA 0X2%)$�'+-)-1,+�$'_'2-/1')&�+-(/-(%&,-)�T'$+U *>=AN�8>S�,?B:QA�W�e[=9�M6M6 TLHGFIJF6UEMGHEKRJLR6L35F3M6M6 />9QA?8 5RR &:@@�4[PAC MHMKKJ66�EMKHGIEJLR6L35F3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKK 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA M5KJMF�EMKHKLMJ5L6L35F3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKL 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA M6EJR5�EMLH6LRJI66L35F3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EML6 0*&,�AO>9 V>N8A�7?B:QA G6EJFK�EMLHGLLJ5K6L35F3M6M6 $AO:N78 &'Z%*�+-1/&(-22'( *>=AN�&>S�,?B:QA ERH5ERJIK�EGFHKEFJLG6L35R3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMKI 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA 5IGJMF�EGRH655JM66L35R3M6M6 'SOA?NA 6666KIG */'+&(01�40*,)'** *OAB8P[Q TMERJKKUEGFHIIRJEM6L35R3M6M6 />9QA?8 MR5M &Y�(%)+X 7?̀:7BA�O9Q8 5RFJ66�EGFHLMLJEM6L35G3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMLE 0*&,�AO>9 V>N8A�7?B:QA FMEJKG�EGRHEREJ5K6L35G3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMLM 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA 5KGJGM�EGRHRELJK66L35G3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EE6E Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 EHFGGJK6�EGLH66GJG66L35G3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EE6M Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 EHFGGJK6�EIMHFIEJF66L35G3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EE65 Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 FHM6IJG6�EIGHGK5J666L35G3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EE66 Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 EHFGGJK6�EK6H5FIJK66L35I3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ &P>B7�(J�1B]7?=A9 />9�/AP7:@c�6L36E3M6M6W6L35G3M6M6 T5HKR5J6RUEIKHMLGJIR6L35I3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EEMI Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78 EHRIMJF6�EK5HKGLJ5R6L35I3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ 1>88<AV�X:@DA />9�/AP7:@c�6L36E3M6M6W6L35G3M6M6 T5H5RFJERUEK6HI5FJK66L35I3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ ]>P9�$J�]>==><AP />9�/AP7:@c�6L36E3M6M6W6L35G3M6M6 T5J66UEK6HI5EJK66L35I3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ ]>P9�$J�]>==><AP />9�/AP7:@c�6L36E3M6M6W6L35G3M6M6 T5HI65J5MUEILH65MJGK6L35I3M6M6 />9P:==�+<ABC $$ Y>PA?�*J�]>==><AP />9�/AP7:@c�6L36E3M6M6W6L35G3M6M6 TMHEGFJE6UEIGHGFKJEK6L35I3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EEMG Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78��5RF�a7=Q>��1/) EHE6EJG6�EILHLR5JLK6L35I3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EEMR Y4�X-1'* *4�/APQ78�5LR�a7=Q> EHE6EJG6�EKEHMRRJRK6L35I3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMLR 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA EIMJKR�EKEHGMKJFE6L35I3M6M6 'SOA?NA &12�102&,*&%&'�,)&'(]-_'()1')&%2�'1/2-.''�4')'̂ ,&*�/--2 Q:?8<=9�AQO=:9AA�7?N[P>?BA TMH6LFJKRUEK5HREEJRK6L35I3M6M6 'SOA?NA +-0)&.�2,)'�*0$ V>8AP�b7== TEKJEEUEK5HFLRJMR6L35K3M6M6 *>=AN�(ABA7O8 EMLF 0*&,�W�4%&+X�/%.1')&* V>N8A�7?B:QA E5KJKE�EK5HK5FJ6K



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ���!"#

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'5637837575 '9:;<=; 420'4-))'&�'2'+&(,+ ;>;?@AB?�CB>> DEFFGHFIHJ8KHFJGLH5637737575 '9:;<=; &'M%*�+-1/&(-22'(�-N�/042,+�%++-0)&* OP=@;�P<Q�A;?R?>;�=P>;=�@P9�:RS@ D8K8HJGFFIHJ5K775G8J5637H37575 TUVA<P>�'<@AR T' (;W;A=;�,(*�&P9�/PRS;<@�X�$V:>B?P@;�'<@AR 8K67LGL5�HJ7K8ELGJJ5637H37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH8Y 0*&,�;:PR ZP=@;�B<?US; 8KYHJGFJ�HJHKLJYGEY5637H37575 '9:;<=; ,(* D8K67LGL5IHJ8KJFJGLY5637H37575 &P9�/PRS;<@ ,(* &P9�/PRS;<@�[UA�/;ABUQ\�5638Y37575X5638J37575 D8K67LGL5IHL6K6H8G5Y5637H37575 +A;QB@�+PAQ�/PRS;<@ NV;>SP<�NV;>�+A;QB@�+PAQ�:PRS;<@ DEG5YIHL6K67LG555637E37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH86 0*&,�;:PR ZP=@;�B<?US; E7FGYJ�HJ5KHF7GYJ5637E37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH8J 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; H76GFH�HJ5KYJ7G785637E37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH7E 4̂�]-1'* *4�/;ASB@�EEE�_V=@P[�:>P<�?̀P<a; 8K888GE6�HJ8KL6HGL55637E37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH8L 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; 658GL5�HJ7KY6FGE55637E37575 '9:;<=; N2)4 )*N D855G55IHJ7KF6FGE55637F37575 '9:;<=; 4,b�$-+�,)+G /AB<@;A�[;; DJ8G8JIHJ7KF8EG775637F37575 /PRS;<@ 8HHHF O']4'�/AU:;A@B;= 7KFLFG55�HJFK5J6G775637F37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HHH8 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; HHEG8L�HJFKE7HGH65637F37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HHH5 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; 8EEG6H�HJFKFYJGH75637F37575 /PRS;<@ 85HH _V<WP<@�_Pc;AP JKY55G55�H6EK8YJGH75637F37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH77 0*&,�;:PR ZP=@;�B<?US; 758G7E�H6EKHY6GFY5637F37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH78 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; E8HG75�H6EKLJ7GLY5637F37575 /PRS;<@ 8578 /'+%)�*/(,)_*�(d�/%(̂ HH6GYH�H6FK877GH65637F37575 /PRS;<@ 85HE _V<WP<@�_Pc;AP HJFG55�H6FKF5LGH65637F37575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH76 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; 8J8GJY�H6FKYJ6G7F5637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH5E +>;PA�+A;;eK�,<?G +USS;A?BP>�/;ASB@ 7KL75G55�H6JKE56G7F5637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH88 &%44�,1/(-d'1')&* 1]�:;ASB@= 7KE6YGJF�E55K65YG855637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH88 &%44�,1/(-d'1')&* 4VB>QB<a�/;ASB@= 1UWB<a�/;ASB@�D1]I�D1/)I�E�*UV@̀�/>VS�+A;;e DF55G55IE55KE5YG855637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH85 4̂�]-1'* *4�/;ASB@ HKF7FG75�E5HK6H8GH55637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH5Y 4̂�]-1'* *4�/;ASB@ HKFLEGJ5�E5LKF5YG855637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH5L 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; FYEGH8�E5JK5L5GE85637637575 &AP<=[;A ?̀;?eB<a�@U�&;9*@PA D7FK555G55IHJHK5L5GE85637637575 /PRS;<@ 87Y5 (%)+]�(-%$�$'d'2-/1')& 8LKJLFG55�E55K6EFGE85637637575 /PRS;<@ 85FY TU=̀�&̀UA<@U< HK758G55�E5EK8EYGE85637637575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH88 &%44�,1/(-d'1')&* 4VB>QB<a�/;ASB@= E�*UV@̀�/>VS�+A;;e D7F5G55IE5HKJ6YGE85637637575 '9:;<=; 0]2%)$�'+-)-1,+�$'d'2-/1')&�+-(/-(%&,-)�D'$+I *P>;=�@P9�,<?US;�X�*;:@;SC;A D88KL88G6HIH67K8JEGEJ5637637575 '9:;<=; 0]2%)$�'+-)-1,+�$'d'2-/1')&�+-(/-(%&,-)�D'$+I *P>;=�@P9�,<?US;�X�%VaV=@ D8HK7JHG7EIHLJK658G7E563H537575 $;:U=B@ N,(*&�2-+̂ ]%(&�)%&,-)%2�4%)̂ B<@;A;=@�B<?US; 8HG6J�HLJK68FG77563H537575 *P>;=�(;?;B:@ HH56 0*&,�X�4%&+]�/%.1')&* ZP=@;�B<?US; 7K7E7GH7�HJ8K8FLGFE85558�0̀ >P<Q�1U<;R�1PAe;@�%??UV<@4;aB<<B<a�4P>P<?; EJK7FEG8L563H537575 $;:U=B@ N,(*&�2-+̂ ]%(&�)%&,-)%2�4%)̂ ,<@;A;=@ FG6F� EJK7Y5G8785557�0̀ >P<Q�+U<=@AV?@BU<�%??UV<@4;aB<<B<a�4P>P<?; 855G558555H�0̀ >P<Q�$;CB@�+PAQ�%??UV<@4;aB<<B<a�4P>P<?; 888GF7563H537575 '9:;<=; N2)4 DFG55I 85YGF78555E�&;9*&%(�+̀ ;?eB<a4;aB<<B<a�4P>P<?; 7LYK87HGY85635837575 &AP<=[;A ?̀;?eB<a�@U�&;9*@PA 7FK555G55�H58K87HGY85637637575 &AP<=[;A ?̀;?eB<a�@U�&;9*@PA 7FK555G55�H7YK87HGY8563H537575 $;:U=B@ &;9*&%( 1U<@̀>R�,<@;A;=@ HHG8E�H7YK8FYGLF87555�%??UV<@=�(;?;BWPC>;�D%3(I4;aB<<B<a�4P>P<?; 85FKYHHGHL5635837575 ,<WUB?; H7EL _V<WP<@�_Pc;AP JKY55G55�88EK7HHGHL5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7YF &UQQ�4VA;e 7K7JJG55�88YKF78GHL5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7FH TU=̀�&̀UA<@U< HK758G55�886KL77GHL5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7F7 _V<WP<@�_Pc;AP HJFG55�875K85LGHL5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7FJ ,̂/�̂(-)')4'(_ LL5G55�875KJLLGHL5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7F6 (%)+]�(-%$�$'d'2-/1')& 6EHG7F�878KJ75GY75635737575 ,<WUB?; H7YJ &̀;�->Q�'>�+PSB<U�1U@U�+UVA@�P<Q�+PS:aAUV<Q YE7G8H�877KEY7GLF5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7FE O%2&-)�$'d'2-/1')&�%)$�1%)%_'1')& JJ5G55�87HKHE7GLF5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7FF &̀;�->Q�'>�+PSB<U�1U@U�+UVA@�P<Q�+PS:aAUV<Q 775G55�87HKFY7GLF5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7FY (%)+]�(-%$�$'d'2-/1')& 88K587GFF�8HEKFLFGH55635737575 ,<WUB?; H7FL +P:�$;W;>U:S;<@�22+ HKFL7G7F�8HJK8ELGFF5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7Y5 2%*�')&%)+,%*�7 7KE76GF6�8E5KFLLG8E5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7Y8 %0*X&'M3d,22%_'�]-1'* 8K656GJJ�8E7KEJLG575635737575 ,<WUB?; H7Y7 *V<�+USSV<B@B;= HKHH8GYH�8EFKJ8JGYF5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7YL &̂ �(%)+] 8FEG55�8EFK6L7GYF5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7YY /'+%)�*/(,)_*�(d�/%(̂ HH6GYH�8EYKH87G7J5635737575 ,<WUB?; H7YE +UV<@R�2B<;�*:;?BP>�0@B>B@R�$B=@AB?@ L6YG8H�8ELK85JGE85635737575 ,<WUB?; H7YH O']4'�/AU:;A@B;= 8KFE5G55�8EJKYEJGE85638537575 /PRS;<@ 87FE (%)+]�(-%$�$'d'2-/1')& D88K587GFFI8HLKYHFGJY5638537575 /PRS;<@ 858EE (%)+]�(-%$�$'d'2-/1')& D6EHG7FI8HYKY67GY85638E37575 /PRS;<@ 8FF &UQQ�4VA;e D7K7JJG55I8HEKE5EGY8



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#!

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'5637839595 /:;<=>? 9879 &@�(%)+A B78CD55E7FCG985DH75639839595 /:;<=>? 75FC IJ>K:>?�I:L=M: BFN8D55E7FFGNH8DH75639839595 /:;<=>? 75FF IJ>K:>?�I:L=M: BNGH55D55E798G9H8DH75639839595 /:;<=>? 7FFF8 O'A4'�/MPQ=M?R=S B9G8T8D55E799GH65DH75639839595 ,>KPRU= F96H (%)+A�(-%$�$'V'2-/1')& 9GNTTD55�798G8HTDH75639839595 ,>KPRU= F96N O'A4'�/MPQ=M?R=S 9G6HFD8F�79NG8F7D7C5639839595 ,>KPRU= F96T (%)+A�(-%$�$'V'2-/1')& 7TGNT8D55�7CHGC5HD7C5639839595 /:;<=>? 7597 /'+%)�*/(,)I*�(V�/%(@ BFF6DHFE7CHG5HHD875639639595 /:;<=>? 758H WPSX�&XPM>?P> BFG957D55E7C9GNH8D875639639595 /:;<=>? 79H5 (%)+A�(-%$�$'V'2-/1')& B7TGNT8D55E79CG665D8779857�&=Y:S�+P<Q?MPZZ=M�(=S=MK=S4=[R>>R>[�4:Z:>U= 8FCD965637C39595 $=QPSR? &'\%*�+-1/&(-22'( /MRPM�(=?:R>=]�̂�93F�+R?;�/PM?RP> B8FCD9NE 5D575637C39595 $=QPSR? &'\%*�+-1/&(-22'( +JMM=>?�(=?:R>=]�̂�93F�+R?;�/PM?RP> CHTD7F� CHTD7C7T557�1:UXR>=M;�_�'̀JRQ<=>?4=[R>>R>[�4:Z:>U= 97GF85D5595555�%UUPJ>?S�/:;:aZ=�B%3/E4=[R>>R>[�4:Z:>U= 78G6FHDCH5635939595 4RZZ�/:;<=>?�B+X=UbE C8F9 2%)Ic-($�+-110),&.�1%)%I'1')&�*'(V,+'* BFG8N7D55E 79GF88DCH5635939595 4RZZ�/:;<=>?�B+X=UbE C8F8 &'\%*�$,*/-*%2�*.*&'1* BH55D55E 77GT88DCH5635939595 4RZZ�/:;<=>?�B+X=UbE C8FC /%&A1%(@�&(%cc,+�/(-$0+& B7G89CDC5E 75G9F7D5H5635939595 4RZZ�/:;<=>?�B+X=UbE C8FF 2)V�')I,)''(,)I B6G5H7D5HE 7G7T5D555635939595 4RZZ�/:;<=>?�B+X=UbE C8F7 'd�*&(''&�+-1/%). B7G7T5D55E 5D555635639595 4RZZ F8C85 2)V�')I,)''(,)I FGF69DF7� FGF69DF75637C39595 4RZZ 7F5H7 $'2&(% OR�cR�RSSJ=S�R>�UPJ>URZ�UX:<a=MS�M=QZ:U=�eRfR�=Y?=>]=M C65D85� FGNN9DN75637T39595 4RZZ 95971786 +%/,&%2�%('%�+-0)+,2�-c�I-V'()1')&* 9595�+%/+-I�%))0%2�$0'*�̂�1'14'(*A,/* 7FHDC5� CG576D975639939595 4RZZ 5699955H +J:?MP�+P>SJZ?:>?SG�2&$D +PMM=U?�dP>R>[�<:Q 7G855D55� 8G876D9795855�cJ=Z<:>�cJ=Z�+M=]R?�+:M]4=[R>>R>[�4:Z:>U= BHD97E5635939595 'YQ=>S= c0'21%) fJ=Z�fPM�QJaZRU�ePMbS 96D85� 9FD965635639595 +M=]R?�+:M]�/:;<=>? cJ=Z<:>�cJ=Z�+M=]R?�+:M]�Q:;<=>? BFTD6NE B7CDH6E5639F39595 +M=]R?�+:M]�/:;<=>? cJ=Z<:>�cJ=Z�+M=]R?�+:M]�Q:;<=>? BCD5HE B7NDT8E563F539595 WPJM>:Z�'>?M; W' /JaZRU�OPMbS %]LJS?�cJ=Z<:>�I:S�U:M]�a:Z�?P�:U?J:Z 7NDT8� 5D5595857�%3/�̂�cJ=Z<:>�1:S?=MU:M]4=[R>>R>[�4:Z:>U= CG589DTN5635939595 'YQ=>S= cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] fJ=Z 96D7T� CG5N7D685635C39595 +M=]R?�+:M]�+M=]R? cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] (=a:?=�(=f=M=>U=�g�59CNN7F9 B75D5FE CG5T7D695635C39595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) PffRU=�SJQQZR=S 6CDF5� CG7HHD995635839595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) UPQ;�Q:Q=M C8DN5� CG979D595635839595 'YQ=>S= d--1 hPP<�<==?R>[ 78D66� CG99ND575635H39595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) PffRU=�SJQQZR=S 86D6H� CG9NTD6T5635N39595 +M=]R?�+:M]�/:;<=>? cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] cJ=Z<:>�1+�+M=]R?�U:M]�Q:;<=>? BCG589DTNE 9F8D765635N39595 'YQ=>S= 56787 cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] fJ=Z F8D55� 9T5D765637539595 'YQ=>S= 4A�4--@@''/'(* :J[JS?�S=MKRU=S 86FDC5� NHFD865637C39595 'YQ=>S= ,)&0,& <P>?XZ;�Q:;MPZZ�S=MKRU= 79FDH8� 6NTD9C5637839595 'YQ=>S= cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] fJ=Z FHD69� 7G59CD7H5637839595 'YQ=>S= cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] S?:<QS 88D55� 7G5T6D7H5637839595 'YQ=>S= cZ==?�]:SX (=f�g�59869876 96D6T� 7G756D7F5637H39595 'YQ=>S= 576HCT cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] fJ=Z 96D55� 7G7FND7F5637H39595 'YQ=>S= 576C67 cJ=Z<:>�cZ==?�/MP[M:<�1:S?=M�+:M] fJ=Z TND6F� 7G97TD5H5637H39595 'YQ=>S= 4,d�$-+�,)+D PK=M:[=�JS:[=�f== ND59� 7G998D5N5637T39595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) PffRU=�UZ=:>R>[�SJQQZR=S 7ND66� 7G9CCD5T5637T39595 'YQ=>S= /Pe=M�A:JS�'̀JRQ<=>? PRZG�fRZ?=MS�fPM�aM=:b�R>�PRZ�UX:>[=S 7T7DC8� 7GC78D895637N39595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) UPQ;�Q:Q=M 89DTN� 7GCHNDF55637N39595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) S?:M?=M�:>]�:Z?=M>:?PM 798DNC� 7G86CD7C5637N39595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) S>==h=�[J:M] 9HD66� 7GH97D7F5637N39595 'YQ=>S= %]Pa= <P>?XZ;�f== 7HD9F� 7GHFTDFH5637639595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) 79�Qb�PM=[P>�67̂H99�<Pe=M�aZ:]=S 778D55� 7GT89DFH5637639595 +M=]R?�+:M]�+M=]R? %1%d-) ?MJUb�fZPPM�<:??S B7C8D66E 7GH5HDFT5637639595 +M=]R?�+:M]�+M=]R? %1%d-) ?MJUb�fZPPM�<:??S B7C8D66E 7GCH5DFN5639539595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) PffRU=�SJQQZR=S 7F9DFN� 7G869DTH5639539595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) PffRU=�SJQQZR=S FFDT7� 7GH9HDCT5639739595 'YQ=>S= O%21%(& QJaZRU�ePMbS�e:?=M�I:?PM:]=�:>]�aM=:b�UZ=:>=M FCDHT� 7GHH7D7C5639739595 'YQ=>S= %1%d-) PffRU=�SJQQZR=S F5D8H� 7GH67DT5



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#$

%&'( ')&*+&,'-.*�'/0( *12 *&2( ,3&++ 2(2.4%(+,)-0'-.* &2.1*' 5&3&*,(6748848686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* ?@;A<B<C�=D::@B;= EFGH7I� EJI8IHGI6748848686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* KLLB?;�=D::@B;= 867H76� 8J6FIHMI6748848686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* KLLB?;�=D::@B;= 87H7M� 8J6GIHMF6748848686 (9:;<=; +&*�2&),.+�%&-3/�)(,.)% 5DNC;O�A<N�OA9�PAO;�8686 M7GHFQ� 8JGGRH766748F48686 (9:;<=; +&*�2&),.+�%&-3/�)(,.)% :DS@B?�<KOB?;= EGQH87� 8JIF8HE76748F48686 (9:;<=; %&*+ ;T:@KU;;�TKPA@ 8FHRI� 8JIMMHGQ6748F48686 (9:;<=; '(V&+�W&,-3-'-(+�,.22-++-.* EQH66� 8JIQ8HGQ6748F48686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* XA<N�=A<BOBY;P F7HII� 8J7E8HMM6748F48686 (9:;<=; ,XB=XK@T�'PAB@�55Z LD;@ R6HMI� 8J7MFHEF6748M48686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* A=DPBK<�R�U;AP= QGH77� FJ6F6HE86748M48686 (9:;<=; 0.,.�3.,.�2&)[(' LD;@ QRH7F� FJE6MH6M6748Q48686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* CKK�CK<;�ANX;=B\;�=:PAU EMH7I� FJE8EH6F6748Q48686 (9:;<=; &2&>.* KLLB?;�=D::@B;= EJ667HRM� RJEF6HRI86M68�&40�]�̂KT;�%;:KO5;CB<<B<C�5A@A<?; R7H776746848686 ,P;NBO�,APN�0AUT;<O K̂T;�%;:KO K̂T;�%;:KO�,,�:AUT;<O _R7H77̀ 6H6686M6R�&40�]�'PA?OKP�+D::@U5;CB<<B<C�5A@A<?; G7HFM6746748686 ,P;NBO�,APN�0AUT;<O ')&,'.)�+1003/ 'PA?OKP�+D::@U�,P;NBO�,APN�:AUT;<O _G7HFM̀ 6H6686Q66�&40�]�aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b5;CB<<B<C�5A@A<?; EIJMMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8Q8 G66H66� E7JEMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8I6 G66H66� E7JQMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU��2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8QR G66H66� 86JFMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8QM G66H66� 86J7MRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8Q7 G66H66� 8EJMMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= aBTTU�2?�,@B<OK?b�:AUAS@;�=A@;=�P;?;B:O�F8QF G66H66� 88JEMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?�,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8QG G66H66� 88JQMRHRG6746748686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8QQ G66H66� 8FJFMRHRG674F648686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��FFFIJFFFQJFFFGJFFFMJFFFRJFFF8JFFGEJFFFQJFFG6 MJR66H66� 8IJQMRHRG674F648686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU aBTTU�2?,@B<OK?b 5DB@NB<C�0;PTBO= );?KPN�a�2?,@B<OK?b�0AUAS@;�]�=A@;=�P;?;B:O��F8Q6J�F8QIJ�F87EJ�FF8RJ�FF6RJ�FFEE FJG66H66� F8JFMRHRG88666�%BP;?O�%;:K=BO�0AUAS@;6746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 'PA?B�)H�2?cB<@;U 0AU�0;PBKNd�6I48648686]6746848686 EJIMEH6M� EJIMEH6M6746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 'PA?B�)H�2?cB<@;U %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EJIMEH6M̀ 6H666746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO�8 8M6H66� 8M6H666746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P 0AU�0;PBKNd�6I48648686]6746848686 EJRM8HE8� EJQ68HE86746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EJRM8HE8̀ 8M6H666746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _8M6H66̀ 6H666746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% [AP;<�+H�cA@@AX;P 0AU�0;PBKNd�6I48648686]6746848686 8JFGRHF6� 8JFGRHF66746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% [AP;<�+H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _8JFGRHF6̀ 6H666746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 2AOOX;e�̂KNC; 0AU�0;PBKNd�6I48648686]6746848686 EJEMFHM6� EJEMFHM66746F48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 2AOOX;e�̂KNC; %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EJEMFHM6̀ 6H66674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EH66̀ _EH66̀674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO�8 EH66� 6H66674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 2AOOX;e�̂KNC; %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EJEMRHFM̀ _EJEMRHFM̀674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% [AP;<�+H�cA@@AX;P 0AU�0;PBKNd�6746F48686]674EG48686 8JFGRHF6� EJ867H7M674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 'PA?B�)H�2?cB<@;U 0AU�0;PBKNd�6746F48686]674EG48686 EJIMEH6M� FJ6GEH66674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 2AOOX;e�̂KNC; 0AU�0;PBKNd�6746F48686]674EG48686 EJEMRHFM� RJ8EMHFM674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P 0AU�0;PBKNd�6746F48686]674EG48686 EJQ6EHE8� MJ7EGHRQ674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% cAPU�%H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EJQ6EHE8̀ RJ8EMHFM674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% [AP;<�+H�cA@@AX;P %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _8JFGRHF6̀ EJIMEH6M674EQ48686 0AUPK@@�,X;?b %% 'PA?B�)H�2?cB<@;U %BP;?O�%;:K=BO _EJIMEH6M̀ 6H6688M66�+A@;=�'A9�0AUAS@;5;CB<<B<C�5A@A<?; EJ6FGHQE6748848686 (9:;<=; '(V&+�,.20').33()�.W�0153-,�&,,.1*'+ fA=O;�2A<AC;T;<O fA=O;�A<N�P;?U?@;�=A@;=�OA9�:UTO _EJ6FGHQÈ 6H666748748686 (9:;<=; 1̂ 3&*%�(,.*.2-,�%(g(3.02(*'�,.)0.)&'-.*�_(%,̀ (%,�1X@A<N +A@;=�'A9�-<?KT;�]�&DCD=O�]�)KD<NB<C�&Nh _6H6È _6H6È674F648686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU +A@;=�'A9�0AUAS@; fA=O;�2A<AC;T;<O );?KPN�=A@;=�OA9�:AUAS@;�]�+;:O;T;SP EJ66IH66� EJ66QH778F666�(%,�+A@;=�'A9�-<?KT;�0AUAS@;5;CB<<B<C�5A@A<?; 88J7F6HGF674E648686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU 1X@A<N�(%, (%,�1X@A<N );?KPN�(%,�+A@;=�'A9�-<?KT;�'PA<=L;P�]�aD@U 7JGRQHR6� F8JMQIH6F674E648686 aKDP<A@�(<OPU a( (%,�1X@A<N );\;P=;�%D:@B?AO;�+A@;=�'A9�-<?KT;�;<OPU�]�aD@U _7JGRQHR6̀ 88J7F6HGF



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#$

%&'( ')&*+&,'-.*�'/0( *12 *&2( ,3&++ 2(2.4%(+,)-0'-.* &2.1*' 5&3&*,(6748849696 (:;<=>< 1?3&*%�(,.*.2-,�%(@(3.02(*'�,.)0.)&'-.*�A(%,B (%,�1CDE=F +ED<>�GE:�-=HIJ<�K�LM=<�9696 A7NOPQRP6B 8SN9TSR9S6749749696 (:;<=>< 1?3&*%�(,.*.2-,�%(@(3.02(*'�,.)0.)&'-.*�A(%,B (%,�1CDE=F +ED<>�GE:�-=HIJ<�K�&MUM>G A8SN9TSR9SB 6R666749749696 (:;<=>< 1?3&*%�(,.*.2-,�%(@(3.02(*'�,.)0.)&'-.*�A(%,B (%,�1CDE=F +ED<>�GE:�-=HIJ<�K�+<;G<JV<W A88NQ88R7SBA88NQ88R7SB674S649696 LIMW=ED�(=GWX L( (%,�1CDE=F )<HIWF�(%,�+ED<>�'E:�-=HIJ<�'WE=>Y<W�K�+<;G<JV<W 88NQ88R7S� 6R669P666�0EXWIDD�3ZEVZDZGZ<>9P668�0EXWIDD�K�'E:<>�[<F<WED�A7P847PPB6746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ]EWX�%R�]EDDEC<W [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB P7PR8P� P7PR8P6746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ÊW<=�+R�]EDDEC<W [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB Q67RS_� 8N96SRP76746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% 2EGGC<̀ �?IFU< [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB 97QR7O� 8N_68RP_6746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% 'WEHZ�)R�2H]Z=D<X [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB P9_R7O� 8N79QRP86748649696 (:;<=>< -)+ -)+�1+&'&a0/2'�-)+�1+&'&a0/2'�K�-%b�99Q6O_POO89TPSO�,-'/�.[�1?3&*% A8N79QRP8B 6R666748649696 LIMW=ED�(=GWX L( )<c<W><�-)+�'E:�0EXJ<=G�K�FM;DZHEG<�<=GWX 8N79QRP8� 8N79QRP86748649696 'E:�0EXJ<=G -)+ [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB A8N79QRP8B 6R666748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ]EWX�%R�]EDDEC<W [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB P7PR8P� P7PR8P6748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% 2EGGC<̀ �?IFU< [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB 97TR9_� Q79RS76748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% 'WEHZ�)R�2H]Z=D<X [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB P9_R7O� 8N98TRS_6748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ÊW<=�+R�]EDDEC<W [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB Q67RS_� 8N79QRQ66749S49696 LIMW=ED�(=GWX L( )<c<W><�-)+�'E:�0EXJ<=G�K�%M;DZHEG<�(=GWX 8N79QRQ6� SNT__RP66749S49696 'E:�0EXJ<=G -)+ [<F<WED�'E:<>�A7P847PPB A8N79QRQ6B 8N79QRQ66749S49696 (:;<=>< -)+ -)+�1+&'&a0/2'�-)+�1+&'&a0/2'�K�-%b�99Q6OOQOO89O6TP�,-'/�.[�1?3&*% A8N79QRQ6B 6R669P66S�0EXWIDD�K�'E:<>�K�+1'&6746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% 'WEHZ�)R�2H]Z=D<X 'a�1=<J;DIXJ<=G�'E: 6R66� 6R666748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% 'WEHZ�)R�2H]Z=D<X 'a�1=<J;DIXJ<=G�'E: 6R66� 6R662Z>H<DDE=<IM>�%<FMHGZI=6746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ]EWX�%R�]EDDEC<W 2Z>H<DDE=<IM>�%<FMHGZI= 6R66� 6R666748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ]EWX�%R�]EDDEC<W 2Z>H<DDE=<IM>�%<FMHGZI= 6R66� 6R660EXWIDD�K�3ZEVZDZGZ<>0EXWIDD�K�dE>G<�5ZDD6746S49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ]EWX�%R�]EDDEC<W È>G<�VZDD 6R66� 6R666748Q49696 0EXWIDD�,C<H\ %% ]EWX�%R�]EDDEC<W È>G<�VZDD 6R66� 6R66S6668�.;<=Z=U�5EDE=H<�(eMZGX5<UZ==Z=U�5EDE=H< 88TNO_8R_7P6686�&%�@EDIW<J�K�,EDF̀ <DD�,IM=GX5<UZ==Z=U�5EDE=H< 9ONPP6R86S6666�)<GEZ=<F�(EW=Z=U>5<UZ==Z=U�5EDE=H< 8_QN7Q8R98P6688�&%�@EDIW<J�K�?EX>�,IM=GX5<UZ==Z=U�5EDE=H< Q6NP6TR8S6748649696 %<;I>ZG ?&/+�,.1*'/�&00)&+-&3�%-+')-,' &FJZ=Z>GWEGZI= _QORT_� Q6N7TPR7TP66_6�+ED<>�'E:�)<c<=M<5<UZ==Z=U�5EDE=H< 9_9NOOQRO66748P49696 %<;I>ZG '(a&+�,.20').33() (%,�1CDE=F ,MWW<=G�)<GEZ=<F�K�84S�(%,�0IWGZI= A9SSR_OB9_9NPSPR6P6748P49696 %<;I>ZG '(a&+�,.20').33() &FJZ=Z>GWEGZI= ]WI>>�,IDD<HGZI=>�K�94S�,ZGX�0IWGZI= 88N78OROT�9OPNS_6RQ96748P49696 %<;I>ZG '(a&+�,.20').33() (%,�1CDE=F ]WI>>�,IDD<HGZI=>�K�84S�(%,�0IWGZI= 88N78OROT�9QON9OQRP66748P49696 %<;I>ZG '(a&+�,.20').33() 0MVDZH�dIW\> ]WI>>�,IDD<HGZI=>�K�94S�,ZGX�0IWGZI= 88N78OROT�9TTN8TPR6T6748P49696 %<;I>ZG '(a&+�,.20').33() (%,�1CDE=F 0WZIW�)<GEZ=<F�K�84S�(%,�0IWGZI= 9OQR8P�9TTNP_8R99P6866�5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG�-=HIJ<5<UZ==Z=U�5EDE=H< S89NQ6QRS76746849696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9O7 20* 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> STO6�,IGGI=�]Z=�)IEF P6R6_�S89NQPQRPP6746849696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9Q6 20* 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> +15%-@-+-.*�K�3.'�f�K�2&*1[&,'1)(%�?.2(�03&,(2(*'�+IMGC�0DMJ�,W<<\�'CIJ>;I= 8N8_PRO_�S8SN769R676746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9QS 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 9SP�dZDJE�20* _6R66�S8SN7_9R676746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9QS 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 9SP�dZDJE�20* S_6R66�S8PNS69R676746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9QS 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 9SP�dZDJE�20* 9NOS6RT6�S8ON7S9RT76746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9T6 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 20*�969�3<=E�3E=< _6R66�S8ON7T9RT76746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9T6 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 20*�969�3<=E�3E=< S_6R66�S8QNSS9RT76746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9T6 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 20*�969�3<=E�3E=< 9N6Q9R66�S87NP6PRT76746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9Q7 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 96P�dZDC<J�dEX _6R66�S87NP_PRT76746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9Q7 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 96P�dZDC<J�dEX S_6R66�S87NT6PRT76746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9Q7 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 96P�dZDC<J�dEX 8NT7PRP6�S98NO77R976746749696 +ED<>�)<H<Z;G S9QT 5̂�?.2(+ 5MZDFZ=U�0<WJZG> 96P�dZDC<J�dEX�20* 6R66�S98NO77R97



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#$

%&'( ')&*+&,'-.*�'/0( *12 *&2( ,3&++ 2(2.4%(+,)-0'-.* &2.1*' 5&3&*,(6746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BC D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�8L6�3;H9 L6M66�A8NOBP7M876746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BC D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�8L6�3;H9 AL6M66�A88O677M876746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BC D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�8L6�3;H9 8ONQNMC6�A8PO8Q6MQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BQ D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 86P�R>:S;K�R9T�20* 6M66�A8PO8Q6MQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BQ D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 86P�R>:S;K�R9T�20* 6M66�A8PO8Q6MQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BB D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�8LQ�R>:K9 L6M66�A8POAA6MQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BB D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�8LQ�R>:K9 AL6M66�A8POCQ6MQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BB D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�8LQ�R>:K9 NOQPQM66�A8COL8QMQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BL D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�N88�R>:K9 L6M66�A8COLBQMQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BL D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�N88�R>:K9 AL6M66�A8CO78QMQ76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BL D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*�N88�R>:K9 8OLCQMQ6�A87OP7BMC76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8B8 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< L6M66�A87OLPBMC76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8B8 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< AL6M66�A87OQ7BMC76746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8B8 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8OA87MC6�AA8O88BM876746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BP D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*��8CC�3;H9�:9H; 8OBN8M66�AAPO7A7M876746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BP D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*��8CC�3;H9�:9H; AL6M66�AALO8Q7M876746748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8BP D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 20*��8CC�3;H9�:9H; L6M66�AALOAA7M87674N648686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A87N %)�E.)'.* 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< )(+-%(*'-&3�51-3%-*U�0()2-' LOLQLMA6�AP6O78PML7674N648686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A87N %)�E.)'.* 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< +15%-V-+-.*�W�3.'�X�W�%)-V(R&/ B66M66�APNOC8PML7674N648686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A87N %)�E.)'.* 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< N66M66�APNOB8PML7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6A D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< L6M66�APNOBBPML7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6A D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< AL6M66�AP8ON8PML7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6A D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NOBQQMQ6�APAO7NAMA7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA68 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NBN�R>:K9 L6M66�APAO7CAMA7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA68 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NBN�R>:K9 AL6M66�APPOANAMA7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA68 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NBN�R>:K9 NOBQQMQ6�APCON68MN7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6N D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8LQ�3;H9��39H; L6M66�APCONL8MN7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6N D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8LQ�3;H9��39H; AL6M66�APCOL68MN7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6N D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8LQ�3;H9��39H; 8OL87MC6�AP7O6ANMB7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA66 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8P8�R>:K9�R9T L6M66�AP7O6QNMB7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA66 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8P8�R>:K9�R9T AL6M66�AP7OPANMB7674NC48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA66 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< 8P8�R>:K9�R9T NOBQQMQ6�ALNO886ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8B D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NPA�UF<@9Y AL6M66�ALNOLB6ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8B D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NPA�UF<@9Y NOQ7PMP6�ALAOPCPM77674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8B D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NPA�UF<@9Y L6M66�ALAOLNPM77674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8C D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NLP�R>:K9��20* NOC8LMC6�ALLONP6ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8C D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NLP�R>:K9��20* AL6M66�ALLOP76ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8C D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NLP�R>:K9��20* L6M66�ALLOLP6ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8L D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< N7L�R>:K9�20* L6M66�ALLOL76ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8L D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< N7L�R>:K9�20* AL6M66�ALLO7P6ML7674NB48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8L D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< N7L�R>:K9�20* NOC8LMC6�ALBOLCCMN76748P48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8P D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< PPP�UF<@9Y�?:9H�=S9HI; AL6M66�ALBO7NCMN76748P48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8P D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< PPP�UF<@9Y�?:9H�=S9HI; L6M66�ALBO7CCMN76748P48686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA8P D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< PPP�UF<@9Y�?:9H�=S9HI; CCNMP7�ALQOC8BMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AAN6 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NP7�R>:K9 AL6M66�ALQO7BBMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M &GK>H><@J9@>[H 9??:>=9@>[H�9HG�?:9H�J;\>;] QL6M66�AL7OQ8BMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< ?;JK>@�9HG�>H<?;=@>[H< QC6M66�AC6OCQBMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< ;:;=@J>= N86M66�AC6OQ6BMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< ?:FK̂ >HI N86M66�AC6O78BMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< S\9= N86M66�ACNO6PBMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< =[KK;J=>9:�,._. NL6M66�ACNON7BMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6P ,:;9J�,J;;ZO�-H=M 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< %J>\;]9T L66M66�ACNOC7BMCQ6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AANN '&55�-20).V(2(*'+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< P�+[F@S�0:FK�,J;;Z CBNMQL�AC8OAC7MLA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AANN '&55�-20).V(2(*'+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< P�+[F@S�0:FK�,J;;Z L6M66�AC8OPN7MLA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AANN '&55�-20).V(2(*'+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< +>HI:;�1H>@�-H<@9::9@>[H�̀2Ea�̀20*a L66M66�AC8O7N7MLA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AANN '&55�-20).V(2(*'+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< +>HI:;�1H>@�-H<@9::9@>[H�̀2Ea�̀20*a L66M66�ACAOPN7MLA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AAN6 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NP7�R>:K9 NOQPBM86�ACLO8CCMBA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AAN6 D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NP7�R>:K9 L6M66�ACLOANCMBA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6C D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NQC�R>:K9 NOQ7CMQ6�ACBO8NAMLA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6C D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NQC�R>:K9 AL6M66�ACBOLCAMLA6748748686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ AA6C D5�E.2(+ 5F>:G>HI�0;JK>@< NQC�R>:K9 L6M66�ACBOCNAMLA6748748686 b[FJH9:�(H@JT b( &GK>H><@J9@>[H );=:9<<�-H=[K;�YJ[K�-H\�AA6P Q̀L6M66aACCOBCAMLAP6N68�.++_�);<>G;H@>9:5;I>HH>HI�59:9H=; 8OPC6M66P6N6A�+>IH�0;JK>@<5;I>HH>HI�59:9H=; LBLM66P6N6P�'J9H<?[J@9@>[H�_;;�W�,U(5;I>HH>HI�59:9H=; 8L6M66P6N6L�'J9H<?[J@9@>[H�_;;<�W�2>::=J;;Z5;I>HH>HI�59:9H=; A7O87CM66674N648686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A87N %)�E.)'.* _F@FJ;�)[9G]9T�-K?9=@�_;;< 8 8OPLCM66� PNOBL8M66P6N6C�'J9H<?[J@9@>[H�_;;�W�D5�E[K;<5;I>HH>HI�59:9H=; 78ON66M666746848686 +9:;<�);=;>?@ A8LN D5�E.2(+ _F@FJ;�)[9G]9T�-K?9=@�8N7�(::9�29J>; NO88QM66� 7AOA8QM66



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#$

%&'( ')&*+&,'-.*�'/0( *12 *&2( ,3&++ 2(2.4%(+,)-0'-.* &2.1*' 5&3&*,(67789:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;CD E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ 9P99� :BQB;DP999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;D9 E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99� :SQTTUP999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;CS E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99� :TQCDSP999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;CC E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99� :CQ9R;P999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;CB E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99� :DQ;S9P999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;CT E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99� ::QSUDP999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;C; E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99�R99QU:UP999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;C: E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99�R9RQ:;SP999:49:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A B;CU E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99�R9BQRT;P999:4RU4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB9B E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 E5�F.2(�).&%N&/�-20&,'�-20).O(2(*'+ RQ;;DP99�R9SQBD9P999:4RU4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB9; E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 RCR�N?=M< RQ;;DP99�R9TQU9DP999:4RU4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB9R E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 ;TD�37V<��3<V7 RQ;;DP99�R9UQDBUP999:4RU4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB99 E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 ;S;�N?=M<�N<L RQ;;DP99�R9DQ9USP999:4RC4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB;T E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 R:T�N?=M<�20* RQ;;DP99�R9:Q;:;P999:4RC4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB;C E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 RSB�WG8A<X RQ;;DP99�RR9QT;9P999:4RC4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB;U E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 RTS�N?=M<��20* RQ;;DP99�RRRQCSDP999:4;:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BB9U E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 RDU�N?=M< RQ;;DP99�RR;Q:CUP999:4;:4;9;9 +<=78�)7>7?@A BBR9 E5�F.2(+ 6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�-M@<>A�6778 RS:�N?=M< RQ;;DP99�RRSQ;9SP99S9R9C�6GAGH7�)I<JK<L�6GVJ857Y?VV?VY�5<=<V>7 RBQT9DP99S9RT9�+GZJ?[?8?IV�-V>IM757Y?VV?VY�5<=<V>7 RU;Q:BCPUT9:49R4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;SC WGV[<VA�W<\7H< +GZJ?[?8?IV 0=<VV7J�%7[7=I@M7VA�%?8AH?>AQ�1]=<VJ�0=<̂< DQT99P99�RCRQSBCPUT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TU )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV T999P99�0()�%-+')-,'Q�031+�_R99P99�0()�&,)(�BSP9DB DQS9DPB9�RC:QDSTP:T9:4;T4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;:C )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV _R999P99�̀�_CTP99�0()�3.'�F<H[78A�,H77a RUQRT9P99�R:TQ::TP:T9:4;T4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;:U )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV 2?==>H77a�0]<87�BQ�6?V<=�0=<A ;QT;TP99�R:DQT;9P:TS9RTT�5?==<Z=7�(b@7V87�-V>IM757Y?VV?VY�5<=<V>7 TBQ:DTPBD9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;US ,IGVAL�3?V7�+@7>?<=�1A?=?AL�%?8AH?>A +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IGVAL�3?V7�+1% ;BPCT� TSQ99:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;US ,IGVAL�3?V7�+@7>?<=�1A?=?AL�%?8AH?>A +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IGVAL�3?V7�+1% TU9P99� TSQTU:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UB N(F5(�0HI@7HA?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IMM7H>?<=�0HI@7HAL�WH?8A�2?==�c�+F;R S:9P99� TTQ9T:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UB N(F5(�0HI@7HA?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IMM7H>?<=�0HI@7HAL�WH?8A�2?==�c�F7?J7VH7?>] RS9P99� TTQR::PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UB N(F5(�0HI@7HA?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IMM7H>?<=�0HI@7HAL�WH?8A�2?==�c�+F;R ;D9P99� TTQSC:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UB N(F5(�0HI@7HA?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IMM7H>?<=�0HI@7HAL�WH?8A�2?==�c�F7?J7VH7?>] S;9P99� TTQD::PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UB N(F5(�0HI@7HA?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IMM7H>?<=�0HI@7HAL�.=J�+@<V?8]�'H<?= C9P99� TTQ:U:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;U; +GV�,IMMGV?A?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV +GV�,IMMGV?A?78 CU9P99� TUQC;:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;U; +GV�,IMMGV?A?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV +GV�,IMMGV?A?78 ;RBPCT� TUQ:S;PDD9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;U; +GV�,IMMGV?A?78 +GZJ?[?8?IV +GV�,IMMGV?A?78 ;Q9TTP99� TDQ::CPDD9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UR &1+d'(e4O-33&W(�F.2(+ +GZJ?[?8?IV F<HMIVL�F?==8 UBRP;T� T:QU;:PRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UR &1+d'(e4O-33&W(�F.2(+ +GZJ?[?8?IV F<HMIVL�F?==8 BCTP99� U9Q99SPRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UR &1+d'(e4O-33&W(�F.2(+ +GZJ?[?8?IV F<HMIVL�F?==8 CB9P99� U9QCBSPRB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;U9 3&+�(*'&*,-&+�; +GZJ?[?8?IV 3<8�(8A<V>?<8�; U9CPT9� URQBSRPUB9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;U9 3&+�(*'&*,-&+�; +GZJ?[?8?IV 3<8�(8A<V>?<8�; CDTPRU� U;QR;UPC:9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;U9 3&+�(*'&*,-&+�; +GZJ?[?8?IV 3<8�(8A<V>?<8�; DRUP9U� U;Q:S;PDT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TC ,<@�%7[7=I@M7VA�33, +GZJ?[?8?IV )I>aL�)I<J�+GZJ?[?8?IV ;D;PT9� UBQ;;TPBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TC ,<@�%7[7=I@M7VA�33, +GZJ?[?8?IV )I>aL�)I<J�+GZJ?[?8?IV ;BPCT� UBQ;S:PR99:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TC ,<@�%7[7=I@M7VA�33, +GZJ?[?8?IV )I>aL�)I<J�+GZJ?[?8?IV TSRP;T� UBQC:9PBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TC ,<@�%7[7=I@M7VA�33, +GZJ?[?8?IV RQ999P99� USQC:9PBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TC ,<@�%7[7=I@M7VA�33, +GZJ?[?8?IV RQS99P99� UUQR:9PBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TU )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV F<H[78A�,H77a RS9P99� UUQBB9PBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TU )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV F<H[78A�,H77a U99P99� UUQ:B9PBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TU )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV F<H[78A�,H77a BD9P99� UCQBR9PBT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TU )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV F<H[78A�,H77a CSCPT9� UDQ9TCPDT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TU )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV F<H[78A�,H77a T99P99� UDQTTCPDT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TT ']7�.=J�(=�,<M?VI�2IAI�,IGHA�<VJ�,<M@YHIGVJ +GZJ?[?8?IV ;99P99� UDQCTCPDT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TS N&3'.*�%(O(3.02(*'�&*%�2&*&W(2(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV T99P99� U:Q;TCPDT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TS N&3'.*�%(O(3.02(*'�&*%�2&*&W(2(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV B99P99� U:QTTCPDT9:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;UD ']7�.=J�(=�,<M?VI�2IAI�,IGHA�<VJ�,<M@YHIGVJ +GZJ?[?8?IV 2IAI�,IGHA TDBPCT� C9QRSRPU99:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;T: )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV 2?==>H77a STP99� C9QRDUPU99:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;T: )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV 2?==>H77a C99P99� C9QDDUPU99:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;T: )&*,F�).&%�%(O(3.02(*' +GZJ?[?8?IV 2?==>H77a RR;PT9� C9Q:::PR99:49;4;9;9 -V[I?>7 B;TD E-0�E).*(*5()W +GZJ?[?8?IV ,IAAIV�W?V�)O�0<Ha C99P99� CRQU::PR9



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#$

%&'( ')&*+&,'-.*�'/0( *12 *&2( ,3&++ 2(2.4%(+,)-0'-.* &2.1*' 5&3&*,(6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@8 AB9:C9D�ACE>FC +BGH<:<I<;9 1JKC9H�0KCLC ?@6M66� N8O6P7MQ66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@? R;IJ�'J;F9D;9 +BGH<:<I<;9 2<IDS�3C9> 8Q6M66� N8O8@7MQ66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@? R;IJ�'J;F9D;9 +BGH<:<I<;9 TCUI<H> 8O666M66� NPO8@7MQ66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@? R;IJ�'J;F9D;9 +BGH<:<I<;9 N66M66� NPO7@7MQ66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VN 'W�)&*,X +BGH<:<I<;9 '�W�)C9=J QP6M66� N@O677MQ66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VV 0(,&*�+0)-*A+�)Y�0&)W +BGH<:<I<;9 0>=C9�+ZF<9[I�)Y 7@M66� N@OQ7PMQ66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VV 0(,&*�+0)-*A+�)Y�0&)W +BGH<:<I<;9 0>=C9�+ZF<9[I�)Y 8Q?MN@� N@OP6NM\@6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8V@ ';HH�5BF>] +BGH<:<I<;9 QO\66M66� NNO86NM\@6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8V@ ';HH�5BF>] +BGH<:<I<;9 ,CU<9;�,F>ID 8\6M66� NNOP\NM\@6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VP ,;B9DS�3<9>�+Z>=<CK�1D<K<DS�%<IDF<=D +BGH<:<I<;9 0KBU�,F>>]�1D<K<DS QP6M66� NNOV8NM\@6748@48686 -9:;<=> ?87V )&*,X�).&%�%(Y(3.02(*' +BGH<:<I<;9 2<KK=F>>] ?86M66� NNO7PNM\@P6866�+;K<H�̂CID>�+>F:<=>I5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> Q@QOV7@M?86746Q48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8@6 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J QO?\7MV?�Q@?O6\PM7@6746848686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\P 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J ?6\M@@�Q@?O?7?M@66746848686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\8 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J ?VVM76�Q@?ONV6MP66746848686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\? 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 8Q7MN@�Q@?O7\6MQ@6746P48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\@ 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J V?VM??�Q@POVQVMP\6746\48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\V 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 8V8M\Q�Q@PO\N7M876746\48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\Q 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J P?6MP?�Q@@O?67MN8674QP48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\7 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 86?M@Q�Q@@O@Q?M8?674QP48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?876 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J V6?MP\�Q@VOQQVMNQ674QP48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\\ 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 8Q\M8P�Q@VO??PM7@674Q@48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?8\N 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J QNVM8P�Q@VO@QQMQ7674QV48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?87? 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J P8?M\V�Q@VO7?@M6@674QV48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?878 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J Q\VMV8�Q@NOQ8QMVN674QN48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?87@ 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J ?N8M\@�Q@NOP7PM@8674Q\48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ?87P 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J ?Q\M\?�Q@NO\Q?M?@6748?48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??QV 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J QOV?\M@\�Q@7OP@QM7?6748P48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??Q7 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J P8@MV\�Q@7O\NNMVQ6748P48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??Q\ 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J ?87M@?�QV6O86NMQP6748P48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??QN 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 76QMN6�QVQOQ6\M\P6748@48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??8Q 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J PQ?M86�QVQO@88M6P6748@48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ???Q 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J ??PMQN�QVQO\@VM8Q6748@48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ???6 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J QPPM7?�QV8O66QMQP6748@48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??87 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J Q\QM\V�QV8OQ\?M666748@48686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??88 1+'-�>ZCS ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 86QM8P�QV8O?\PM8P6748748686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??6N 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J @VPM?Q�QV8O7P\M@@674?648686 R;BF9CK�(9DFS +CK>I�'C̀�0CSCGK> ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D )>=;FH�ICK>I�DC̀�ZCSCGK>�_�+>ZD>UG>F aQO66\M66bQVQO7P6M@@674?648686 +CK>I�)>=><ZD ??67 1+'-�_�5&',X�0&/2(*'+ ^CID>�2C9C[>U>9D ^CID>�C9H�F>=S=K>�<9=;U>O�1+'-�GCD=J 8O8P8M?8�QVPOQ\8M\NP686Q�TFC9=J<I>�T>>I5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> ?\OVN6M8@P6868�+;K<H�̂CID>�+>F:<=>I�_�)>ID;FCD<;943CD>�T>>5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> QOVV@M66P6?66�,;UUB9<DS�,>9D>F�)>9DCK5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> PO\66M66P6?86�%;9CD<;9I5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> V@6M66P6?@6�T<KU�TF<>9HKS�T>>5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> @66M66P6?@@�3;DD>FS�T>>5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> QNM@VP6@66�&HU<9<IDFCD<;9�T>>�-9=;U>5>[<99<9[�5CKC9=> QPO7?PMQQ6746Q48686 -9:;<=> ?8PN AB9:C9D�ACE>FC &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 cQ66M66�4�X)�_�cQ66M66�2-*-212 Q66M66� Q@O6?PMQQ6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@\ W-0�W).*(*5()A &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' N6M66� Q@OQ6PMQQ6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@7 )&*,X�).&%�%(Y(3.02(*' &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' \@MN@� Q@OQ\7M\V6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@? R;IJ�'J;F9D;9 &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' 87QM66� Q@OP\6M\V6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8V@ ';HH�5BF>] &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' 86\M66� Q@OV\\M\V6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VP ,;B9DS�3<9>�+Z>=<CK�1D<K<DS�%<IDF<=D &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' N8M?\� Q@ONVQM8P6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VN 'W�)&*,X &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' QPM66� Q@ONN@M8P6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VV 0(,&*�+0)-*A+�)Y�0&)W &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' ?6M\\� Q@O\6VMQ86746848686 -9:;<=> ?8V? ^(X5(�0F;Z>FD<>I &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' QP6M66� Q@O7PVMQ86746848686 -9:;<=> ?8V8 +B9�,;UUB9<D<>I &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' ?68M\\� QVO8P7M666746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VQ &1+_'(e4Y-33&A(�X.2(+ &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' QN?MV?� QVOP88MV?6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8V6 3&+�(*'&*,-&+�8 &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' 886M\N� QVOVP?M@66746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@N ,CZ�%>:>K;ZU>9D�33, &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' ?8PMN@� QVO7V\M8@6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@V )&*,X�).&%�%(Y(3.02(*' &HU<9<IDFCD<;9 Q6�d�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' 8?VMN@� QNO86@M66



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#$

%&'( ')&*+&,'-.*�'/0( *12 *&2( ,3&++ 2(2.4%(+,)-0'-.* &2.1*' 5&3&*,(6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@@ 'A>�.BC�(B�,DE<9;�2;F;�,;GHF�D9C�,DEIJH;G9C &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L6�M�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' 86N66� LOP88@N666746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@Q R&3'.*�%(S(3.02(*'�&*%�2&*&T(2(*' &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L6�M�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' U6N66� LOP?6@N666746848686 -9:;<=> ?8VU 'A>�.BC�(B�,DE<9;�2;F;�,;GHF�D9C�,DEIJH;G9C &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L6�M�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' @UN?U� LOP?V?N?U6746848686 -9:;<=> ?8@8 TG9:D9F�TDW>HD &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L6�M�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' ?@N66� LOP?7UN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8OQ X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 20*��8VV�3>9D�BD9> @6N66� LOPQQUN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8O? X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 8?Q�R<BED�20* @6N66� LOPQ7UN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8U6 X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 20*�868�3>9D�3D9> @6N66� LOP@QUN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8O8 X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 @6N66� LOP@7UN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8O7 X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 86Q�R<BA>E�RDZ @6N66� LOPVQUN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8O@ X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 20*�L88�R<BED @6N66� LOPV7UN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8OO X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 20*�8@U�R<BED @6N66� LOPOQUN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8OV X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 20*�8@6�3>9D @6N66� LOPO7UN?U6746748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?8OU X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 86Q�R<BA>E�RDZ�20* 6N66� LOPO7UN?U674L648686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?87L %)�Y.)'.* &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 DIIB<=DF<;9�[>>K L66N66� LOPU7UN?U674LV48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??66 X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 8Q8�R<BED�RDZ @6N66� LOP7QUN?U674LV48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??6L X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 8@U�3>9D��3D9> @6N66� LOP77UN?U674LV48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??68 X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 LOL�R<BED @6N66� LUP6QUN?U674LV48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??6? X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 @6N66� LUP67UN?U674LO48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??8O X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 LQ?�TGKFD[ @6N66� LUPLQUN?U674LO48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??8@ X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L7@�R<BED�20* @6N66� LUPL7UN?U674LO48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??8V X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L@Q�R<BED��20* @6N66� LUP8QUN?U6748Q48686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??8Q X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 QQQ�TGKFD[�IBD9�=AD9J> @6N66� LUP87UN?U6748@48686 -9:;<=> ?87V )&*,Y�).&%�%(S(3.02(*' &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 ?8N66� LUP??6N?U6748@48686 -9:;<=> ?87O )&*,Y�).&%�%(S(3.02(*' &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 \L66N66�4�Y)�]�\L66N66�2-*-212�YDH:>KF�,H>>̂ L66N66� LUPQ?6N?U6748@48686 -9:;<=> ?87O )&*,Y�).&%�%(S(3.02(*' &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 L6�M�&%2-*-+')&'-.*�,.+' LPV8@N66� 86P6@@N?U6748@48686 -9:;<=> ?87U R(Y5(�0H;I>HF<>K &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 0%%�.HC9D9=>�8Q6��DE>9CE>9F�(B�,DE<9;�)D9=A�)S�)>K;HF 8P7V?N@?� 8?P6LUN7L6748748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??6V X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 LUV�R<BED @6N66� 8?P6VUN7L6748748686 _;GH9DB�(9FHZ _( &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 )>=BDKK�-9=;E>�[H;E�-9:�??6Q U@6N66� 8?P7LUN7L6748748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??LL '&55�-20).S(2(*'+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 &IIB<=DF<;9�D9C�0BD9�)>:<>̀ �a20*b�Q�+;GFA�0BGE�,H>>̂ 8@N66� 8?P7Q?N7L6748748686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ??L6 X5�Y.2(+ &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 LQ7�R<BED @6N66� 8?P77?N7LQ6@@6�2>H=AD9F�0H;=>KK<9J�c>>�-9=;E>5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> QP6VQN?O674L648686 +DB>K�)>=><IF ?87L %)�Y.)'.* 5G<BC<9J�0>HE<FK )><EdGHK>E>9F�;[�2>H=AD9F�0H;=>KK<9J�c>>K�[;H�,H>C<F�,DHC�0DZE>9FK L6N66� QP6OQN?OQ6766�-9F>H>KF�-9=;E>5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> V@VNUU674?648686 %>I;K<F c-)+'�3.,XY&)'�*&'-.*&3�5&*X &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 -9F>H>KF @N7@� VV8NU?674?648686 %>I;K<F '>e+'&) &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 -9F>H>KF ??NLQ� V7@N7O674?648686 %>I;K<F c-)+'�3.,XY&)'�*&'-.*&3�5&*X &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 -9F>H>KF L?N7U� O67N7@@66@6�+DB>K�'De�-9=;E>�]�+FDF>�+>H:<=>�c>>K5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> @P6@@N@L674LQ48686 %>I;K<F '(f&+�,.20').33() &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 8M�+>H:<=>�c>>K�]�84?�,<FZ�0;HF<;9 8?UN??� @P87?NUQ674LQ48686 %>I;K<F '(f&+�,.20').33() 0GdB<=�R;ĤK 8M�+>H:<=>�c>>K�]�84?�,<FZ�0;HF<;9 8?UN??� @P@?8NLO674LQ48686 %>I;K<F '(f&+�,.20').33() (%,�1ABD9C 8M�+>H:<=>�c>>K�]�L4?�(%,�0;HF<;9 8?UN??� @POO6N@6@66@L�(%,�+DB>K�'De�-9=;E>�'HD9K[>HK5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> U8PQVQNL?674L648686 _;GH9DB�(9FHZ _( (%,�1ABD9C )>:>HK>�%GIB<=DF>�+DB>K�'De�-9=;E>�>9FHZ�]�_GBZ a7PVQONQ6b O8PULVNO?674L648686 _;GH9DB�(9FHZ 1ABD9C�(%, (%,�1ABD9C )>=;HC�(%,�+DB>K�'De�-9=;E>�'HD9K[>H�]�_GBZ 7PVQONQ6� U8PQVQNL?674?648686 _;GH9DB�(9FHZ _( (%,�1ABD9C )>=;HC�(%,�+DB>K�'De�-9=;E>�'HD9K[>H�]�+>IF>Ed>H LLPOLLN7?� 7QPLOVN6V@6L@@�5<BBDdB>�(eI>9K>K5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> VUP7@LN@Q6746?48686 (eI>9K> %% &EZ�&̂>HK +GdC<:<K<;9 @66N66� V7PQ@LN@Q6746?48686 (eI>9K> %% &EZ�&̂>HK +GdC<:<K<;9 ?66N66� V7PO@LN@Q6746?48686 (eI>9K> %% &EZ�&̂>HK +GdC<:<K<;9 O66N66� O6PQ@LN@Q6746?48686 (eI>9K> %% &EZ�&̂>HK +GdC<:<K<;9 LPQ66N66� OLPU@LN@Q6746?48686 (eI>9K> %% &EZ�&̂>HK +GdC<:<K<;9 866N66� O8P6@LN@Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 TH<KFE<BB�Y<JABD9CK QON@6� O8P677N6Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 ,.1�T>9>HDB�(9J<9>>H<9J�+Y�8L�g;;E�E>>F<9J Q86N66� O8P@L7N6Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 );=̂Z�);DC�+GdC<:<K<;9 8@ON@6� O8POOVN@Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 ,;EE>H=<DB�0H;I>HFZ�.BC�+ID9<KA�'HD<B LQ6N66� O8P7LVN@Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 +ID9<KA�'HD<B�,�+F;H> 8L6N66� O?PL8VN@Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 YDHE;9Z�Y<BBK LQ6N66� O?P8VVN@Q6746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 +G9�,;EEG9<F<>K LP6LVN8@� OQP8U8NO76746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 2<KFZ�3D9> O6N66� OQP?@8NO76746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 2<BB=H>>̂ ?86N66� OQPVO8NO76746748686 5<BB ?@Q@6 3*S�(*T-*(()-*T +GdC<:<K<;9 3DK�(KFD9=<DK�8 OOLN6V� O@PQQ?NU@6748848686 (eI>9K> +&*�2&),.+�%&-3/�)(,.)% &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 5GCJ>F�D9C�FDe�HDF>�8686 @7VN?O� OVP6Q6N886748?48686 (eI>9K> +&*�2&),.+�%&-3/�)(,.)% &CE<9<KFHDF<;9 IGdB<=�9;F<=>K LVON87� OVP86ON@LV6666�,DI<FDB�(eI>9C<FGH>K5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> VQP68LNU6V66@6�,;EEG9<FZ�.GFH>D=A5>J<99<9J�5DBD9=> LPOVVNO8



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!�"!#

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'56678�+9:;<=>?�'@;>AB>�C�(>;DE?4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 88I67JKLM6M38J3N6N6 4EGG 8L658 $'2&(% %O:EAEB=?D=E9A PE�QE�EBB<>B�EA�H9<AHEG�HRD:S>?B�?>;GDH>�TEUE�>@=>AO>? JM6K76� 88I7JJKVM6M38V3N6N6 '@;>AB> %O9S> %O:EAEB=?D=E9A :9A=RGW�DO9S>�;?9 85KNL� 88I758K8N5667L�+9A=EA<EAF�'O<HD=E9A3&?DEAEAF4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 8ILJXK7656677�+9A=?DH=�2DS9?4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 55I7X8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H�+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=�LNX5 566K66� 5XI8X8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W��1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNXJ 566K66� 5XIXX8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNXM 566K66� 5VILX8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNX7 566K66� 5VIMX8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B YE::W�1H�+GEA=9HZ�;DWDSG>�BDG>B�?>H>E;=�LNXL 566K66� 5MI7X8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNXN 566K66� X6I8X8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNXX 566K66� X6IXX8K5M6M36M3N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNV6 566K66� X8ILX8K5M6M3L63N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LLLVILLLXILLL5ILLL7ILLLJILLLNILL58ILLLXILL56 7IJ66K66� X5IXX8K5M6M3L63N6N6 Y9<?ADG�'A=?W YE::W�1H+GEA=9HZ 4<EGOEAF�/>?:E=B (>H9?O�Y�1H+GEA=9HZ�/DWDSG>�[�BDG>B�?>H>E;=��LNX6I�LNXVI�LNM8I�LLNJI�LL6JI�LL88 LI566K66� V6ILX8K5M5667X�$<>B�2EH>AB>B�C�*<SBH?E;=E9AB4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 8I6L7K766M38X3N6N6 4EGG N6N8187M +%/,&%2�%('%�+-0)+,2�-Q�\-]'()1')&* %O:EAEB=?D=E9A N6N6�+%/+-\�%))0%2�$0'*�[�1'14'(*̂ ,/* 8L5KJ6� 8I8X8KM65667M�':;G9W>>�19?DG>4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 7L5K5V6M3NL3N6N6 '@;>AB> $%)* %O:EAEB=?D=E9A G<AHR NLKJV� 756K856M3NL3N6N6 '@;>AB> +REBR9G:�&?DEG�44_ %O:EAEB=?D=E9A >:;G9W>>�4ODW�G<AHR J6K7V� 566KXJ56656�Q>>B�[�%HH9<A=EAF4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 85I666K665665L�Q>>B�[�499ZZ>>;EAF4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> XINM5K876M3863N6N6 '@;>AB> 4̂ �4--̀ '̀'/'(* %O:EAEB=?D=E9A D<F<B=�B>?aEH>B 7MLKJ6� XIVVMK7756657�Q>>B�[�+9AB<G=EAF4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 86INLVKML566X8�Q>>B�[�2>FDG4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> JVIM76K666M36L3N6N6 '@;>AB> $$ %:W�%Z>?B %O:EAEB=?D=E9A JIVN7K66� 7LIXX7K66566XN�Q>>B�[�1>>=EAFB4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 876K6M6M3673N6N6 '@;>AB> b--1 %O:EAEB=?D=E9A b99:�19A=RGW�:>>=EAFB 87KMM� 855K6V566X7�Q>>B�[�/?9U>BBE9ADG4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> LI8L5K5J6M3853N6N6 '@;>AB> 4,b�$-+�,)+K %O:EAEB=?D=E9A 9a>?DF>�<BDF>�U>> VK6N� LI8JJK556M3NN3N6N6 4EGG 6MNNN665 +<D=?9�+9AB<G=DA=BI�2&$K %O:EAEB=?D=E9A 8I766K66� JI5JJK556M3N73N6N6 '@;>AB> 4,b�$-+�,)+K %O:EAEB=?D=E9A +-0 J6K7M� JI5V7KN76M3N73N6N6 '@;>AB> 4,b�$-+�,)+K PDB=>�1DADF>:>A= TDB=>�:DADF>:>A= J6K7M� JIXN7KVJ566XV�Q>>B�[�/?9;>?=W�&D@�+9GG>H=E9A4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> 5J7K76566XM�Q>>B�[�PDB=>�+9GG>H=E9A4>FEAAEAF�4DGDAH> MXIX5MKMN6M36L3N6N6 '@;>AB> P%*&'�+-))'+&,-) PDB=>�1DADF>:>A= %<F<B=��N6N6 XI588KXN�867ILV8K5J



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!!"!#

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'56678�*9:;;�'<=>?9@AB�C�&DD;E�F�GHIJ664@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ JMNOP75667N�Q=@;4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ MI6MNO5R6R36H3H6H6 'S?@AE@ Q0'21%) /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; HROJ6� MI6NNO8R6R36H3H6H6 'S?@AE@ Q=@;9:A�Q;@@B�/VDKV:9�1:EB@V�+:VY /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; HRO8N� MI865OP56R3673H6H6 'S?@AE@ 6R8J8 Q=@;9:A�Q;@@B�/VDKV:9�1:EB@V�+:VY /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; PJO66� MI8M8OP56R38J3H6H6 'S?@AE@ Q=@;9:A�Q;@@B�/VDKV:9�1:EB@V�+:VY /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; P5ORH� MI8N7OH76R3853H6H6 'S?@AE@ 68R5MN Q=@;9:A�Q;@@B�/VDKV:9�1:EB@V�+:VY /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; HRO66� MIH6NOH76R3853H6H6 'S?@AE@ 68RMR8 Q=@;9:A�Q;@@B�/VDKV:9�1:EB@V�+:VY /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; N7ORP� MIH75OH86R3HJ3H6H6 'S?@AE@ /-+-�2-+-�1%(Z'& /=T;>L�UDVWE X=@; NMORP� MIP58O8M6R3P63H6H6 [D=VA:;�'ABV\ [' /=T;>L�UDVWE %Y]=EB�Q=@;9:A�̂:E�L:VY�T:;�BD�:LB=:; 87ONJ� MIPNRO7R566R6�,)*�_�2>:T>;>B\4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ PI6NHO65566R8�,)*�_�'9?;D\@@�4@A@X>B�,AE=V:AL@4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ P6I88RONN6R38N3H6H6 'S?@AE@ &12�102&,*&%&'�,)&'(̂ -̀ '()1')&%2�'1/2-.''�4')'Q,&*�/--2 %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA *@?B@9T@V�H6H6 JR5ORN� P6IN85ONM6R38N3H6H6 'S?@AE@ &12�102&,*&%&'�,)&'(̂ -̀ '()1')&%2�'1/2-.''�4')'Q,&*�/--2 /=T;>L�UDVWE *@?B@9T@V�H6H6 8IMRNO77� PHIH8MO5H566RH�,)*�_�UDVW@VE�+D9?@AE:B>DA4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ 5I677O66N66H6�4:AW�+a:VK@E4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ MHNOHR6R38J3H6H6 'S?@AE@ Q;@@B�Y:Ea %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA (@X�b�6HJRHJ8R HRORN� MJNOH56R3HM3H6H6 'S?@AE@ Q2)4 U:EB@�1:A:K@9@AB +a:VK@Y�4:LW�+a@LWE 866O66� JJNOH56R3P63H6H6 'S?@AE@ Q2)4 %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA $DV9:AB�%LLD=AB�+a:VK@ JO66� J5HOH5N66P6�1@VLa:AB�*@Vc>L@�Q@@E4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ NIHRMO6M6R36H3H6H6 'S?@AE@ 1@VLa:AB�*@Vc>L@E 4=>;Y>AK�/@V9>BE 1@VLa:AB�:LLD=AB�E@Vc>L@�X@@�9DABa;\�XDV�1\�?@V9>BODVK 86O66� NIP6MO6M6R3863H6H6 'S?@AE@ 1@VLa:AB�*@Vc>L@E 4=>;Y>AK�/@V9>BE 1@VLa:AB�:LLD=AB�E@Vc>L@�X@@�9DABa;\�XDV�1\�?@V9>BODVK 85RO6N� NIMNPO88N66J5�1:VW@B>AK�_�U@TE>B@4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ HIJRPOHJN665J�/DEB:K@4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ HINJMON6N66N6�(@AB�_�[:A>BDV>:;�'<=>?9@AB4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ 8IN68OJ6N66NJ�(C1�d/=T;>L�UDVWEI�(D:YEI�4=>;Y>AKEe4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ 85IRM7OJP6R38N3H6H6 'S?@AE@ /Df@V�g:=E�'<=>?9@AB /=T;>L�UDVWE D>;I�X>;B@VE�XDV�TV@:W�>A�D>;�La:AK@E 8N8OMJ� 8NI88ROR76R38R3H6H6 +V@Y>B�+:VY�+V@Y>B %1%h-) /=T;>L�UDVWE d8MJORRe 85IRNPORR6R38R3H6H6 +V@Y>B�+:VY�+V@Y>B %1%h-) /=T;>L�UDVWE d8MJORRe 85I7H7O666R38R3H6H6 'S?@AE@ %1%h-) /=T;>L�UDVWE 8H�?W�DV@KDA�R8_5HH�9Df@V�T;:Y@E 88JO66� 85IRMPO666R3H83H6H6 'S?@AE@ U%21%(& %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA ?=T;>L�fDVWE�f:B@V�̂:BDV:Y@�:AY�TV@:W�L;@:A@V PMO5N� 85IRNNO5NN66R6�/:\VD;;�_�'S?@AE@EN66R8�/:\VD;;�_�*:;:V>@EN66RH�/:\VD;;�_�*:;:V>@E�_�+>B\�%Y9>A>EBV:BDV4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ NRI85MO5J6R36P3H6H6 /:\VD;;�+a@LW $$ Z:V@A�*O�̂:;;:a@V %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA V̂DEE�/:\�_�&a>E�>E�ADB�:�;@K:;�?:\�EB=T HI7JJOHP� 7HI68RO776R38N3H6H6 /:\VD;;�+a@LW $$ Z:V@A�*O�̂:;;:a@V %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA V̂DEE�/:\�_�&a>E�>E�ADB�:�;@K:;�?:\�EB=T HI7JJOHP� 7MI7NJO88N66RP�/:\VD;;�_�*:;:V>@E�_�+>B\�*@LV@B:V\4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ 85I676ONRN66RM�/:\VD;;�_�*:;:V>@E�_�+>B\�+;@VW4@K>AA>AK�4:;:AL@ 8MINJ5OMP6R36P3H6H6 /:\VD;;�+a@LW $$ &V:L>�(O�1L̂ >A;@\ %Y9>A>EBV:B>DA V̂DEE�/:\�_�&a>E�>E�ADB�:�;@K:;�?:\�EB=T HI88JOH6� 85I7N8O5P



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!�"!#

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'5637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ &<:AC�(D�1AECF>@; %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F E<=II�/:;�K�&?CI�CI�F=J�:�>@L:>�M:;�IJNO 9P77QD95� 7RP6RSDRT8556Q�/:;<=>>�K�*:>:<C@I�K�/NO>CA�U=<BI�2@:G4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ V6P875D875635T39595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ E:<;�$D�E:>>:?@< /NO>CA�U=<BI E<=II�/:;�K�&?CI�CI�F=J�:�>@L:>�M:;�IJNO 9P5V5D76� Q7P8Q5D655637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ E:<;�$D�E:>>:?@< /NO>CA�U=<BI E<=II�/:;�K�&?CI�CI�F=J�:�>@L:>�M:;�IJNO 9P5V5D76� QTP867D568556S�/:;<=>>�K�*:>:<C@I�K�/NO>CA�U=<BI4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ T9P9RVDTQ5635T39595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ 1:JJ?@W�X=GL@ /NO>CA�U=<BI E<=II�/:;�K�&?CI�CI�F=J�:�>@L:>�M:;�IJNO 7PTVRDT9� TTPST9DS85637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ 1:JJ?@W�X=GL@ /NO>CA�U=<BI E<=II�/:;�K�&?CI�CI�F=J�:�>@L:>�M:;�IJNO 7PTV6DTR� TVP6R9D5Q85955�/:;<=>>�K�&:Y@I4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ 7VPSR8D8R5635T39595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ 1:JJ?@W�X=GL@ /NO>CA�U=<BI 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 75TD7V� 7VP865D695635T39595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ Z:<@F�*D�E:>>:?@< %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 97RDV9� 7QP556DTV5635T39595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ E:<;�$D�E:>>:?@< /NO>CA�U=<BI 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 7QSD58� 7QP7SQDV75635T39595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ &<:AC�(D�1AECF>@; %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 7S7DR7� 7QPT98D995637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ E:<;�$D�E:>>:?@< /NO>CA�U=<BI 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 7QSD58� 7QPVRTD965637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ 1:JJ?@W�X=GL@ /NO>CA�U=<BI 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 75TD99� 7QPQRSDQ75637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ Z:<@F�*D�E:>>:?@< %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 97RDV9� 7QPR5VD6T5637839595 /:;<=>>�+?@AB $$ &<:AC�(D�1AECF>@; %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F 'HM>=;@<�&:Y@I 7S7DR7� 7QP6SSD8V85975�/:;<=>>�K�*@<[CA@�\@@I4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ 7P96SD9V5637V39595 'YM@FI@ ,)&0,& %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F H=FJ?>;�M:;<=>>�I@<[CA@ S7DR9� 7PTQRD5S5637V39595 'YM@FI@ ,)&0,& /NO>CA�U=<BI H=FJ?>;�M:;<=>>�I@<[CA@ S7DRT� 7PV76DR685995�0FC]=<HI4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ 96QD6S85T55�*NMM>C@I�K�-]]CA@4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ VP69TDRS5635V39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I 6VDT5� QP57RD7S5635Q39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F A=M;�M:M@< VQDR5� QP5STD6S5635S39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I Q6D6S� QP79TD695637Q39595 'YM@FI@ \N@>H:F�\>@@J�/<=L<:H�1:IJ@<�+:<G %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F <=>>�=]�]=<@[@<�IJ:HMI QQD55� QP78RD695637839595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�A>@:FCFL�INMM>C@I 7RD66� QP768D675637R39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F IF@@_@�LN:<G 9SD66� QP99VD655637R39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F IJ:<J@<�:FG�:>J@<F:J=< 79QDRV� QPTQ5D8V5637R39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F A=M;�M:M@< Q9D8R� QPV5TDQ95639539595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I TTD87� QPVT8D9T5639539595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I 7T9DTR� QPQS6DS75639739595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I T5DQS� QPS55D785639939595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F A>@:FCFL�INMM>C@I 7TSD6R� QP8T8D7Q5639939595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I 956D65� QP6V8D5Q5639939595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I 96D6Q� QP688D555639T39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F ?:FG�I:FCJC_@< T6DRR� SP57SDRR5639T39595 'YM@FI@ &'̀ %*�\%+,2,&,'*�+-11,**,-) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F -\\,+'�*0//2,'* 78D55� SP5TTDRR5639Q39595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F :IN<C=F�V�;@:<I 8SD66� SP775DR85639839595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F L==�L=F@�:G?@IC[@�IM<:; 7QD6R� SP79SDRQ5639839595 'YM@FI@ %1%̂ -) %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F =]]CA@�INMM>C@I 7P556DVQ� 8P7TSDT585T57�*NMM>C@I�K�a:FCJ=<C:>4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ Q7QDSS85T59�*NMM>C@I�K�1:CFJ@F:FA@4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ QS7D5T85V55�&@>@M?=F@�b�,FJ@<F@J4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ 9PRR7DS75637Q39595 'YM@FI@ 5555R8S */'+&(01�40*,)'** %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F &,1'�U%()'(�+%42' 9TQDRR� TP778DV685VQ5�&<:[@>�K�1C>@:L@�(@CHON<I@H@FJI4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ 9P7R9DR985Q55�0JC>CJC@I4@LCFFCFL�4:>:FA@ QP58SDQ75637839595 'YM@FI@ +-0)&.�2,)'�*0$ %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F W:J@< TSDRT� QP77TDTV5637839595 'YM@FI@ +-0)&.�2,)'�*0$ %GHCFCIJ<:JC=F *'(c,+'�\'' 7DQ5� QP77VDRV5639739595 'YM@FI@ 420'4-))'&�'2'+&(,+ /NO>CA�U=<BI 2,EX&* RQD9Q� QP955D56



���������	
������������������������������

������
��� � ��� ��!"#!"

$%&' &(%)*%+&,-)�&./' )01 )%1' +2%** 1'1-3$'*+(,/&,-) %1-0)& 4%2%)+'5637837575 '9:;<=; 420'4-))'&�'2'+&(,+ />?@AB�CDEF= *GE;;G�2AHIG 8J5KLM� NOPJ5K6J5637837575 '9:;<=; 420'4-))'&�'2'+&(,+ %QRA<A=GESGAD< 1-)&T2.�'2'+&(,+�4,22 756K7P� NONM5K86L5565�,<BDR;�U�-GI;E4;HA<<A<H�4S@S<B; 8PKJ75635V37575 +E;QAG�+SEQ�+E;QAG W>;@RS<�W@;;G�/EDHESR�1S=G;E�+SEQ %QRA<A=GESGAD< (;?SG;�(;X;E;<B;�Y�58LJ6VJN 85K5P� 7PKJN5637737575 '9:;<=; &'Z%*�+-1/&(-22'(�-W�/042,+�%++-0)&* CS=G;�1S<SH;R;<G CS=G;�S<Q�E;B[B@;�=S@;=�GS9�:[RG�U�@SG;�X;;= \858KLV] \MLK86]L5855�̂ES<G�,<BDR;4;HA<<A<H�4S@S<B; 78NO7N8K5VL5858�̂ES<G�'9:;<=;4;HA<<A<H�4S@S<B; 78POJMJK7L



���������	
����������������������������������������� �!"#$�����%��&�� �!"!"

��� '�
���(�(��� ��#)*

+,+-.-/+0-. 10234+ ,546�10234+ 7�,8�10234+9:;<=>?@@A@�-2�5BC<D>=�E�/BCFG>CC�/<H:IJ KLM??@NA@ KLMOO?NKP QRR?NAPS OPNOR�7?@@AA�-2�5BC<D>=�E�TBJU�/<H:IJ P@MOV?NOV LKM?PPNWP VMR@PNLA AAWNLK�7?@@R@�XBC>U�+BY�6>Z>:H> KVVM?RANKK K?@M@@@N@@ ?VM?RANKK AK@NAO�7?@A@@�1H[CF[:\�]>D=[I�9:;<=> WLLMPLWNRW ALLMR@@N@@ K@@MKLWNRW KK@NKV�7?@A@A�,XX8�/<==>D;[BC LA@N@@ QLA@N@@S?@A@K�,XX8�6>U[F>:I[BC KM?L@N@@ ?MA@@N@@ QAML?@N@@S L@N@@�7?@A@W�X[\:�]>D=[IU RPRN@@ AM@@@N@@ Q?KRN@@S RPNR@�7?@A@?�+DB:Û<DIBI[<:�8>>�E�/34 KR@N@@ KMR@@N@@ QKMKR@N@@S A@N@@�7?@A@R�+DB:Û<DIBI[<:�8>>U�E�_[CC;D>>̀ ?AMPRKN@@ ?KMOV@N@@ QAMKKVN@@S OPNA?�7?@A@L�+DB:Û<DIBI[<:�8>>�E�a1�T<=>U AA?MK@?N@@ LAM?@@N@@ RKMV@?N@@ AVLN@@�7?@A@P�8HIHD>�6<BFGBJ�8H:FU AWMR@VN@@ AWMR@VN@@?@AR@�XHbF[Z[U[<:�9:;<=> AOVMRK@NOR PRM@@@N@@ AKWMRK@NOR KL?NLO�7?@ARR�1[CCBbC>�4Ŷ>:U>�9:;<=> PPMO?PNVR PPMO?PNVR?@K@@�X<C[F�cBUI>�X>DZ[;>U AL?MAVKNVP APLM?@@N@@ QAKMKAPNAWS OWN@P�7?@K@A�8DB:;d[U>�8>>U WVMLP@NKR R?M@@@N@@ QARMWKONPRS PANLA�7?@K@K�X<C[F�cBUI>�X>DZ[;>U�E�6>UI<DBI[<:e.BI>�8>> AMLLRN@@ WM@@@N@@ QAMWWRN@@S RRNR@�7?@W@@�/<==H:[IJ�/>:I>D�6>:IBC ?MV@@N@@ OM@@@N@@ Q?MK@@N@@S RWNWW�7?@WK@�2<:BI[<:U LR@N@@ LR@N@@?@WR@�8[C=�8D[>:FCJ�8>> R@@N@@ R@@N@@?@WRR�.<II>DJ�8>> APNRL APNRL?@R@@�-F=[:[UIDBI[<:�8>>�9:;<=> KWMOOWNOA KWMOOWNOA?@RR@�_>D;dB:I�]D<;>UU[:\�8>>�9:;<=> ?M@P?NWP ?M@P?NWP?@O@@�9:I>D>UI�9:;<=> P@ONOR VKON@@ QAAON@RS VRNL?�7/<UI�<f�3<<FU�X<CFR@@R@�XBC>U�+BY�9:;<=>�E�XIBI>�X>DZ[;>�8>>U RMPP@NR@ KM?R?NO@ WMWARNL@ KWRN@L�7R@@RA�42/�XBC>U�+BY�9:;<=>�+DB:Uf>DU O?MAPLN@L V@M@@@N@@ A?MAPLN@L AAPNPK�7R@ARR�1[CCBbC>�4Ŷ>:U>U PLMK@PNRA PLMK@PNRA36,XX�]6,89+4Ŷ>:U>UL@@@@�/B̂[IBC�4Ŷ>:F[IHD>U L?M@KANV@ L?M@KANV@L@@R@�/<==H:[IJ�,HID>B;d AMPLLNPK KM@@@N@@ QKWWNKVS VVNW?�7L@@RA�/<=̂ HI>D�4Ŷ>:U>�g�6>̂B[D AAMRLANAK AM@@@N@@ A@MRLANAK AMARLNAA�7L@@RW�/<:I[:H[:\�4FH;BI[<:e+DB[:[:\ AMW?PNR@ WMR@@N@@ QKMARKNR@S WVNR@�7L@@RR�/<:IDB;I�.Bb<D V@MWPANLO VWMKR@N@@ QKMVPVNWAS OLNR?�7L@@RP�2H>U�.[;>:U>U�g�XHbU;D[̂I[<:U AMAPANO@ ?MV??N@@ QWMLPKNA@S K?NAO�7L@@RO�4=̂ C<J>>�_<DBC> L@@NP? W@@N@@ W@@NP? K@@NKR�7L@@L@�8>>U�E�-;;<H:I[:\ ALM@@@N@@ PMR@@N@@ VMR@@N@@ KAWNWW�7L@@LW�8>>U�E�1<<̀ >̀>̂[:\ PMVVONRR LMKKVN@@ AMLLANRR AKLNLV�7L@@LR�8>>U�E�/<:UHCI[:\ A@MKWVNOW KKMK@@N@@ QAAMOLAN@PS ?LNAK�7



���������	
����������������������������������������� �!"#$�����%��&�� �!"!"

��� '�
���(�(��� ��!)*

+,+-.-/+0-. 10234+ ,546�10234+ 7�,8�10234+9::;:�8<<=�>�?@ABCDEB@F ;G:H:: I;G:H::J9::;K�8<<=�>�.<L@F GMN;;GH:: MONP::H:: KGNM;GH:: KP:H:P�79::;Q�8<<=�>�R<<CBAL= K99H:O G::H:: IMMMHSQJ MMHQQ�79::;G�8<<=�>�TEDU<==BDA@F PN;QGHOP QGN:::H:: IQ:NQ;PHK9J KOHS:�79::;O�8<<=�>�TEDV<ECW�+@X�/DFF<YCBDA 9PGHG: 9PGHG:9::;S�8<<=�>�Z@=C<�/DFF<YCBDA K:GNMOKH9P S:NK;:H:: KGNQKKH9P KK9HO;�79::OK�[\@FF�4]̂BV\<AC�_�+DDF=�̀�aQNG:: GP;HMO GP;HMO9::O;�8̂<F PNM;SHOS PNM;SHOS9::S:�bc[�>�.B@dBFBCW MN:;QH:9 ;NSOSH:: IPNSK9HSPJ MOHPG�79::SK�bc[�>�4\VFDW<<�1<A<UBC�bA=̂E@AY< MQNQKPH9Q MONP::H:: I9NKOGHMOJ OMHOS�79::SQ�bc[�>�ZDEe<E=�/D\V<A=@CBDA 9N:OOH:: 9N:OOH::;::Q:�1@Ae�/f@EL<= G9QHQ9 MGSH9P Q:QH9Q KG9HMP�7;::M:�R<EYf@AC�[<EgBY<�8<<= ;NP;MHKK 9KQH:: 9NO9KHKK KNQQKHK:�7;::GG�R@Ee<CBAL�_�TED\DCBDA K:N:::H:: IK:N:::H::J;::G9�R@Ee<CBAL�>�Z<d=BC< QNGSMHQG ;N9::H:: IGN::9H;GJ MPHKQ�7;::9G�TD=C@L< QN;GPH;: KN;S:H:: S9PH;: KGMHOS�7;::;:�6<AC�>�?@ABCDEB@F�4]̂BV\<AC KN;:KHG: KN;:KHG:;::;G�6_R�IT̂dFBY�ZDEe=N�6D@h=N�1̂BFhBAL=J K9NS;;H9; KMGN:::H:: IKKON:QQHMMJ KQHGO�7;::S:�T@WEDFF�>�4XV<A=<=;::SK�T@WEDFF�>�[@F@EB<= :H:: :H::;::SQ�T@WEDFF�>�[@F@EB<=�>�/BCW�-h\BAB=CE@CDE OPNO;GHKK OQNOMKHOK QN:PMHM: K:QHP;�7;::SM�T@WEDFF�>�[@F@EB<=�>�/BCW�[<YE<C@EW K9N:O:H;S K9N:O:H;S :H:: K::H::�7;::SP�T@WEDFF�>�[@F@EB<=�>�/BCW�/F<Ee KONSO9HOM KGNMKOHG; MN99OHQ9 KQMHSG�7;::SG�T@WEDFF�>�[@F@EB<=�>�T̂dFBY�ZDEe=�.<@h GMN;SKH:S G;NKMGHMO IMNMPPHQSJ SPHKG�7;::S9�T@WEDFF�>�[@F@EB<=�>�T̂dFBY�ZDEe= MPNSOQH:G MGN;MKHKK I;PSH:9J S;HS:�7;:Q::�T@WEDFF�>�+@X<= KGNS99H;P KGNOPQHS; KQMH;; K::H;O�7;:QK:�T@WEDFF�>�[<EgBY<�8<<= KNPKSHOS KNPKSHOS;:QQ:�0ABUDE\= QSGHS9 QSGHS9;:M::�[̂VVFB<=�>�,UUBY< ;NKM9HM: KON:::H:: IK:NO9MH;:J MSH9G�7;:M:K�[̂VVFB<=�>�?@ABCDEB@F GKGH99 ;G:H:: IQMPHMPJ 9OH;G�7;:M:Q�[̂VVFB<=�>�R@BAC<A@AY< G9KH:M G9KH:M;:P::�+<F<VfDA<�_�bAC<EA<C MNKK;HPS QNS:PH:: QKMHPS K:;HMG�7;:PG:�+E@g<F�>�RBF<@L<�6<B\d̂E=<\<AC= QNKOQHOQ GN:::H:: IQNOK;HKOJ PMH99�7;:PGK�+E@g<F�>�T@EeBAL�_�+DFF= MNO::H:: IMNO::H::J;:G::�0CBFBCB<= GNG;:HKS ;NQ9PH:: IKN9SMHOKJ ;9H9O�7O::;:�i@W=�/D̂ACW�6D@h�8̂Ah G:N:::H:: IG:N:::H::Jc4+�,T46-+bc3�bc/,R4,Cf<E�bAYD\<O::S:�bAYD\<�>�,Cf<E I;OHKSJ I;OHKSJ



���������	
����������������������������������������� �!"#$�����%��&�� �!"!"

��� '�
���(�(��� ��)*)

+,+-.-/+0-. 10234+ ,546�10234+ 7�,8�10234+9:;::�3<=>?�@>ABCD E;FGEF;H:I E;FGEF;H:I,?JD<�4KLD>MDM9::N:�6=O>P�2=P�8Q>R ISGT9IHIT UISGT9IHITV9:;:;�3<=>?�4KLD>MD E;SGNTNHE9 EGF::H:: E;;G;TNHE9 9GFITH:F�7W4+�,+X46�@W/,Y4W4+�@W/,Y4







 
 

Terms of Office for  
Uhland Economic Development Corporation  

Board Members 
2020-2021 

 
Board Member Position Expiration Date Current Member 

1. Secretary  Oct. 28, 2022  Barbara Ilse 

2.  Treasurer  Oct. 28, 2022  Kelly Anderson 

3. Director  Oct. 28, 2022  Gregory Walt 

4.  President  Oct. 28, 2021  Marian Loep 

5.  Director  Oct. 28, 2021  Karen Gallaher 

6.  Vice President  Oct. 28, 2021  Erica Heideman 

7. Director  Oct. 28, 2021  Allison Garcia 

 

 

 

 

Approved by City Council October 7, 2020 
Amended by EDC October 27, 2020; includes FY21 EDC officers 
 



 
CITY OF UHLAND PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
FINAL REPORT 

 
 
DATE: October 21, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Change - Harvest Creek 
 
SUBJECT PROPERTY:  PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD) - TITLE 
SURVEY OF 34.083 ACRES OF LAND, SITUATED IN THE ALBERT PACE SURVEY 
NUMBER 55, ABSTRACT NUMBER 367, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION 
OF A CALLED 48.725 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO DIANE GARONZIK IN 
VOLUME 2583, PAGE 504, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, CALDWELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS (COMPLETE DESCRIPTIONS ARE AVAILABLE AT CITY HALL). 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:   
 Planning and Zoning Commission – October 21, 2020 
 City Council – November 4, 2020 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Agricultural 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Development District (Residential)  
 
BACKGROUND: The Planning and Zoning Commission originally reviewed the Harvest 
Creek Planned Development District paperwork at its July 15, 2020 meeting.  The Harvest 
Creek Zoning Change was considered by the Commission at the September 16, 2020 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting and the Public Hearing was held October 21, 
2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends: 
____ Council approve the Zoning Change. 
____ Council approve the Zoning Change with the following conditions:  

________________________________________________________________ 
____ Council deny the Zoning Change. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  Date:  ___________________ 
Joanne Jarrett, Chair 
Planning and Zoning Commission 















1 

 
EL CAMINO RANCH 

RV RESORT 
 
 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 

Approved February 5, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Amendment __________________, 2020 
 
 
  



2 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______________________ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EL CAMINO RANCH RV RESORT PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT (“PD”) DISTRICT; CHANGING LAND USES AND ADDING ADDITIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR THE MIXED USE PROJECT FEATURING A 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE RESORT AND COMMERCIAL/RETAIL SERVICES; AND 
PROVIDING FOR: RULES, STANDARDS, PROCEDURES, AND SEVERABILITY. 
 
WHEREAS, CRMTX18, LLC, ("Owner") owns a total of 19.541 acres of land, more or less, 

located in Hays County, Texas, and more particularly described by the metes and 
bounds description and the survey which are collectively attached as Exhibit “A” to 
Attachment “1” (the “Property”).  The Property is located wholly within the City of 
Uhland’s corporate limits; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Ordinance No. ______ was approved and adopted on February 5, 2020 creating 

the El Camino Planned Development District based upon the Planned 
Development Agreement attached thereto as Attachment “1”.  

 
 
WHEREAS,  a Planned Development (“PD”) district accommodates large or complex 

developments under unified control planned as a single continuous project 
providing greater design flexibility in return for desirable features not normally 
required in conventional zoning districts to create a superior development to that 
which would occur using conventional zoning regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, Owner has submitted an application to the City to amend the existing Planned 

Development District supported by the First Amendment To The El Camino Ranch 
RV Resort Planned Development Agreement attached hereto as Attachment “1”; 
and  

 
WHEREAS,   the First Amendment To The El Camino Ranch RV Resort Planned Development 

Agreement proposes changes to the land uses to include approximately 16.541 
acres of the Property to be developed as a recreational vehicle resort and 
approximately 3 acres of the Property as commercial and retail services, and adds 
additional development standards for the Project to accommodate the change in 
uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Uhland seeks to protect the health, safety, and welfare of those living 

in, working in, and visiting the City; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City held discussions and invited public comment on the proposed amendment 

to the El Camino PD district zoning in a public hearing held on the ______ day of 
_______________________, 20_____ at _____ o’clock ___.M.; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 51 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has general 

authority to adopt this Ordinance; and 
 



3 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has broad 
zoning authority; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City finds that the land use and development standards provided in the 

proposed amendment to the El Camino Ranch RV Resort PD district are consistent 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of those living in, working 
in, and visiting the City. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Uhland: 
 
 

ARTICLE I.    FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
The foregoing Recitals are hereby adopted as findings of facts and are incorporated fully herein. 
 
 

ARTICLE II. SHORT TITLE  
 

This Ordinance shall be commonly cited as the “ First Amendment to the El Camino Ranch RV 
Resort PD”. 

 
ARTICLE III.    ENACTMENT 

 
A.  Zoning Map. The official zoning map of the City of Uhland is hereby amended to reflect the 

changes established in the amended PD Master Plan attached as Exhibit “A” to Attachment 
“1”.  

 
B.  Development Plan. This Ordinance, together with Attachment “1” and the exhibits thereto 

constitutes the first amendment to the land use standards and development plan for the El 
Camino Ranch RV Resort PD District upon the Property, as reflected in Attachment “1”, 
covered by this Ordinance. All land use and development of the El Camino Ranch RV Resort 
PD on the Property must conform to the limitations and conditions set forth in Ordinance 
_____, this Ordinance, and all attachments and exhibits hereto and thereto (“Development 
Plan”). Enactment of this Ordinance shall constitute the City’s approval of all amendments 
contained in the First Amendment To The El Camino Ranch RV Resort Planned Development 
Agreement.  

 
C.  Planned Development (PD) Master Plan. The amended PD Master Plan detailed in Exhibit 

“A” of Attachment “1” to this Ordinance, is hereby approved.  
 
D Applicable Regulations. Except as specifically provided by the Development Plan, the El 

Camino Ranch RV Resort PD Project is subject to all provisions of the City’s Ordinances. To 
the extent any provisions of the Development Plan conflicts with any provisions of City 
Ordinances or any related regulations, the provisions of the Development Plan shall control.  

 
E. Variances. The approval of this Ordinance, Attachment “1” and Exhibits A-D constitutes the 

approval of the amended development standards and shall be deemed to be the functional 
equivalent of the approval of variances, exceptions, and alternative standards from conflicting 
provisions of City Ordinances. When considering a request for variances, exceptions, or 
alternative standards for the El Camino Ranch RV Resort PD Project that were not addressed 



4 

by the development standards contained in the Development Plan, the City shall consider the 
Development Plan, and the City’s, then existing, Ordinances collectively.  

 
F.  Resolution of Conflicts. The documents governing the PD should be read in harmony to the 

fullest extent possible. If a conflict arises between the charts included in the exhibits and the 
illustrations contained in the exhibits, the charts shall control. If a conflict arises between the 
terms of this Ordinance and the exhibits, the terms of this Ordinance shall control.  

 
G.  Attachments and Exhibits. The following Attachment and Exhibits thereto attached are 

incorporated into this Ordinance in their entirety, as though set forth fully in the text of this 
Ordinance: 

 
Attachment “1” – First Amendment To The El Camino Ranch RV Resort Planned 
Development Agreement 
Exhibit “A” Amended PD Master Plan 
Exhibit “B” Amended PD Greenspace/Open Space Plan 
Exhibit “C” Amended PD Phasing Plan 

 
ARTICLE IV.    REPEALER 

 
All ordinances, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, herein.  
 

ARTICLE V.     SEVERABILITY 
 
Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed 
invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with 
jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of 
this Ordinance. 
 

ARTICLE VI.    PROPERTY RECORDS 
 
The City Secretary is hereby directed to record a Notice of this Ordinance in the real property 
records of the County (so as to bind the City, the Owner and all future owners of the Property, 
and to provide regulatory certainty during the Term of this Ordinance). 
 

ARTICLE VII.    PUBLICATION 
 
The City Secretary is hereby directed to record and publish the attached rules, regulations and 
policies in the City’s Ordinances as authorized by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government 
Code.  
 

ARTICLE VIII.    PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 
 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 
was open to the public, and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was 
given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. Notice was 
also provided as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code.  
 
 



5 

ARTICLE IX.    EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage by the City Council and publication 
as required by law. 
 
 

[Signature Page Follows] 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this, the ________ day of ___________________ 2020.  
 
 
 
 

CITY OF UHLAND, TEXAS: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Vicki Hunter, Mayor 

 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Traci McGinley, City Secretary  

 



Attachment “1” 
 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

 EL CAMINO RANCH RV RESORT 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Uhland, Texas, a Texas general law city (“City”), and 

CRMTX18, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Owner”), heretofore executed that certain 
Development Agreement for El Camino Ranch RV Resort PD (the “Development Agreement”), 
concerning approximately 19.541 acres of land in Hays County, Texas, as more particularly 
described by the Development Agreement (the “Property”), which Development Agreement was 
recorded at Instrument No. ______-____________ of the Official Public Records of Hays County, 
Texas; and 

WHEREAS, City and Owner have agreed to amend the Development Agreement in certain 
respects and did so by the adoption of this First Amendment to the El Camino Ranch RV Resort 
Planned Development Agreement (this “First Amendment”) which will be recorded in the Official 
Public Records of Hays County, Texas; and 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that the Development Agreement is 
hereby amended by the adoption of this First Amendment as follows: 

1. Section 3.2 of the Development Agreement is replaced by the following: 

3.2  Permitted Uses.  
The project may be developed to contain a recreational vehicle resort on approximately 
16.541 acres of the Property and commercial/retail uses, including convenience store with 
fuel sales, on approximately 3 acres of the Property.  Specifically, there shall be no more 
than 340 recreational vehicle sites located within the Property.  
 

2. Section 3.4 of the Development Agreement is replaced by the following: 

3.4  Maximum Densities. 
 

a. Recreational Vehicle Resort. The Project shall not exceed the maximum gross density 
of 20.4951 sites per acre and only one cottage and or recreational vehicle per site.  
 
b. Commercial Uses. The Project shall not exceed the following maximum gross 
densities  
(maximum site-size per use not including parking): 
  1) Fast-Food: 16,000 square feet 
  2) Restaurant: 60,000 square feet 
  3) Grocery Store: 100,000 square feet 
  4) Hotel: 200 rooms 
  5) Movie Theater: 45,000 square feet 
  6) Office: 60,000 square feet  
  7) Gym or Health Club: 12,000 square feet 
  8) Farmers Market 



2 

  9) Fruit/Vegetable/Produce Stand 
  10) Food Truck Court 
  11) Beer Garden 
  12) Live Music and/or Event Venue 
  13) Convenience Store with Fuel Sales: 10,000 square feet * 
 
  * Refer to Section 6.4 for additional standards 

 

3. The following Section 6.4 is added to the Development Plan: 

6.4 Standards Applicable to Convenience Stores  
Notwithstanding any other provisions contained herein, the following additional standards 
shall apply to any Convenience Store use on the Commercial parcel: 
 
a. All customer facing exterior wall surfaces, excluding windows and doors, shall be 

constructed of ninety-five percent (95%) brick or natural stone and mortar as 
approved by the City.  
 

b. All lighting from the building and gas canopy shall be designed and located so as 
to prevent glare or direct illumination across the bounding property line from a 
visible source of illumination nor may any such light be of such intensity as to 
create a nuisance or detract from the use and enjoyment of adjacent property.  The 
use of full cut-off down lighting or other dark sky techniques to minimize light 
pollution shall be required. 
 

c. A minimum 15 foot landscape buffer containing 1 shade tree and 10 shrubs (5 
gallon minimum) every 40 feet of linear frontage shall be required along the 
frontage of Highway 21 and Gristmill Road.   

 
d. All driveway access points to Highway 21 shall be subject to review and approval 

of TxDOT 
 

e. The number of and the construction of driveway access points to Gristmill Road 
shall be subject to review and approval of the City.  

 
f. All driveways shall be constructed of concrete and provide for an apron attachment 

to extend along the right-of-way past the driveway for ingress and egress.  
 

g. All vehicular parking and circulation must be contained on-site within the 
commercial lot.  Parking along Gristmill Road and Highway 21 shall be expressly 
prohibited. 

 
h. Owner shall provide for the utility connection and parking space of at least two 

level 2 electric vehicle charging stations or at least one DC fast charging station as 
defined by the US Department of Energy.   

 
i. Owner shall complete a Traffic Impact Analysis (‘TIA’) specifically for the 

convenience store toto be reviewed and approved by the city’s engineer and shall 
include the Grist Mill Road and State Highway 21 intersection. Any improvements 
recommended by the TIA shall be completed in lieu of additional roadway impact 



3 

fees for the convenience store. If no improvements are recommended, the Owner 
shall pay $420,000 to the City as additional roadway impact fees for the 
convenience store. 

 
If Road Improvements are recommended, there shall be no issuance of any 
permits, certificates of completion or certificates of occupancy for the convenience 
store until the Road Improvements are substantially complete, as determined by 
the City Engineer; except, in the event the Owner posts a bond or other fiscal 
surety acceptable to the City, in an amount determined adequate by the City 
Engineer, for the Road Improvements. 

 

 Section 7 of the Development Agreement is deleted in its entirety. 

 

45.  The PD Master Plan attached as Exhibit “B” to the Development Agreement is 
replaced by Exhibit “A” to this First Amendment, which shall govern to the extent of any conflict.    

556. The PD Greenspace/Open Space Plan attached as Exhibit “C” to the Development 
Agreement is replaced by Exhibit “B” to this First Amendment, which shall govern to the extent 
of any conflict.    

667.  The PD Phasing Plan attached as Exhibit “D” to the Development Agreement is 
replaced by Exhibit “C” to this First Amendment, which shall govern to the extent of any conflict.    

778. Except as amended by this First Amendment, all terms and provisions of the 
Development Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  In the case of any conflict, the 
Development Agreement shall prevail.  

889. All capitalized terms used in this Second Amendment shall have the same meanings 
as given to them in the Development Agreement, unless otherwise expressly provided in this First 
Amendment.  

9910.  The “Effective Date” of this First Amendment shall be the date upon which the 
City has adopted the subsequent Ordinance amending the El Camino Ranch RV Resort Planned 
Development District based upon this First Amendment after the Owner has signed this First 
Amendment.  

 

 

 

(signature pages follow) 

 



4 

 

EXECUTED to be effective as of the “Effective Date”. 

 

      CITY: 

                                                                         CITY OF UHLAND, TEXAS,  
                                                                          a Texas general law city 
 

 
                                                                          By: __________________________________ 
                                                                          Name: ________________________________ 
                                                                          Title:  Mayor 

 
 
 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS §  

COUNTY OF ___________ §  

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ___________, 20___ 
by ________________________________________, the duly authorized Mayor of the City of 
Uhland, Texas, a Texas general law city, on behalf of said city. 

 

_______________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

 
 
 
 

EXECUTED to be effective as of the “Effective Date”. 

 
OWNER: 

 
 

CRMTX18, LLC, 
   a Texas limited liability company  

  
 
 

By: __________________________________ 
Name:  
Title: Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  

COUNTY OF ___________ §  

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ___________, 20___ 
by _______________________, the Manager of CRMTX18, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company. 

 

_______________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Texas



Ordinance No. ____ - Page 1 of 16 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF LAND 
ADJACENT AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY OF UHLAND, TEXAS, 
BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN 24.90 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, MORE 
OR LESS, OUT OF THE LEWIS L. JOSEPH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
164, CALDWELL COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF THAT CERTAIN 
24.90 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO MICHAEL L. BRANDON 
BY WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 261, PAGE 902, 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, CALDWELL COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING 
MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS IN 
“EXHIBIT A”  
 

 
WHEREAS, a petition has been presented to the Board of Aldermen of the City of 

Uhland, Texas, asking for voluntary annexation of a tract of land adjacent and contiguous 
to the City Limits of the City of Uhland, Texas; and 
 

WHEREAS, no voters, and no person reside on said land. All persons within 200 
feet of said property were notified by letter; and 
 

WHEREAS, two public hearing were held at 6:00 p.m. on August 19, 2020 and 
September 2, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the petition was signed by all persons owning an interest in said land; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF UHLAND, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. That the tracts of land described in said petition which is attached as 
“Exhibit A”, and which is hereby incorporated by reference, shall be and it is hereby, 
voluntary annexed to the City of Uhland, Texas, for all purposes. 
 

Section 2. That the City Council finds that all prerequisites have been satisfied, 
and that no legal impediment exists to prevent said voluntary annexation. 
 

Section 3. That the legal description of all voluntary annexed property shall be 
filed with this Ordinance, as a part hereof, and that the map of the City limits shall be 
amended to show the property voluntary annexed as a part of the City. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of __________________, 
2020, by a vote of ___ ayes, ___ nays and ___ abstentions of the City Council of Uhland, 
Texas. 
 
 
 
              
        Vicki Hunter, Mayor 



Ordinance No. ____ - Page 2 of 16 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary 



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 3 of 16

City Secretary
Text Box
Exhibit "A"



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 4 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 5 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 6 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 7 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 8 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 9 of 16



EXHIBIT "A"

Ordinance No. _____ - Page 10 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 11 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 12 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 13 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 14 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 15 of 16



Ordinance No. _____ - Page 16 of 16



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 1 of 20   
       
        

 
 

ROCKY ROAD RANCH 
 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved ____________________, 2020 
 
 

 

 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 2 of 20   
       
        

 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______________________ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF UHLAND, TEXAS ADOPTING AND APPROVING A 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND CREATING A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT FOR APPROXIMATELY  24.90  ACRES OF LAND LOCATED  AT 2553 ROCKY 
ROAD, UHLAND, TEXAS, WITH GEO REFERENCE CODE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM 
SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE [(number)], NAD [number]; ESTABLISHING LAND USE AND 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, TO INCLUDE ANNEXATION AND ZONING, FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A MIXED USE PROJECT FEATURING 
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR: RULES, 
STANDARDS, PROCEDURES, AND SEVERABILITY. 
 
 

WHEREAS, Patrick J Tighe, ("Owner") owns a total of 24.90  acres of land, more or less, located 
in Caldwell County, Texas, and more particularly described by the metes and bounds 
description and the survey which are collectively attached as Exhibit “A” to 
Attachment “A” (the “Property”); and    

WHEREAS,  Owner plans to develop 23.97 acres of the Property as Residential Lots, Parkland and 
Community lots and to develop 0.93 Acres of the Property as Right of Way , which 
will benefit and serve the present and future citizens of the City, as generally 
delineated in the PD Master Plan attached as Exhibit “B” to Attachment “A”, and the 
Permitted Uses attached as Exhibit “C” to Attachment “A” (the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS,  a Planned Development (“PD”) accommodates large or complex developments under 
unified control planned as a single continuous project providing greater design 
flexibility in return for desirable features not normally required under conventional 
development standards to create a superior development to that which would occur 
using conventional zoning regulations; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Uhland, Texas (“City”) seeks to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 
those living in, working in, and visiting the City; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Uhland has been in negotiations with Owner and agents of the proposed 
PD Project and submits the following Attachment “A”, Rocky Road Ranch Planned 
Development Agreement as application to zone the Property upon annexation as 
Rocky Road Ranch Planned Development District; and  

WHEREAS, Owner has submitted an application to the City to annex the Property; and 

WHEREAS,  the City held discussions and invited public comment on the proposed Rocky Road 
Planned Development District  



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 3 of 20   
       
        

zoning at a public hearing held on the ______ day of _______________________, 2020 at  

_____ o’clock ___.M.; and  

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has specific 
authority to enter into a Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 51 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has general 
authority to adopt this Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has broad 
zoning authority; and 

WHEREAS,  the City finds that the land use and development standards established in the proposed 
Project are consistent to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of those 
living in, working in, and visiting the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Uhland, Texas: 

 

ARTICLE I.    FINDINGS OF FACT AND SHORT TITLE 

The foregoing Recitals are hereby adopted as findings of facts and are incorporated fully herein. This 
Ordinance shall be commonly cited as the “Rocky Road Ranch PD”. 

 

ARTICLE II.    ENACTMENT 

A.  Zoning Map. The official zoning map of the City of Uhland is hereby amended to reflect the 
zoning designations established in Attachment "A ". 

 
B.  Development Plan. This Ordinance, together with Attachment “A” and the exhibits thereto 

constitutes the land use standards and development plan for the Rocky Road Ranch PD District 
upon the Property, as reflected in Attachment “A”, covered by this Ordinance. All land use and 
development on the Property shall conform to the limitations and conditions set forth in this 
Ordinance, Attachment A and the exhibits thereto. Enactment of this Ordinance shall constitute 
the City’s approval of the land use standards and development plan. 

 
B.  Planned Development (PD) Master Plan. The PD Master Plan detailed in Exhibit “B” of 

Attachment “A”, is hereby approved. Approval of the PD Master Plan shall not constitute a waiver 
or approval of any platting requirements. 

 
C. Applicable Regulations. Except as specifically provided by this Ordinance, the Rocky Road 

Ranch PD Project is subject to all provisions of the City’s Ordinances in effect on the effective 
date of this Ordinance. To the extent any provisions of this Ordinance conflicts with any 
provisions of City Ordinances or any related regulations, the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
control.  



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 4 of 20   
       
        

 
D. Variances. The approval of this Ordinance and Exhibits A-D of Attachment “A” constitutes the 

approval of the development standards and shall be deemed to be the functional equivalent of the 
approval of variances, exceptions, and alternative standards from conflicting provisions of City 
Ordinances. When considering a request for variances, exceptions, or alternative standards in the 
Rocky Road Ranch PD District that were not addressed by the development standards contained 
herein, the City shall consider this Ordinance, the PD Master Plan, and the City’s, then existing, 
Ordinances collectively.  

 
E.  Resolution of Conflicts. The documents governing the Rocky Road Ranch PD Project should be 

read in harmony to the fullest extent possible. If a conflict arises between the charts included in 
the exhibits and the illustrations contained in the exhibits, the charts shall control. If a conflict 
arises between the terms of this Ordinance and the exhibits, the terms of this Ordinance shall 
control. 

 
F.  Attachments and Exhibits. The following Attachment and exhibits thereto are incorporated into 

this Ordinance in their entirety, as though set forth fully in the text of this Ordinance: 
 
 Attachment “A” – Rocky Road Ranch Planned Development Agreement 
 

Exhibit “A” Description of the Property  
Exhibit “B” PD Master Plan  
Exhibit “C” Permitted Uses 
Exhibit “D”  Open Space & Fencing Plan 

 

ARTICLE III.     SEVERABILITY 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed 
invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with 
jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of this 
Ordinance. 

 

ARTICLE IV.    PROPERTY RECORDS 

The City Secretary is hereby directed to record a Notice of this Ordinance in the real property records 
of the County (so as to bind the City, the Owner and all future owners of the Property), and to provide 
regulatory certainty during the Term of this Ordinance. 

 

ARTICLE V.    PUBLICATION 

The City Secretary is hereby directed to record and publish the attached rules, regulations and policies 
in the City’s Ordinances as authorized by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code.  

 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 5 of 20   
       
        

ARTICLE VI.    PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was 
open to the public, and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. Notice was also provided 
as required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code.  

 

ARTICLE VII.    EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage by the City Council and publication as 
required by law. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this, the ________ day of ___________________ 20___.  

 
 
 
 

 CITY OF UHLAND, TEXAS: 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Vicki Hunter, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary   



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 6 of 20   
       
        

 
Attachment “A” 

 
ROCKY ROAD RANCH  

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT 

 
 

SECTION 1. 
ENACTMENT PROVISIONS 

 
1.1  Popular Name. 
 This Planned Development Agreement (“PDA”) shall be commonly cited as the “Rocky Road 

Ranch PDA”. 
 
1.2  Parties.  
 This PDA is made by and among Patrick J Tighe, (“Owner”) and the City of Uhland, Texas, 

(“City”). 
 
1.3  Purpose. 
 This PDA memorializes the intent of the Parties to establish land use and development 

standards, to include annexation and zoning, for the construction and operation of a mixed 
use project featuring residential and commercial development.  

 
1.4 Scope. 
 This PDA applies to the Property as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 

herein for all purposes. 
 
 

SECTION 2. 
DEFINITIONS 

 
2.1  General. 
 Words and phrases used in this PDA shall have the meanings set forth in this section. Terms 

that are not defined below but are defined elsewhere in the City Code of Ordinances, shall be 
given the meanings set forth in the Ordinance for which it is defined. Words and phrases not 
defined in any City Ordinance shall be given their common, ordinary meaning unless the 
context clearly requires otherwise. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 
present tense shall include the future tense, words in the plural shall include the singular, and 
words in the masculine gender shall include the female gender; and vise-a-versa. The word 
“shall” is always mandatory and the word “may” is merely directory. Headings and captions 
are for reference only.  

 
2.2 Specific.  
 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 7 of 20   
       
        

 
 

2. Applicable Requirements: shall mean the applicable federal and state laws, city 
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the Rocky Road Ranch PD Standards stated herein. 

3.  Applicant: shall mean any owner, developer, person or entity engaging in subdivision or 
development of any of the Property or applying for any permit, approval, variance or 
waiver for any of the Property. 

4.  Certified Inspector: shall mean an independent certified state licensed inspector to inspect 
the Vertical Building Improvements as to their conformity with applicable city ordinances 
and building codes and related building plans. 

5.  City: shall mean the City of Uhland, Texas, a Texas Type A, general law city. 

6.  City Administrator: shall mean the person or entity engaged by City to serve in the 
capacity of City’s chief administrative officer. 

7.  City Code of Ordinances: shall mean the collective duly adopted ordinances of the City, 
together with all related administrative rules and technical criteria manuals. 

8.  City Council: shall mean the governing body of the City of Uhland, Texas. 

9.  City Engineer: shall mean the person or entity engaged by the City to serve in the capacity 
of engineer for the City of Uhland, Texas. 

10. County: shall mean Caldwell County. 

11. Development Standards: shall mean the land use standards for the Property as described 
in this PDA. All land use and development of the Property in the Rocky Road Ranch PD 
District must conform to the limitations and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  

12. Development Plan: shall mean this PDA and the exhibits attached hereto.  

13. Dwelling: shall mean a residential unit providing complete, independent living facilities 
including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, and cooking. 

14. Effective Date: and similar references shall mean the date of the duly passed and approved 
Ordinance adopting this PDA. 

15. Final Plat: shall mean the official map of a subdivision of the Property together with any 
applicable land development plan, covenants, restrictions, dedications or easements, to be 
recorded in the County property records after approval by City. 

16. Local Retail: shall mean small neighborhood retail commercial to include only those 
commercial uses as listed on Exhibit “C” (“Permitted Uses”). 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 8 of 20   
       
        

17. Lot: shall mean any individual parcel of land subdivided within the Project for a specific 
permitted use. 

18. Masonry: shall be defined as stone, simulated stone, brick, and hard-coat stucco,.   

19. Master Plan: The Master Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B” shows the boundary of the 
Property, location of Permitted Uses, Open Space and street layout. The Master Plan, 
along with the other exhibits attached hereto, also provides the location and detail of 
notable drainage areas, building setbacks, and other pertinent development features. 

20. Multi-family: shall mean and include multiple residential dwelling units in a single 
structure.   

21. Open Space: shall mean and include common areas, park land and any other improved 
Lot for the use by the general public or end purchasers of lots within the Project. 

22. Owner: shall mean (i) the Owner named above, or (ii) any subsequent owner of a paof the 
Property that is a successor or assignee of rights from Owner. 

23. Preliminary Plat: shall mean a map showing the salient features of a proposed 
development, submitted for the purpose of preliminary consideration and communication 
prior to the submission of a Final Plat. 

24. Project: shall mean the Rocky Road Ranch Planned Development on the Property as 
generally delineated in the PD Master Plan attached as Exhibit “B”.  

25. Property: shall consist of the 24.90 acres of land, more or less, located in Caldwell County, 
Texas, and more particularly described in Exhibit “A”. 

26. Residential Community: shall mean, collectively, all of the lots developed for residential 
use, open space, common areas, and park land located within the Project.   

27. Single Family: shall mean and include a residential dwelling unit for a single family in a 
single structure. 

28. Unit: shall mean each individual space to be occupied for a particular use.  

29. Vertical Building Improvements: shall mean the construction and reconstruction of a 
building, structure or any above ground improvement or development, not including 
roads, drainage facilities or utility facilities, and not including manufactured homes, 
modular housing or industrialized structures or buildings covered by Chapters 1201 or 
1202 of the Texas Occupations Code.  

 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 9 of 20   
       
        

SECTION 3.  
ANNEXATION, LAND USE AND ZONING 

3.1 Annexation. This PDA shall constitute Owner’s acknowledgment and agreement to 
voluntarily annex the Property into the corporate limits of the City. Owner shall submit a 
formal application to the City for voluntary annexation of the Property into the corporate 
limits of the City. The City shall initiate the annexation process on the earlier of the effective 
date of this PDA or upon receipt of the formal annexation application. 

3.2  Zoning.  This PDA shall constitute the Owner’s acknowledgment and agreement to zone the 
Property as Rocky Ranch Road Planned Development District upon annexation. The City 
shall initiate the zoning change process simultaneously with the annexation process.   

3.3  Permitted Uses. The project may contain Single family, Multifamily, and Commercial uses 
in accordance with Exhibit “C” (“Permitted and Prohibited Uses”).  

3.4 Prohibited Uses. The project shall not contain any uses not otherwise described in Exhibit 
“C”.  

3.5  Maximum Densities.  

a. Residential Uses. The Project shall not exceed more than 24 Single Family Residential 
Units and no more than 8 Multifamily Residential Units with a maximum gross density of 
4.67 total Residential units per acre of the Property.  

 b. Commercial Uses. The Project shall not exceed more than 3 Commercial lots and shall 
not exceed the following maximum gross densities  

(minimum lot-size per use): 

  1) Fast-Food: 16,000 square feet 

  2) Restaurant: 45,000 square feet 

  3) Grocery Store: 100,000 square feet 

  4) Hotel: 1 acre 200 rooms 

  5) Movie Theater: 60,000 square feet 

  6) Office Building: 20,000 square feet  

  7) Gym or Health Club: 40,000 square feet 

Shopping center lots which include multiple uses shall have a minimum lot size calculated 
by the combination of eights percent (80%) of each of the intended uses.  

 

3.5  Restrictive Covenants and Property Owners Association.  For the better development and 
benefit of the Property, Owner shall impose certain covenants, conditions and restrictions 
applicable to the use and maintenance thereof. Owner shall establish a private Property 
Owners Association (POA) to enforce such covenants, conditions and restrictions upon any 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 10 of 20   
       
        

and all lots in the Project. The POA shall additionally be responsible for the maintenance of 
the roads, private landscape areas, private community park, water quality ponds, detention 
ponds and all community signage, screen walls and common open space areas within the 
Project.  

3.6  Permitting and Approval Criteria. All applications for permits required by the City for the 
use and development of the Property shall be consistent with this Ordinance. All aspects of 
such approvals which are not specifically covered by this Ordinance shall be governed by the 
City Code of Ordinances. This PDA shall not constitute a site development permit or building 
permit. 

3.7 Unified Development. The Property shall be treated as a unified development for the 
purposes of requirements relating to drainage, structural and non-structural water quality and 
detention control, impervious cover, utility service, traffic impact analysis, landscaping, open 
space, green space, and tree replacement and mitigation. 

3.8 Phased Development.  The Project may be developed in phases, as indicated by Final Plats, 
over time and the phasing of development may be changed from time to time, including phases 
being developed concurrently provided that the Final Plat for each phase has been approved 
by the City Council and recorded with the County. 

 

SECTION 4.  

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

4.1  Open Space Requirements. A walking trail and permanent pond shall be developed 
on Lot 23, sized 2.3 acres, in the form of private parkland, green space, or greenbelt, and 
maintained by the POA.  

 
4.2 Impervious Cover. The Project shall not exceed an aggregate of 65 percent (65%) in 

impervious cover of the entire Property.  
 
4.3 Residential Use Site Requirements.  

  
Lot Width 

 

 

Minimum 40 ft. 

Exception:  Minimum for Corner Lots 55 ft. 

Front Setback 

 

Setbacks are measured from the lot line to 
the foundation. 

       Minimum 20 ft. 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 11 of 20   
       
        

  

Side Setback 

 
Setbacks are measured from the lot line. 

 
      Minimum (*) 
      *Eaves may project a maximum of 18” into side setbacks.   6 ft. 

Exception: Minimum for side setback adjacent to a street  15 ft. 

Rear Setback  Setbacks are measured from the lot line. 
 
       Minimum 20 ft. 

Building Height (maximum) 40 ft. and 3 stories 

Lot Area (minimum) 9,000 sq. ft. 

 

4.4. Commercial Use Site Requirements.  

  
Lot Width 
 

 

     Minimum 100 ft. 

 
Front Setback 

 

Setbacks are measured from the lot line. 

      Minimum 25 ft. 

 
Side Setback 

 

Setbacks are measured from the lot line. 

 
      Minimum 

*Eaves may project a maximum of 18” into side setbacks.   

15 ft. 

      Street Corner  25 ft. 

Rear Setback  
Setbacks are measured from the lot line. 

 
 

 
      Minimum 

*Eaves may project a maximum of 18” into side setbacks.   

25 ft. 

Building Height (Maximums)   

Grocery Store, Movie Theater 45 ft. and 2 stories 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 12 of 20   
       
        

Hotel 80 ft. and 5 stories 

Office  60 ft. and 3 stories 

 
All Other Buildings or Structures 40 ft. and 2 stories 

 

4.5 Underground Utility Service. Except where approved in writing by the City Administrator, 
all utilities shall adhere to the following:  

a. All  utilities within the Project to include water, wastewater, electrical, telephone and cable 
television distribution and service lines shall be underground.  
 

b. All utilities and the improvements thereof shall be the responsibility of Owner. 
  
4.6. Residential Boundary Fencing. Wood fencing, tubular steel or decorative iron, masonry, or 

other fence approved by the City of Uhland shall be constructed along the rear lot line and is 
permitted along the side lot line of all residential lots. Fencing shall be located along the 
residential property lines and shall not encroach into public right of ways or extend past the 
front elevation of residential units. All fencing shall be six feet (6’) in height. 

 
4.7. Intentionally Omitted.   

4.8. Intentionally Omitted.   
 
4.9. Roadways. All roadways within the project shall be constructed with a minimum of Forty  

(40’) Right-of-Ways and an minimum of Twenty (26’) of pavement.  
 
4.10 Parking Requirements. Each parking space shall be a minimum of 9 feet wide by 18 feet 

deep. 

a. Residential Uses. All residential lots shall include a driveway constructed of concrete, 
asphalt, chip seal, or other materials acceptable to the City of Uhland across the City 
ROW, including culverts or swells as necessary, to provide a minimum for two off-street 
parking spaces per unit.   
 

b. Commercial Uses. Each parking space shall be a minimum of 9 feet wide by 18 feet 
deep. All commercial uses shall provide the following minimum parking spaces and 
adjoining parking lots shall provide for circulation and connecting access through each 
lot from and to roadways so as to limit the number of roadway attachments: 

  1) Fast-Food: one space per 300 square feet of gross building floor area 

  2) Retail / Restaurant: one space per 200 square feet of gross building floor area 

  3) Grocery Store: one space per 225 square feet of gross building floor area 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 13 of 20   
       
        

  4) Hotel: one space per room 

  5) Movie Theater or Drive in: one space per four seats 

  6) Office: one space per 275 square feet of gross building floor area 

  7) Gym / All Other: one space per 275 square feet of gross building floor area  

 

4.11. Lighting. Streetlights shall be provided at all four-way intersections and at intervals of 300 
feet unless a subsequent lighting plan is submitted and approved by the City Administrator. 
No fixture or light source shall be turned up so as to disperse light into the night sky. All 
fixtures shall utilize Light-Emitting Diode (LED) lighting. Solar fixtures may be used. 

 
4.12 Landscaping Requirements. All landscaping shall enhance the natural aesthetic beauty of 

the Uhland area through diverse use of both native and non-invasive adapted species of 
plants. A minimum of 80 percent of the required landscaping shall be native plants and the 
remaining 20 percent may be non-invasive adapted plants. Invasive species, as defined by the 
Ladybird Johnson Wildflower Center, are prohibited. All landscaping materials shall be 
drought tolerant and native type materials. Native plants shall be defined as plants identified 
by the Ladybird Johnson Wildflower Center. Under no circumstance shall any non-invasive 
existing tree in excess of eighteen (18) inch DBH in diameter be removed or demolished from 
the site without prior specific approval of the City.  

a. Tree Protection, Mitigation and Preservation.  A tree survey, protection, mitigation and 
preservation plan for all healthy non-invasive trees with an eight (8) inch DBH in diameter 
shall be created and submitted to the City prior to the start of site development work.  Prior 
to the start of site work all protection and preservation of all existing trees to remain on 
site shall be completed to prevent any disturbance within each tree’s critical root zone. 
Replacement trees for all existing non-invasive trees shall be planted prior to completion 
of the Project. 
 

b. Residential Lots.  At a minimum the following shall be installed on each residential lot:  

(1) one (1) – two-inch (2’’) caliper shade tree and three (3) – one (1) gallon shrubs outside 
of the easements along the right-of-way located in the front yard;  
 

(2) one (1) – two-inch (2’’) caliper shade tree, five (5) – one (1)-gallon shrubs and three 
(3) – five (5)-gallon shrubs and other drought tolerant natural landscaping for front, 
sides, and rear yards  

 
 

c. Commercial Uses. All commercial landscaping shall be maintained by the Owner and 
each successive Owner. Parking lot islands shall be purposefully configured to 
accommodate existing trees on site.  
 

d. Planting Criteria. 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 14 of 20   
       
        

(1) Planting shall remain at least five feet (5’) from edge of roadways and driveways. 
(2) Planting should be at least five feet (5’) from underground utilities and twenty-five 

feet (25’) from overhead lines 
(3) Planting should be at least five feet (5’) from fire hydrants. 

 
e. Shade Trees shall be defined as the following: 

Bald Cypress 
Burr Oak  
Cedar Elm   
Chinquapin Oak 
Chinese (Lacebark) Elm  
Chinese Pistache 
Live Oak  
Monterey Oak 
Pecan 
Shumard Oak 
Texas Ash  
Texas Red Oak 
Mexican Sycamore 
 

f. Evergreen Ornamental Trees shall be defined as the following: 

Wax Myrtle 
Yaupon Holly 
Mountain Laurel 
Little Gem Magnolia 
Eastern Red Cedar 
Cherry Laurel 
 

4.13 Water Reuse. If reuse service is currently offered by the wastewater provider, the Project 
shall install purple pipe to be used to irrigate the Open Space. 

 
SECTION 5. 

RESIDENTIAL ARCHITECTURAL AND DESIGN STANDARDS 

 
5.1 Residential Deisgn Standards shall defer to the City of Uhland development code at 
the time of each permit application. 

 

SECTION 6.  

COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN STANDARDS  

 

6.1  Commercial Design Standards shall defer to the City of Uhland development code at 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 15 of 20   
       
        

the time of each permit application. 

 

SECTION 7.  

DEDICATIONS AND IMPACT FEES  

 
7.1 Park and Open Space Dedication and Fees. A parkland fee of $1,200.00 per lot shall be 

assessed and paid at the time of final plat approval. However, as illustrated on Exhibit “D”, 
the PD Master Plan provides for an activation of private open space and community parkland 
in which Owner shall provide improved recreational facilities in a private 
ownership/management format, when platted and constructed.  Owner agrees to install 
improvements in the minimum value of $28,800.00 , that may include a permanent pond and 
trail around the Pond area on lot 23 with several viewing areas of the creek and open space 
complete with benches, picnic tables and trash receptacles, trailheads, a covered gathering 
area and a trailside orchard intended to utilize the abundant natural amenities of the Property.  
Any approved actual improvement value shall be credited towards the parkland fee with the 
remaining balance being paid in full to the City at final plat approval.   

All private landscape areas and common open space areas within the Property will be 
maintained by the homeowner’s association including supplemental maintenance of the 
detention pond areas. 

 

SECTION 8.  

AMENDMENTS 

 
Due to the fact that the Project comprises a significant land area and its development may 
occur in phases over a number of years, Owner may make major or minor amendments to the 
PD Master Plan upon notification to, and approval from, the City.  Major amendments shall 
be those that (a) increase the density of single family home dwelling lots or units allowed by 
the Development Standards; (b) seek to allow a use which is prohibited by the Development 
Standards; or (c) increase the total Project’s impervious cover.  Major amendments to the PD 
Master Plan shall require approval by City Council.  Any amendment which is not classified 
as a major amendment, including an amendment which alters the relative percentages of the 
various residential use types without changing the density permitted for a type of residential 
use, shall be classified as a minor amendment.  Minor amendments shall be administratively 
approved by the City Administrator except that the City Administrator may at the City 
Administrator’s sole discretion seek approval from the City Council.  If the City Administrator 
and Owner dispute the classification of an amendment as major or minor, the issue shall be 
referred to City Council for final determination.   

 

SECTION 9.  



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 16 of 20   
       
        

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

 

The following list of exhibits, attached hereto, together with the requirements herein, 
constitute the land use standards and development plan for the Rocky Road Ranch PD 
District.  

Exhibit “A”:  Description of The Property 

Exhibit “B”:  PD Master Plan 

Exhibit “C”:  Permitted Uses 

Exhibit “D”:  Open Space & Fencing Plan 

Exhibit “E”:  Lighting Plan 

 

 

CITY OF UHLAND, TEXAS     ROCKY ROAD RANCH  
 
 
 _________________________________        
 Vicki Hunter, Mayor     Patrick J Tighe,  
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 17 of 20   
       
        

EXHIBIT “A”  
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 18 of 20   
       
        

EXHIBIT “B”  
 

PD MASTER PLAN  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 19 of 20   
       
        

 
EXHIBIT “C”  

 
PERMITTED USES 

 
 

Lot 1 : Mf 1-4 family residences or commercial use  
Lots 02-21: MF 1-4 family residences 
Lot 22 : Mf 1-4 family residences or commercial use  
Lot 23: Drainage and detention 
Lot 24: Agriculture/Commercial  

 
Commercial Permitted Uses: 

 
Fire, EMS or Police Station 
Church 
School 
Utility Business Office 
Alcoholic Beverage Sales/Consumption  
Theater or Playhouse 
Art Gallery, Museum or Supply Store 
Antique Shop 
Retail Bakery, Smoothie Shop or Coffee Shop 
Bank 
Barber Shop or Beauty Salon 
Book or Stationary Shop or Newsstand 
Drug Store or Pharmacy  
Florist or indoor Garden Shop 
Food/Beverage Sales without Gasoline Sales 
Professional/Medical/Dental/ Administrative Offices 
Gift, Apparel, Accessory and Similar 
Decorator/Photographer/Dance/Music Studio 
Hotel 
Drive-in 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Rocky Road Ranch – Planned Development           Page 20 of 20   
       
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

OPEN SPACE & FENCING PLAN 



























Rev. 4/19 
 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF TARRANT  § 
 
This Agreement is entered into by City of Uhland, TX, hereinafter called “Client” and Freese and Nichols, Inc., 
hereinafter called “FNI.”  In consideration of the Agreements herein, the parties agree as follows: 

I. EMPLOYMENT OF FNI:  In accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Client agrees to employ and 
compensate FNI to perform professional services in connection with the Project.  The Project is described 
as On-Call Planning, Engineering and Landscape Architecture. 

 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES:  FNI shall render professional services in connection with Project as set forth in 

Attachment SC – Scope of Services and Responsibilities of Client which is attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement. 

 
III. COMPENSATION:  Client agrees to pay FNI for all professional services rendered under this Agreement 

for time and materials in accordance with Attachment CO – Compensation which is attached and made a 
part of this Agreement.  FNI shall perform professional services as outlined in the “Scope of Services” for 
a not to exceed fee of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars, $25,000.00.   

 
If FNI’s services are delayed or suspended by Client, or if FNI’s services are extended for more than 60 
days through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to equitable adjustment of rates and amounts of 
compensation to reflect reasonable costs incurred by FNI in connection with such delay or suspension 
and reactivation and the fact that the time for performance under this Agreement has been revised. 

 
IV. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT:  The Terms and Conditions of Agreement as set forth as 

Attachment TC – Terms and Conditions of Agreement shall govern the relationship between the Client 
and FNI. 

 
Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this Agreement to anyone 
other than Client and FNI, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be 
for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client and FNI and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 
This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between Client and FNI and supersedes all prior written or 
oral understandings.  
 
This contract is executed in two counterparts.  IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, Agreement executed: 
 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
 
By:  
 
     
 Print Name and Title 
 
Date:     
 
ATTEST:   

  City of Uhland, TX 
 
By:   
 
 
 Print Name and Title 
 
Date:  
 
ATTEST:   

 



  

  FNI______ 
 SC - 1 City______ 

 ATTACHMENT SC 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY 
 
ARTICLE I 
 
BASIC SERVICES:  FNI shall render the following professional services as-needed by the City: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) is engaging with the City of Uhland, Texas (City) to 
provide professional urban planning, landscape architecture and engineering services in an on-call 
capacity to address planning, design, engineering and development issues impacting the City, from both a 
physical or design aspect, as a result of general growth within the community, new development, 
redevelopment or from issues external but affecting the City.  FNI will address such issues by providing concise 
recommendation to the City, as well as serve on behalf of the City at meetings, public hearings or other formal 
City business if requested. 

 
As services will be conducted for the City on an “as-needed” basis, FNI will provide such services on an hourly 
fee structure.  It is acknowledged that the City is in need of recurring services such as process development, 
Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council Meeting attendance, and plan/plat reviews, as described 
below in “Recurring Services”, as well as possible comprehensive plan and ordinance reviews/amendments. 
All services provided to the City will be billed on an hourly basis, plus any incurred expenses. 
 
In accordance with the terms of this Agreement, City agrees to employ and compensate FNI to perform 
professional services in connection with various projects. A detailed description of the various projects scope 
and fee will be outlined in Task Authorizations as services are requested by City.  FNI will not begin services 
until a Task Authorization is agreed upon between FNI and City.   
 
FNI shall render professional services in connection with assigned Projects as set forth in the Task 
Authorization for each assignment, consistent with the eligible tasks outlined below.  City responsibilities and 
additional services may also be established as set forth in the Task Authorization for each assignment. 
 
FNI will provide the following services, at the City’s request, on a regular and recurring basis: 

1. Code Compliance Review 

Projects may include plat and site plan application review for residential and commercial 
development to verify compliance with the City’s development-related ordinances; public 
infrastructure construction plan reviews; water and wastewater utility system modeling and 
scenario analyses; evaluations to make recommendations for amending the City Capital 
Improvement Plan based on proposed private development; traffic impact analyses and traffic 
warrant studies; electronic data development to update City models and maps; and assistance in 
development of plans, specifications, and estimates, and bid-set conformant construction 
documents for a wide variety of City projects. 

2. Planning and Development Services 

a. Urban Planning, Development Regulations and Process Management: Projects may 
include land-use and market studies; public engagement strategies and implementation; 
development case management including subdivision plats, site plans, variances, special 
exceptions, and various other development applications; crafting development agreements 



  

  FNI______ 
 SC - 2 City______ 

and planned development districts; interlocal agreements, and annexation plans of service; 
analysis of zoning applications; updating development codes, policies, and practices. 

b. Small Area Planning including Market Analysis: Projects may include market-based sub-
area master plans that consider existing and proposed land use and transportation 
infrastructure and include feasibility analysis based on public, private, and P3 funding 
strategies. 

c. Parks and Open Space, Landscape Architecture and Urban Design: Projects may include 
master planning and all levels of design for a range of park types from passive to active; 
expertise in landscape architecture with emphasis  native plant palettes; principles of urban 
design; creation and design of public spaces and gathering places. 

d. Mapping and GIS Services: Projects may include updates to existing maps, the creation 
of new maps, and a variety of geographic analyses, including hosting and maintenance of 
online web mapping interfaces. 

3. Project Management 

a. Quality Assurance/Quality Control: FNI will develop and implement a QA/QC plan for the 
work.  

b. Status Reporting/Invoicing – FNI will provide monthly status reports, summarizing current 
budget and schedule status, along with outstanding contracting issues, will be prepared. The 
status report will be attached to a monthly invoice and submitted to the City. 

c. Subcontractor Procurement and Management – Subcontracts may be executed and managed 
to complete this work. 

 
Elaborating on the nature of the tasks described above the consultant is expected to be able to:  
 

A. Be available for on-call questions from staff and meetings with and on behalf of staff, as directed and 
requested, providing one (1) or more planners on an as-needed basis, subject to availability.  

B. Coordinate with and provide as directed any and all required documentation, reports, plans, renderings, 
and presentations to City staff, City Council, Boards and Commissions, the public, property owners, 
agencies, and businesses as required and requested. 

C. Coordinate and communicate with other entities, applicants, land owners, residents, and other involved 
parties, as directed and requested. 

D. Understand and ensure compliance with associated local, State, and Federal requirements and provide 
guidance associated with developing trends and changes to regulatory practices, including but not 
limited to:  

i. Local ordinances and development codes as needed to apply current planning and 
development needs. 

ii. The City’s comprehensive plan 



  

  FNI______ 
 SC - 3 City______ 

E. Provide training to City staff upon request including, but not limited to, technical review guidance, 
project management, various construction administration activities, engineering related concepts, and 
other related objectives. 

 

All time spent at the City, as well as travel time and mileage to and from the City, shall be billed per Attachment 
CO. 

 
 
 
  



  

  FNI______ 
 SC - 4 City______ 

ARTICLE II 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by City, which are 
not included in the above described basic services, are described as follows: 
 

A. Printing and binding of documents will be billed in accordance with the rates outlined in Attachment 
CO. FNI, following a request for assistance from the City, will prepare an estimate for approval by the 
City prior to initiating work. 

B. Making revisions to drawings or other report documents when such revisions are 1) not consistent with 
approvals or instructions previously given by City or 2) due to other causes not solely within the control 
of FNI. 

C. Meeting or trips in excess of the number of meetings included in Article I or a Task Authorization 
issued under Article I for coordination meetings, public meetings or other activities.  Additional 
meetings requested by the City in excess of those included in Article I will be billed hourly in 
accordance with the rates outlined in Attachment CO.  

D. Preparing applications and supporting documents for government grants, loans, or planning advances 
and providing data for detailed applications. 

E. Preparing data and reports for assistance to City in preparation for hearings before regulatory agencies, 
courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by deposition, and 
preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or mediator. 

F. Revisions, contract modifications, studies or analysis required to comply with local, State, Federal or 
other regulatory agencies that become effective after the date of this agreement. 

G. Providing basic or additional services on an accelerated time schedule.  This includes cost for overtime 
wages of employees and consultants, inefficiencies in work sequence and plotting or reproduction 
costs directly attributable to an accelerated time schedule directed by the City. 

H. Preparing statements for invoicing or other documentation for billing other than for the standard 
invoice for services attached to this professional services agreement. 

I. Providing document revisions in excess of those outlined in Article I or an associated Task 
Authorization. 

 
 
ARTICLE III 
 
TIME OF COMPLETION OR TERM: 
This Agreement will be valid until September 30, 2022 and may be extended by mutual agreement. 
  
 
  



  

  FNI______ 
 SC - 5 City______ 

ARTICLE IV 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY:  City shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the 
services of FNI: 

A. Designate in writing a person to act as City’s representative with respect to the services to be rendered 
under this Agreement.  Such person shall have contract authority to transmit instructions, receive 
information, interpret and define City’s policies and decisions with respect to FNI’s services for the 
Project. 

B. Assist FNI by placing at FNI’s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including 
previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project. 

C. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents 
presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as City 
deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a 
reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI. 

D. Give prompt written notice to FNI whenever City observes or otherwise becomes aware of any 
development that affects the scope or timing of FNI’s services, or any defect or nonconformance of 
the work of any Contractor. 

E. Provide meeting space and coordinate equipment needs, room set up, and logistics for meetings 
outlined in Article I. 
 

F. Contact meeting invitees for stakeholder and public meeting. This includes email, mail, newsletter or 
other forms of notification.  
 

G. Designate in writing a person to act as City’s representative with respect to the services to be rendered 
under this Agreement.  Such person shall have contract authority to transmit instructions, receive 
information, interpret and define City’s policies and decisions with respect to FNI’s services for the 
Project. 

 
H. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as 

required for FNI to perform services under this Agreement. 
 
I. Examine and provide prompt feedback on all submittals, draft reports, sketches, drawings, and other 

documents presented by FNI within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI. 
 
J. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Attachment SC, Article II of this 

Agreement or other services as required. 
 
K. Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Article IV. 
 
  



  

  FNI______ 
 SC - 6 City______ 

ARTICLE V 
   
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and City designate the following representatives: 
 
City’s Designated Representative  Name:  
 Address:  
   
 Phone:  
 Email:  
 
 
City’s Accounting Representative  Name:  
 Address:  
   
 Phone:  
 Email:  
 
 
FNI’s Designated Representative Chance Sparks, AICP, CNU-A 
 1251 Sadler Drive 
 Suite 1150 
 San Marcos, Texas 78666 
 chance.sparks@freese.com 
 (512) 617-3156 
 
FNI’s Accounting Representative Stephanie Kirchstein 
 2711 North Haskell Avenue 
 Suite 3300 
 Dallas, Texas 75204 
 Stephanie.Kirchstein@freese.com 
       (214) 217-2212



  ATTACHMENT CO 
 

 CO – 1 FNI______ 
  City______ 

INSERT COMP AND TC  



07-20 ATTACHMENT TC 

Page 1 of 2 FNI __________ 
CLIENT __________ 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT 

1. DEFINITIONS: The term Client as used herein refers to the_________________________________________. The term 
FNI as used herein refers to Freese and Nichols, Inc., its employees and agents, and its subcontractors and their 
employees and agents. As used herein, Services refers to the professional services performed by FNI pursuant to the 
Agreement.

2. CHANGES: Client, without invalidating the Agreement, may order changes within the general scope of the work required 
by the Agreement by altering, adding to and/or deducting from the work to be performed. If any change under this 
clause causes an increase or decrease in FNI's cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the 
Services, an equitable adjustment will be made by mutual agreement and the Agreement modified in writing accordingly.

3. TERMINATION: The obligation to provide Services under this Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 10 
days' written notice. In the event of termination, FNI will be paid for all Services rendered and reimbursable expenses 
incurred to the date of termination and, in addition, all reimbursable expenses directly attributable to termination.

4. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES: In no event shall FNI or its subcontractors be liable in contract, tort, strict liability, 
warranty, or otherwise for any special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, such as loss of product, loss of use 
of the equipment or system, loss of anticipated profits or revenue, non-operation or increased expense of operation or 
other equipment or systems.

5. INFORMATION FURNISHED BY CLIENT: Client will assist FNI by placing at FNI's disposal all available information pertinent 
to the Project including previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project. FNI shall 
have no liability for defects or negligence in the Services attributable to FNI's reliance upon or use of data, design criteria, 
drawings, specifications or other information furnished by Client and Client agrees to indemnify and hold FNI harmless 
from any and all claims and judgments, and all losses, costs and expenses arising therefrom. FNI shall disclose to Client, 
prior to use thereof, defects or omissions in the data, design criteria, drawings, specifications or other information 
furnished by Client to FNI that FNI may reasonably discover in its review and inspection thereof.

6. INSURANCE: FNI shall provide Client with certificates of insurance with the following minimum coverage:

Commercial General Liability Workers' Compensation 

General Aggregate $2,000,000 As required by Statute 

Automobile Liability (Any Auto) Professional Liability 

CSL $1,000,000 $3,000,000 Annual Aggregate 

7. SUBCONTRACTS: If, for any reason and at any time during the progress of providing Services, Client determines that any
subcontractor for FNI is incompetent or undesirable, Client will notify FNI accordingly and FNI shall take immediate steps
for cancellation of such subcontract. Subletting by subcontractors shall be subject to the same regulations. Nothing
contained in the Agreement shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and Client.

8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: All drawings, reports, data and other project information developed in the execution of
the Services provided under this Agreement shall be the property of Client upon payment of FNI's fees for Services. FNI
may retain copies for record purposes. Client agrees such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for
reuse by Client or others. Any reuse by Client or by those who obtained said documents from Client without written
verification or adaptation by FNI, will be at Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to FNI, or to FNI's
independent associates or consultants, and Client shall indemnify and hold harmless FNI and FNI's independent
associates and consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising out of or
resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation will entitle FNI to further reasonable compensation. FNI may
reuse all drawings, report data and other project information in the execution of the Services provided under this
Agreement in FNI's other activities. Any reuse by FNI will be at FNI's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to
Client, and FNI shall indemnify and hold harmless Client from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including
attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.

9. POLLUTANTS AND HAZARDOUS WASTES: It is understood and agreed that FNI has neither created nor contributed to
the creation or existence of any hazardous, radioactive, toxic, irritant, pollutant, or otherwise dangerous substance or
condition at the site, if any, and its compensation hereunder is in no way commensurate with the potential risk of injury
or loss that may be caused by exposures to such substances or conditions. The parties agree that in performing the
Services required by this Agreement, FNI does not take possession or control of the subject site, but acts as an invitee in
performing the Services, and is not therefore responsible for the existence of any pollutant present on or migrating from

City of Uhland, Texas



07-20 ATTACHMENT TC 

Page 2 of 2 FNI __________ 
  CLIENT __________ 

the site. Further, FNI shall have no responsibility for any pollutant during clean-up, transportation, storage or disposal 
activities. 

10. OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS: FNI will furnish an opinion of probable project development cost based on present day 
cost, but does not guarantee the accuracy of such estimates. Opinions of probable cost, financial evaluations, feasibility 
studies, economic analyses of alternate solutions and utilitarian considerations of operations and maintenance costs 
prepared by FNI hereunder will be made on the basis of FNI's experience and qualifications and represent FNI's judgment 
as an experienced and qualified design professional. It is recognized, however, that FNI does not have control over the 
cost of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over market conditions or contractors' methods of 
determining their prices. 

11. CONSTRUCTION REPRESENTATION: If required by the Agreement, FNI will furnish construction representation according 
to the defined scope for these services. FNI will observe the progress and the quality of work to determine in general if 
the work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. In performing these services, FNI will report any 
observed deficiencies to Client, however, it is understood that FNI does not guarantee the Contractor's performance, 
nor is FNI responsible for the supervision of the Contractor's operation and employees. FNI shall not be responsible for 
the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction selected by the Contractor, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident to the work of the Contractor. FNI shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions 
of any person (except its own employees or agents) at the Project site or otherwise performing any of the work of the 
Project. If Client designates a Resident Project Representative that is not an employee or agent of FNI, the duties, 
responsibilities and limitations of authority of such Resident Project Representative will be set forth in writing and made 
a part of this Agreement before the Construction Phase of the Project begins.  

12. GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT: Client agrees to include provisions in the General 
Conditions of the Construction Contract that require Contractor to include FNI: (1) as an additional insured and in any 
waiver of subrogation rights with respect to such liability insurance purchased and maintained by Contractor for the 
Project (except workers’ compensation and professional liability policies); and (2) as an indemnified party in the 
Contractor’s indemnification provisions where the Owner is named as an indemnified party. 

13. PAYMENT: Progress payments may be requested by FNI based on the amount of Services completed. Payment for the 
Services of FNI shall be due and payable upon submission of a statement for Services to CLIENT and in acceptance of the 
Services as satisfactory by the Client. Statements for Services shall not be submitted more frequently than monthly. Any 
applicable new taxes imposed upon Services, expenses and charges by any governmental body after the execution of 
this Agreement will be added to FNI's compensation. 

If Client fails to make any payment due FNI for services and expenses within 30 days after receipt of FNI's statement for 
services therefore, the amounts due FNI will be increased at the rate of 1 percent per month from said 30th day, and, in 
addition, FNI may, after giving 7 days' written notice to Client, suspend services under this Agreement until FNI has been 
paid in full, all amounts due for services, expenses and charges. 

14. ARBITRATION: No arbitration, arising out of or relating to this Agreement, involving one party to this Agreement may 
include the other party to this Agreement without their approval. 

15. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNMENTS: Client and FNI each are hereby bound and the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators and legal representatives of Client and FNI are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to 
the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this Agreement. 

Neither Client nor FNI shall assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or interest in (including, but without limitation, 
moneys that may become due or moneys that are due) this Agreement without the written consent of the other, except 
to the extent that any assignment, subletting or transfer is mandated by law or the effect of this limitation may be 
restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. Nothing contained in this 
paragraph shall prevent FNI from employing such independent associates and consultants as FNI may deem appropriate 
to assist in the performance of Services hereunder. 

16. PURCHASE ORDERS: If a Purchase Order is used to authorize FNI's Services, only the terms, conditions/instructions typed 
on the face of the Purchase Order shall apply to this Agreement. Should there be any conflict between the Purchase 
Order and the terms of this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail and shall be determinative of the conflict. 



ATTACHMENT CO

Min Max
Professional 1 81 146
Professional 2 95 154
Professional 3 115 220
Professional 4 151 237
Professional 5 188 350
Professional 6 197 391
Construction Manager 1 93 173
Construction Manager 2 109 185
Construction Manager 3 152 217
Construction Manager 4 206 281
CAD Technician/Designer 1 67 147
CAD Technician/Designer 2 98 152
CAD Technician/Designer 3 131 201
Corporate Project Support 1 50 122
Corporate Project Support 2 71 168
Corporate Project Support 3 98 259
Intern / Coop 42 84
Senior Advisor 175 175

Rates for In-House Services and Equipment

Mileage Bulk Printing and Reproduction Equipment
Standard IRS Rates B&W Color Valve Crew Vehicle (hour) $75

Small Format (per copy) $0.10 $0.25 Pressure Data Logger (each) $100
Tech Charges Large Format (per sq. ft.) Water Quality Meter (per day) $100
8.50 per hour Bond $0.25 $0.75 Microscope (each) $150

Glossy / Mylar $0.75 $1.25 Pressure Recorder (per day) $200
Vinyl / Adhesive $1.50 $2.00 $275

Coating Inspection Kit (per day) $275
Mounting (per sq. ft.) $2.00 Flushing / Cfactor (each) $500
Binding (per binding) $0.25 Backpack Electrofisher (each) $1,000

Survey Grade Standard
Drone (per day) $200 $100
GPS (per day) $150 $50

OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES:

These ranges and/or rates will be adjusted annually in February.  Last updated February 2020.
350022020

Other direct expenses are reimbursed at actual cost times a multiplier of 1.10. They include outside printing and
reproduction expense, communication expense, travel, transportation and subsistence away from the FNI office. For other
miscellaneous expenses directly related to the work, including costs of laboratory analysis, test, and other work required to
be done by independent persons other than staff members, these services will be billed at a cost times a multipler of 1.10.
For Resident Representative services performed by non-FNI employees and CAD services performed In-house by non-FNI
employees where FNI provides workspace and equipment to perform such services, these services will be billed at cost times
a multiplier of 2.0. This markup approximates the cost to FNI if an FNI employee was performing the same or similar services.

Compensation to FNI for Basic Services in Attachment SC shall be computed on the basis of the following Schedule of
Charges, but shall not exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000).

If FNI sees the Scope of Services changing so that Additional Services are needed, including but not limited to those services
described as Additional Services in Attachment SC, FNI will notify OWNER for OWNER's approval before proceeding.
Additional Services shall be computed based on the following Schedule of Charges.

COMPENSATION

Position

Ultrasonic Thickness Guage (per day)

Hourly Rate



 

LAND PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & ZONING CONSULTANTS 
1715 CAPITAL OF TEXAS HWY SOUTH   SUITE 207   (512) 328-2693 

VINCENTGERARD.COM 

 
 
 
 
November 3, 2020 
 
Ms. Karen Gallaher 
 
 
RE: Cost Proposal for Planning Review, Consulting, Development Project Review 
and Commission and Council meeting representation. City of Uhland Texas  
  
 
Dear Ms. Gallaher: 
 
 Vincent Gerard and Associates, Inc. is pleased to present the following proposal 
for professional services to assist with Planning & Zoning review of projects located in 
the Uhland Jurisdiction and filed with the City of Uhland for development entitlements. 
The following would be the scope of work and professional cost. 
 
I. Scope of Work: 

 
a. Preliminary Plan, Final Plat, Planned Developments & Site Plan Review: 

• Research all ordinance criteria and review all filed documents for the 
City of Uhland in a timely manner consistent with Uhland Texas 
requirements. Respond in writing to the city and coordinate reviews 
and responses with the city engineer and the city administrator.   

 

Planner @ $125/Hr. 
Designer/Drafter @ $75/Hr. 

Clerical @ $40/Hr. 
 

 
II. Additional Services 
  Additional services as requested by City such as ordinance amendments, Planned 
Development presentations for special meetings or comment meetings with developers 
will also be performed by the VGA on an hourly basis listed above. 
 
 
 

 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
III. Reimbursables 
 All materials including blueprints, deliveries, overnight packages or review fees 
and permits (out of pocket expenses) will be reimbursed by the city.  These costs are not 
included in this proposal and will be billed at a cost plus 10%.  In addition, any additional 
meeting or site visits requested by the city administrator, our mileage will be billed at the 
rate currently allowed by the IRS at $0.58 per mile. 
 
 
We are pleased to submit this cost proposal to you and look forward to working with you.  
If you concur with this cost proposal, please sign the acknowledgement below. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Vincent G. Huebinger  
President 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
Approved For City of Uhland_______________________________________ 
 
By:___________________________________________________________ 
 
Printed Name:__________________________________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________________________________ 



 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CALDWELL COUNTY AND THE CITY OF UHLAND FOR SUBDIVISION 

REGULATION WITHIN THE 
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION OF THE CITY OF UHLAND 

 
THIS INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made 

and entered into by and between Caldwell County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), by and through its County Judge, and the City of 
UHLAND, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas (hereinafter referred to as "CITY''), by 
and through its City Mayor. The City and the County are hereinafter collectively referred to as "the 
Parties" or "the Parties to this Agreement." 
 

WHEREAS, the CITY has duly identified its corporate limits and the areas of its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (hereinafter referred to as "ETJ" or the "CITY's ETJ") within the 
COUNTY; and 
 

WHEREAS, the CITY has adopted and is enforcing subdivision regulations pursuant to 
TEX. LOCAL GOV'T CODE Subchapter A of Chapter 212 and other statutes applicable to 
municipalities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has adopted and is enforcing subdivision regulations pursuant 
to TEX. LOCAL GOV'T CODE sections 232.001-232.005 and other statutes applicable to 
counties; and 

 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CITY both have original authority to enforce their 

subdivision regulations in the CITY's ETJ; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature revised TEX. LOCAL GOV'T CODE Chapter 242 to 
limit subdivision regulation within the ETJ to one entity (or two entities working jointly); and 
 

WHEREAS, to the extent that the CITY's execution of this Agreement and related 
agreements with other counties in other areas of the CITY's ETJ, or the CITY's adoption, 
administration or enforcement of ordinances, rules, regulations or plans in reasonable furtherance 
of this Agreement or the related agreements results in requirements or restrictions that are not 
identical throughout the CITY's entire ETJ, the Parties jointly acknowledge  that the actions of the 
Parties are “reasonably taken to fulfill an obligation mandated by state law” within the meaning of 
TEX. GOV'T CODE Section 2007.003(b)(4), and are therefore not subject to TEX. GOV'T CODE 
Chapter 2007; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2019, both the COUNTY and the CITY entered into an Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to TEX. GOV'T CODE Section 791.011(a), and as authorized 
by TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE Section 242.00l(c) ("the 1445 Agreement"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CITY desire to revise and execute a revised 1445 
Agreement to be effective November 1, 2020 (the Effective Date). 

 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY and the CITY mutually agree as follows: 
 

I. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND CERTIFICATION 
 

1. The term of this Agreement shall for a period of one year from the Effective date. This 
Agreement shall automatically renew annually on the anniversary of the Effective date 
unless terminated or amended as provided herein. 

 
2. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party by giving sixty (60) days' written notice 

of intent to terminate this Agreement to the other Party. Any notice of intent to terminate 
must be delivered by deposit in the United States mail, certified, return receipt requested, 
to the other Party at the addresses set out herein. Upon termination of this Agreement, 
neither Party shall have any obligations to the other Party under this Agreement, except 
with respect to payment for services already rendered under this Agreement, but not yet 
paid. 
 

3. This Agreement is intended to entirely supersede and replace the existing 1445 Agreement 
between the parties, executed on February 27, 2019. 

 
4. The COUNTY and the CITY mutually certify that this Agreement complies with the 

requirements of Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 242. 
 

II.  DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO REGULATE SUBDIVISION PLATS AND 
APPROVE RELATED PERMITS 

 
1. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 242.001(d)(4) the COUNTY assigns and 

delegates to the CITY the COUNTY’S authority to regulate subdivision plats and approve 
related permits in the following areas: 
 

a. All areas within CITY’s ETJ; and 
 

b. Any area within the CITY’s ETJ that is subject to an annexation plan; and 
 

c. Any area within the CITY’s ETJ that is subject to a development agreement with a 
term no longer than twenty-four (24) months. 

 
2. For all areas described in section II.1.a, the CITY shall enforce the COUNTY’s subdivision 

and development regulations which are contained in the Caldwell County Development 
Ordinance and incorporated by this reference as if fully set forth herein, unless the CITY 
has existing ordinances establishing substantially similar or more stringent standards for 
the subject areas of such County subdivision regulations.  All CITY subdivisions 
regulations not in conflict with the Caldwell County Development Ordinance and CITY 
regulations establishing more stringent standards for the subject areas described in section 
II.1.a may be enforced.   

 
3. The CITY agrees to seek COUNTY’s consent from the COUNTY Director of Sanitation 



 

prior to entering into a development agreement that does not involve annexation of the area 
or before granting a variance, or a waiver from the Caldwell County Development 
Ordinance or any other applicable rules or standards, including construction material and 
specifications. The COUNTY agrees to not unreasonably withhold consent and to provide 
a response to the CITY within ten (10) business days, and further the COUNTY agrees that 
a lack of response after ten (10) business days shall be deemed a consent to the CITY’s 
request.  
 

III. ADMINISTRATION 
 

Any specific statutory regulatory authority of either the COUNTY or the CITY not 
otherwise delegated in this Agreement shall remain the exclusive authority of the original entity, 
in accordance with the administrative provisions in this Section. 
 
III.A Subdivision Plats, Development Plans and Related Site Construction Plans and 
Permits  
 

1. All subdivision plats, development plans and related permits, including site construction 
plans and permits, shall be submitted directly to the CITY.   
 

2. The CITY shall deliver one electronic copy and two hard copies of all plat submittals and 
subdivision construction plans to the COUNTY Director of Sanitation for review within 
two (2) business days from the date of receipt. The COUNTY Director of Sanitation or 
authorized designee shall do a completeness check of the submittals and notify the CITY 
of completeness of the submittals. COUNTY shall provide technical comments, if any, to 
the CITY within seven (7) business days of receiving the plat, plan or permit submittals. 
The CITY and the COUNTY agree that time is of the essence and as such the CITY shall 
proceed to process all subdivision plat and related permits, including subdivision 
construction plans, as necessary to comply with state law and prevent default approval of 
any plat, permit or plan as contemplated herein. 
 

3. The CITY shall collect and forward to the COUNTY all applicable COUNTY fees as set 
forth in the Caldwell County Subdivision and Development Fee Schedule, as presently 
authorized or amended by the COUNTY, for services to be performed by the COUNTY. 
Per Caldwell County's Development Ordinance, on behalf of the County, the CITY shall 
collect all fees associated with the construction of roads including the 1.5% of cost of 
streets and drainage construction plus reimbursement of any and all consulting fees. 
 

4. The CITY shall require a signature block for the current COUNTY Director of Sanitation 
or authorized designee authorizing the filing of any plat under this agreement. After final 
approval by the CITY it shall be the applicant’s responsibility to obtain the signature of the 
COUNTY Director of Sanitation or authorized designee. The COUNTY shall not withhold 
such signature without reasonable cause.  
 

5. The CITY shall deliver two copies of all recorded plats for subdivisions within the CITY's 
ETJ to the COUNTY within seven (7) business days of the recording of the subdivision 



 

plat. 
 

6. COUNTY will maintain public streets and roads, and all public drainage systems, within 
any platted subdivision or recorded development plan, once built, provided that the 
requirements of the COUNTY for road construction and drainage have been complied with, 
at a minimum.   
 

7.  COUNTY inspectors shall have inspection and approval authority over the road 
construction, storm water drainage construction, and water and wastewater facility 
construction within the COUNTY right-of-way and COUNTY easements.  The CITY shall 
allow COUNTY inspectors access to road construction sites of subdivisions within the ETJ 
and the CITY shall, within seven (7) business days of receipt, submit copies of all road 
design materials and road construction test results to the COUNTY during road 
construction. COUNTY inspectors may, from time to time, coordinate with CITY 
inspectors and delegate to the CITY inspector’s specific inspection duties related to road 
construction, storm water drainage construction, and/or water and wastewater facility 
construction within the COUNTY right of way or COUNTY easements.  The COUNTY 
shall inspect and certify to the CITY that such roads and drainage meet or exceed the 
COUNTY standards prior to the CITY issuing a certificate of completion. The COUNTY 
may request that the CITY issue a stop-work notice if, in the COUNTY'S opinion, 
applicable construction standards are not being met. 
 

8. The CITY shall require the applicant confer and come to agreement with the Caldwell 
County 911 Addressing Division concerning street names prior to final plat approval. 
 

III.B ROW, Driveway and Floodplain development permits: 
 

The COUNTY retains sole regulatory authority for all right-of-way, driveway, and 
floodplain permits within the CITY’s ETJ that are outside and not related to a subdivision 
plat or development plan, including those within any annexation plan, pursuant to the 
Caldwell County Development Ordinance, Caldwell County Flood Damage Prevention 
Ordinance, and any other applicable statutes.  All right-of-way, driveway, and floodplain 
permits as described herein shall be submitted directly to the COUNTY. Upon issuing a 
permit under this section, the COUNTY shall provide the CITY a copy of the issued permit 
within seven (7) business days of issuance.   
 

III.D Residential Development permits 

The CITY retains exclusive regulatory authority for residential development or 
construction occurring within its ETJ, provided that applications for residential construction or 
development on a lot with previously-existing permitted residential development must be 
accompanied by engineering report analyzing pre- and post-development changes to stormwater 
runoff and impacts to adjacent and downstream properties.  
 
 
 
III.E OSSF: 



 

 
1. Authority to regulate and permit On-Site Sewage (‘OSS’) facilities is held by the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality (‘TCEQ’). To the extent TCEQ may and does so 
delegate such authority to each the COUNTY and the CITY, respectively within the ETJ, 
the CITY shall have the exclusively authority as so delegated to it by TCEQ. The CITY 
shall assume responsibility for facility planning reports, including but not limited to any 
On Site Sewage Facilities, within the ETJ. 
 

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Fees. The CITY shall have the right to charge applicants/developers reasonable fees, 
sufficient to cover the full cost of services provided by the CITY under this Agreement and 
otherwise in the administration of regulations that apply to subdivisions in the CITY's ETJ. 
If any fee, Certificate of Deposit, Letter of Credit, warranty or bond is to be forwarded to 
Caldwell County in accordance with this Agreement, the CITY shall promptly forward the 
fee, Certificate of Deposit, Letter of Credit, warranty or bond to Caldwell County 
Sanitation Department, 1700 FM 2720, Lockhart, Texas 78644. 
 

2. Time for action on submittals.  The COUNTY Director of Sanitation or authorized 
designee shall, within seven (7) business days of receipt, provide the CITY staff with 
written comments for approval or disapproval of subdivision plats, related permits or any 
other submittals made under section III of this Agreement, including permit applications 
regarding roads, drainage and right-of-way design, construction and dedication. The CITY 
and the COUNTY agree that time is of the essence and as such the CITY shall proceed to 
process all subdivision plat and related permits, including subdivision construction plans, 
as necessary to comply with state law and prevent default approval of any plat, permit or 
plan as contemplated herein. 
 

3. Transportation Plan. The parties agree to exercise all regulatory authority 
consistent with any CITY or COUNTY Transportation Plan in place or as currently revised 
or amended, subject to applicable constitutional and statutory limitations. For subdivisions 
in which it appears to the CITY that a requirement for dedication of right-of-way pursuant 
to such Transportation Plan may exceed an applicable constitutional or statutory limitation, 
the CITY will notify the COUNTY, and the parties will cooperate to determine the extent 
of right-of-way dedication to be required, or an alternative method of securing the needed 
right-of -way.  When enforcing subdivision regulations in the CITY’s ETJ, the CITY shall 
facilitate the COUNTY’s road maintenance program by requiring a road standard no less 
than the standards set out in the Caldwell County Development Ordinance. 
 

4. CITY Map. The CITY shall quarterly provide a current map and digital drawing file 
defining the legal boundaries of its corporate limits and areas of ETJ. A current map as of 
the date of this Agreement is attached hereto Attachment “A”. The CITY shall notify the 
COUNTY of any changes to the CITY's ETJ within ten (10) business days of the effective 
date of the change and provide an updated digital drawing file. Notice shall be provided by 
letter according to Section IV.9, below. A change in the area covered by this Agreement 
shall not, however, affect any rights accrued under TEX. LOCAL GOV'T CODE Chapter 
245 prior to the effective date of the change. 



 

 
5. Collaborative interpretation. The CITY agrees to collaborate with the COUNTY 

regarding the interpretation of any rule or regulation delegated by the COUNTY under this 
agreement. Such collaboration may result in the granting of a variance on a case-by-case 
basis. However, the CITY shall not grant a variance to a COUNTY regulation, including 
roadway, drainage, right-of-way or dedication provisions, without the consent of the 
COUNTY. For the purposes of this agreement, consent shall be in writing by the COUNTY 
Director of Sanitation as required by COUNTY responsibilities defined in this agreement. 
The COUNTY agrees to not unreasonably withhold consent and to provide a response to 
the CITY within ten (10) business days, and further the COUNTY agrees that a lack of 
response after ten (10) business days shall be deemed a consent to the CITY’s request. 
 

6. General Administration. Administering this Agreement and the contact person for the 
COUNTY shall be the Director of the Caldwell County Sanitation Department, or his/her 
representative. Administering this Agreement and the contact person and representative for 
the CITY shall be the City Manager/Administrator. 

 
7. Alteration, Amendment or Modification. This Agreement may not be altered. 

amended, or modified except in a subsequent writing signed by all Parties to this 
Agreement. A party seeking to amend this Agreement shall provide written notice of intent 
to amend to the other Party along with such proposed amendment. No official, agent, 
employee, or representative of either the COUNTY or the CITY has the authority to alter, 
amend, or modify the terms of this Agreement, except in accordance with express authority 
as may be respectively granted by either the Caldwell County Commissioners Court or the 
CITY. 

 
8. Non-delegated authority retained.  Any specific statutory regulatory authority of either 

the COUNTY or the CITY not covered or otherwise delegated in this Agreement shall 
remain the exclusive authority of the original entity.  

 
9. Notice:All notices sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and must be sent by 

registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 
 

a. Notices sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent to the Caldwell County 
Subdivision Coordinator's Office at the following address: 
 

Caldwell County Sanitation Department 
1700 FM 2720 
Lockhart, Texas 78644 

b. Notices sent pursuant to this Agreement may be delivered or sent to the CITY at 
the following address: 
 

City of Uhland 



 

Attn: City Administrator  
15 North Old Spanish Trail 
Uhland Texas, 78640 

10. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 

11. Breach. The failure of either Party to comply with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. Either Party shall be entitled to any 
and all rights and remedies allowed under Texas law for any breach of this Agreement by 
the other Party. 

 
12. Non-Waiver. The waiver by either Party of a breach of this Agreement shall not constitute 

a continuing waiver of such breach or of a subsequent breach of the same or a different 
provision. Nothing in this Agreement is intended by either Party to constitute a waiver of 
any immunity from suit or liability to which it is entitled- under applicable law. 
 

13. Entire Agreement; Third Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the COUNTY and the CITY. No other agreement, statement, or promise relating 
to the subject matter of this Agreement and which is not contained in this Agreement or 
incorporated by reference in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. This Agreement is 
not intended to confer any rights on any third parties, and it shall not be construed as 
conferring any rights on any third parties. 

 
14. Terms used in Document. As used in this document, the terms “Interlocal Cooperation 

Agreement", "Interlocal Agreement", "Agreement", and "Contract" are synonymous. 
 

15. Non-Defined Terms. If not specifically defined in this Agreement, words and phrases 
used in this Agreement shall have their ordinary meaning as defined by common usage. 

 

Caldwell County, Texas    The City of Uhland, Texas 

 

 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Hoppy Haden      By:_________________________________ 
Caldwell County Judge     Title:________________________________ 



Resolution No. ____________ - Page 1 of 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF UHLAND, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE CALDWELL 
COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR’S 2020 CERTIFIED TAX ROLL 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 26.09 of the Property Tax Code requires approval by the City 
Council of the City of Uhland appraisal roll with tax amounts entered by the assessor, for 
the tax year 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such roll was presented to the City of Uhland on November 4, 2020 
and appears in all things correct as under the applicable laws of Texas; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council voted in open session to approve said rolls. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF UHLAND, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the appraisal roll with amounts due totaling $28,604.42 for the 
year 2020 is approved and is the tax roll for the City of Uhland for the year 2020. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 4th day of November 2020. 

 
CITY OF UHLAND 
 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Vicki Hunter, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary  



Resolution No. ____________ - Page 2 of 5

EXHIBIT 'A'



Resolution No. ____________ - Page 3 of 5



Resolution No. ____________ - Page 4 of 5



Resolution No. ____________ - Page 5 of 5



Resolution No. ______ - Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UHLAND, TEXAS, REQUESTING TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION (TxDOT) INSTALL A 
CONTINUOUS TURN LANE ON STATE HIGHWAY 21 
(SH 21) STARTING AT COTTON GIN ROAD AND 
CONTINUING UNTIL CONNECTED TO THE CURRENT 
TURN LANE AT HIGH ROAD  

 
 

WHEREAS, State Highway 21 (SH 21) is a State of Texas, Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT) roadway that serves as the main thoroughfare through the City 
of Uhland; and 
 

WHEREAS, state and local governments strive to protect motorists and enhance 
safety on roads, streets, and highways of the state, particularly the roads, streets, and 
highways that experience an increased volume of traffic; and  

 
WHEREAS, the traffic volumes on SH 21 have increased; and  

 
WHEREAS, the anticipated growth of the region will heavily impact traffic on 

SH 21; and 
 

WHEREAS, SH 21 is used as a thoroughfare between Texas State Highway 130 
(TX 130) and Texas State Highway 80 (TX 80) to Interstate 35 (I-35) in San Marcos; and  
 

WHEREAS, turning lanes are designed to enhance highway safety, increase road 
capacity, facilitate orderly movement of traffic, and reduce traffic delays and accidents; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, turning lanes substantially reduce crashes and reduce rear-end 
collisions; and  
 

WHEREAS, SH 21 is heavily traveled and turning lanes from Cotton Gin Road to 
High Road would alleviate traffic congestion and provide easier and safer travel to 
motorists; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to help protect the health and safety of all inhabitants the City 

Council is of the opinion that it is essential that a turn lane be installed on SH 21 from 
Cotton Gin Road to High Road. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF UHLAND, TEXAS 
 



Resolution No. ______ - Page 2 of 2 

Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Uhland; in light of the previously 
established facts regarding SH 21, issues this Resolution requesting TxDOT undertake 
the steps necessary to expeditiously implement installation of a continuous turn lane on 
SH 21 starting at Cotton Gin Road and continuing until connected to the current turn lane 
High Road. 
 

Section 2:  That the City Council of the City of Uhland, Texas and the Public 
hereby urges and requests that TxDOT review the feasibility of installing turning lane on 
SH 21 from Cotton Gin Road to High Road in Uhland, Texas.  
 

Section 3:  That TxDOT consider lowering the speed limit in City limits.  
 

Section 4:  That a copy of this Resolution is furnished to the TxDOT. 
 

 Passed and approved this _____ day of __________________ 2020. 
 

CITY OF UHLAND 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Vicki Hunter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary 
 



A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:

15
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
LD

 S
P

A
N

IS
H

 T
R

A
IL

U
H

LA
N

D
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
86

40

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
U

H
LA

N
D

CUATRO
Consultants, LTD

3601 Kyle Crossing, Suite A
Kyle, Texas 78640 e-mail:  cuatro@cuatroconsultants.com

Phone: (512) 312-5040  Fax: (512) 312-5399

LEGEND

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

A
N

D
E

.T
.J

. M
A

P
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

U
H

LA
N

D
H

A
Y

S
 A

N
D

 C
A

LD
W

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 2726

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIST MILL ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIDENREICH LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNTON LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAIRY LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON GIN ROAD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUM CREEK ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKY ROAD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD SPANISH TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARRINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYS COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISTY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 158

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF KYLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 158

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 1966

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM PETRUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 1984

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 1966

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 2720

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOBWHITE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOLLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLE E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIEDERWALD E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART E.T.J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS AND ETJ MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING'S NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOVEMBER 2, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
HE.jr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS CITY E.T.J. LIMITS (  MILE) 12 MILE) COUNTY LINE ADJOINING MUNICIPALITIES E.T.J. BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"=2,000'



Z
O

N
IN

G
 M

A
P

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:

15
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
LD

 S
P

A
N

IS
H

 T
R

A
IL

U
H

LA
N

D
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
86

40
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

U
H

LA
N

D

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
U

H
LA

N
D

CUATRO
Consultants, LTD

3601 Kyle Crossing, Suite A
Kyle, Texas 78640 e-mail:  cuatro@cuatroconsultants.com

Phone: (512) 312-5040  Fax: (512) 312-5399

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 2726

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIST MILL ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIDENREICH LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNTON LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAIRY LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON GIN ROAD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUM CREEK ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKY ROAD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J  

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD SPANISH TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 150

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYS COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND E.T.J  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING'S NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOVEMBER 2, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
HE.jr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCAL RETAIL (LR) AGRICULTURAL (A) GENERAL BUSINESS (GB) SINGLE FAMILY (SF-1) MULTI-FAMILY (MF-1) MANUFACTURED HOMES 1 (MH-1) PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD) PARKLAND (P) CITY LIMITS CITY ETJ LIMITS (  MILE) 12 MILE) COUNTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"=1,000'



FU
T

U
R

E
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

:

15
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
LD

 S
P

A
N

IS
H

 T
R

A
IL

U
H

LA
N

D
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
86

40
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

U
H

LA
N

D

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
U

H
LA

N
D

CUATRO
Consultants, LTD

3601 Kyle Crossing, Suite A
Kyle, Texas 78640 e-mail:  cuatro@cuatroconsultants.com

Phone: (512) 312-5040  Fax: (512) 312-5399

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 2726

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIST MILL ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIDENREICH LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNTON LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAIRY LANE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON GIN ROAD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUM CREEK ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKY ROAD  

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD SPANISH TRAIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UHLAND CITY LIMITS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 150

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYS COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON GIN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING'S NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCTOBER 30, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
HE.jr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE CIVIC USE EXISTING DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION APPROVED PRE-DEVELOPMENT MEETING HELD NO PRE-DEVELOPMENT MEETING CITY LIMITS CITY ETJ LIMITS (  MILE) 12 MILE) COUNTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"=1,000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. HANEY TRACT HANEY TRACT 1.1. ~1,200 SINGLE AND MULTI FAMILY UNITS ~1,200 SINGLE AND MULTI FAMILY UNITS 2. SULLIVAN TRACT (LENNAR) SULLIVAN TRACT (LENNAR) 2.1. 596 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 596 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 3. CREEKS CROSSING CREEKS CROSSING 3.1. 515 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 515 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 4. MONTE SAGRADO MONTE SAGRADO 4.1. 287 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 287 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 5. LAS ESTANCIAS PHASE 2 LAS ESTANCIAS PHASE 2 5.1. 221 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 221 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 6. MILLCREEK MILLCREEK 6.1. 213 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 213 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 7. HARVEST CREEK HARVEST CREEK 7.1. 202 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 202 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 8. CAMINO REAL RV RESORT CAMINO REAL RV RESORT 8.1. 150 RV SPACES WITH CONVENIENCE STORE 150 RV SPACES WITH CONVENIENCE STORE 9. ANDERSON TRACT ANDERSON TRACT 9.1. 457 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 457 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 10. HARMONY HILLS HARMONY HILLS 10.1. 284 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 284 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 11. CAMINO CREST CAMINO CREST 11.1. 52 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 52 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 12. ROCKY ROAD RANCH SUBDIVISION ROCKY ROAD RANCH SUBDIVISION 12.1. 22 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 22 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 13. WEBSTER TRACT WEBSTER TRACT 13.1. 4 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES4 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES



Resolution No. ____ - Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO._____ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UHLAND, TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A FUNDS 
TRANSFER AGREEMENT WITH BROADWAY NATIONAL BANK 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Uhland, Texas hereby certifies the following: 
 
  The name, address, and Federal Tax ID Number of the City is:  
 

 Name:  City of Uhland, Texas 
 Address:  15 N. Old Spanish Trail 
 City, State, Zip: Uhland, TX  78640 
 Federal Tax ID #: 74-2367736 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Uhland, Texas hereby resolves that the persons designated 
below are hereby authorized to execute a Funds Transfer Agreement with Broadway National 
Bank, containing such terms and conditions as he/she may determine in his/her sole 
discretion. Any designation or removal of any persons as authorized agents or representatives 
of the City in such Funds Transfer Agreement or in conjunction therewith, is hereby authorized, 
ratified by, and binding upon the City. Further, Broadway National Bank is authorized to honor 
the instructions of any such designated agent or representative for withdrawal or transfer of 
funds without inquiry, and City agrees to indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from any 
losses, damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) suffered as a result of 
honoring the instructions of those so designated or refusing to honor those instructions not in 
compliance with the Funds Transfer Agreement. 
 

Printed Name: Title: Specimen Signature: 
 
Vicki Hunter Mayor _______________________ 
 
Naomi Schrock Mayor Pro-Tem _______________________ 
 
Karen Gallaher City Administrator _______________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, the authority granted herein shall remain in full force and effect until actual 
receipt and acknowledgment of written notice of the revocation or modification of the authority 
granted herein. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City will immediately inform Broadway National Bank of any change in 
the business relations, form, or authorized agents of City. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City acknowledges that Broadway National Bank, San Antonio, Texas 
is under no duty to inquire into the circumstances of any transaction authorized herein. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City further authorizes and directs Broadway National Bank, San 
Antonio, Texas, to honor as genuine and authorized any facsimile signature or signatures of 



Resolution No. ____ - Page 2 of 2 

any of the persons named herein and that City assumes full responsibility for any and all 
actions taken by Broadway National Bank in reliance upon the facsimile signature of any 
person or persons named herein and agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Broadway 
National Bank against any and all loss, cost damages or expenses suffered or incurred by 
Broadway National Bank arising out of the use, misuse or unlawful or unauthorized use by any 
person of such facsimile signature. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is a Type A General Law Municipality in the State of Texas. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 4th day of November 2020. 
 

CITY OF UHLAND 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Vicki Hunter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Traci R. McGinley, City Secretary 
 


	20201104 City Council Meeting Agenda Packet
	C1 - Harvest Creek Zoning Change - Public Hearing Notice
	C2 - CDBG Water Improvements - Public Hearing Notice
	D1 - 20201007 City Council Meeting Minutes
	D2 - Financials
	G1 - EDC Application
	G2 - EDC Terms of Office for 2020-2021
	G3 - Harvest Creek Zoning
	G4 - Harvest Creek Preliminary Plat
	G5 - Millcreek
	G6 - El Camino Ranch RV Resort PDD
	G7 - Voluntary Annexation Ordinance - Rocky Road
	G8 - Rocky Road Ranch PDD
	G10 - Contract Legal Services
	G11 - Planning
	G12 - Revised 1445 Agreement
	G13 - Tax Roll Resolution
	G14 - TxDot Resolution
	G15 - City Limts and ETJ Map
	G16 - Zoning Map
	G17 - Banking Services

	20201007 City Council Meeting Minutes FINAL.pdf
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	Chris Betz, County Line Special Utility District Board President, provided public comment as attached.
	None.
	1. September 2, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	2. September 16, 2020 Special City Council Meeting Minutes
	3. Financials of August 2020
	ADJOURNMENT
	Meeting adjourned at 10:15 p.m.
	Public Comment Submitted




